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Pilot

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday July 11, 2011
Writer: Zak Penn, Michael Karnow
Director: Jack Bender
Show Stars: Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), Warren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita

Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura Mennell (Nina Theroux), David
Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Jeff Seymour (The Ghost), Joe Pingue (Quinn), Callum Keith Rennie
(Don Wilson), Jane Moffat (Sandra Bell), Daniel Kash (Rachel’s Dad),
Rachael Crawford (Jeannie Harken), Carlos Gonzalez- Vio (Operative),
Miranda Edwards (Female FBI Agent), Scott Edgecombe (Corner Store
Clerk), Matt Bois (Hotel Manager), Saad Siddiqui (Government Agent),
Louise Nicol (Elderly Woman), Paul Sun-Hyung Lee (Manager), Glen
Cross (Prisoner), Jimi Shlag (Detective), Bobby Manning (Rasta), Sam
Moses (Tailor), Lee Oliveira (Hotel Security Guard), Linlyn Lue (Mom
With Stroller), Cassia Xuan Avy Cook (Infant Girl in Stroller), Adam
Parker (Tyler Hicks), Amanda Lewis (Patti Hicks), Lee Jay Gladman
(Agent Persky), May Charters (Woman at Store)

Summary: When a grocery clerk commits an impossible assassination, the gov-
ernment calls in Dr. Leigh Rosen and his team of ”Alphas”: unique
individuals with neurological mutations that give them special abili-
ties. The team must determine who the killer is and track him down,
but soon discover that a greater plan is in motion.

Cameron Hicks is working as a clerk
at a grocery store when his cell phone
rings. When he answers it, a beeping
sound emerges. When Cameron checks
the text message, he finds an address and
a time, 6:22, and instructions to go to the
rooftop. An elderly woman asks him for
ice cream and then tells him, ”It’s time to
kill.” As Cameron goes in the back at 6:01
to get a soda with pop, his boss casually
tells him ”Time to kill, Hicks.” Cameron
walks out on the street and hears every-
one, including infants, saying, ”Time to

kill” and telling him to pull the trigger. The same message appears on billboards and newspa-
pers.

At 6:21, Cameron goes to the rooftop of the building at the indicated address. A sniper rifle
is hidden there, and he takes it and aims at an air vent on the side of a nearby building. At
precisely 6:22, Cameron fires a single shot.

Dr. Leigh Rosen Leigh is swimming at his home when Department of Defense agent Don
Wilson. Wilson gives him a file and explains that he wants Rosen involved because his group has
deniability. Rosen reluctantly agrees and Wilson leaves.

In Jersey City, Nina Theroux is driving through downtown in a fancy car when a police officer
pulls her over for speeding. She asks him to take off his glasses and then tells him to eat the
ticket. He stares at he for a second and then does so.
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Bill Harken is leaving for his job with Dr. Rosen. His wife Jeannie finds his car keys for
him and sends him on his way. Outside, Bill discovers that someone has boxed in his car. He
concentrates and starts to sweat, and then lifts up his car and slides it into the street.

Rachel Pirzad prepares to leave her family’s dry cleaner store. As she leaves, she overhears
her father talking about her ”condition”... even though she’s 20 feet away in a busy shop.

Sandra Bell tends to her autistic son Gary, who is using his ability to ”read” electromagnetic
waves and watch TV without a television. He precisely measures out his breakfast cereal and
then sees an incoming signal from a van GPS that he recognizes. Sandra sees him out to the van,
with Rosen and Rachel inside. Rosen assures her that human interaction and normal activities
are good for Gary.

Rosen, Rachel, and Gary arrive at Rosen’s office and headquarters, in a building behind a
bowlerama. Bill and Nina are already there, and Bill can’t resist teasing Gary. The team meets in
the conference room and Rosen tries to show them security footage from an interrogation room in
New York police headquarters. Wilson is conducting the interrogation of a suspect named Keeler.
The screen goes dark and Gary fixes it while Rosen explains that the suspect was involved in
blackmail and extortion. As Wilson interrogated him, Keeler was somehow shot in the head and
killed. The footage wasn’t tampered with and Wilson has no idea how it was done. Bill realizes
that they’re on their own with the investigation and Rosen thanks him for his patience.

The team goes to the police station and Nina uses her power to send the FBI agent in charge to
the bathroom. They check out the interrogation room and Rachel augments her vision to examine
the bloodstains. Bill has learned that a .30 caliber bullet was used from a rifle. Rachel sees an
air vent in the wall and asks where it goes.

Rosen arrives on the building across the street in response to his team’s summons. They
explain that the shooter was there and fired a shot into the vent on the opposing wall of police
headquarters. The shooter fired into the vent and ricocheted the shot into Keeler’s head. Rosen is
skeptical until Rachel finds the shell casing from the bullet. Meanwhile, a hidden watcher takes
photos of them from another building.

Back at the office, Rosen suggest that the killer has hyperkinesis: perfect synchronization
between physical and mental reactions. They figure that they’re looking for an athlete who takes
medication to deal with over-simulation and who has military training as a sniper. Bill goes to
meet with his contact in the FBI while Rachel examines the casing for clues and Gary looks for
footage of athletes. Nina does her fingernails.

Wilson meets with Rosen at a record store. The doctor wants to know what Wilson has gotten
them into, but Wilson insists that he’s told him everything he can. Rosen refuses to endanger
his people on Wilson’s word, and Wilson tells him that Red Flag, an Alpha extremist group is
involved. They’re back and using Alphas for drug trafficking and murder. Keeler was a witness
and Red Flag eliminated him.

Bill makes with his FBI partner, Quinn, and they talk about anther agent, Persky, who is back
on duty after an injury. Quinn hands over a file on military personnel who meet the description
and then wonders what Bill is up to. Bill dodges the question and leaves, unaware that the same
man from earlier is taking photos of him.

Back at the office, Bill drops the file off with Rachel and touches her muffin. Once he leaves,
Rosen comes in and she tells him that she’s found traces of orange rind on the casing. When he
realizes that she’s upset, Rosen asks what the matter is and she complains that Bill is rude and
messy. He suggests that Rachel confront Bill but she refuses. Rachel agrees to try it and gives
Rosen what she has. Cross-referencing that with Bill’s information, she gives the data to Gary.
He finds a video of a minor league baseball player, Cameron Hicks, who had a perfect game and
wins with a perfectly-timed ricochet pitch to the first baseman.

Nina, Gary, and Bill track Cameron to the grocery store where he works. Bill checks Cameron’s
record and confirms he was a top- ranked sniper in the Army. Nina doesn’t think that it adds
up and wonders why an assassin would work at a grocery store. Inside, Cameron’s boss informs
him that he walked out in the middle of his shit without warning, and that he’s been fired. When
Cameron leaves, they realize that he’s heading for his apartment... where Rachel is searching for
clues. She has shut down her hearing to boost her vision and doesn’t hear Bill’s call to warn her.

The trio drives to the apartment and Bill goes inside to intercept Cameron. Cameron finds
Rachel in his apartment as she finds the sniper rifle. Before he can get answers, Bill storms in
and Cameron attacks him. He manages to escape out the window and Bill follows him down,
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but his adrenaline spikes after five minutes and he convulses in pain. Nina tells Bill to stay put
and has Rachel and Gary track Cameron. She then drives to cut him off and uses her power to
convince him to go to sleep.

Back at the office, Rosen and Rachel run a MRI scan on Cameron and find a lesion in his
brain. Meanwhile, Bill complains to Nina that he isn’t happy that they haven’t thrown Cameron
in jail. Nina disagrees, insisting that Cameron didn’t know what he was doing. When Rosen
comes in, he explains that they know about Alphas who can manipulate the neural structure
of the brain. The lesion on the MRI indicates that someone influenced Cameron on a long-term
basis.

Rosen brings in Wilson and explains that Cameron was brainwashed. Wilson mentions the
”Ghost Files” and finally explains that the Ghost is a man who finds proxies and causes them
to kill off anyone who poses a threat to Red Flag. Each proxy had a lesion in the brain. Rosen
is angry that Wilson hid information from him, but Wilson tells him to find the Ghost before he
kills someone else.

The Ghost goes to the Thompson Hotel, carefully wiping his hands and making sure he
touches nothing. In his room, he checks his closet full of identical suits and then cleans his
hands. The camera operative arrives four minutes late and tells the Ghost that Rosen’s team has
had their histories scrubbed. The operative warns that their superiors are worried and want to
accelerate the schedule, but the Ghost complains that he has his own perfect schedule and the
operative has thrown it off. When the operative says it won’t happen again, the Ghost agrees and
touches him with his right hand, which is scarred and mutilated.

Rosen examines a handcuffed Cameron and then gives him an injection of topirimate, which
will negate forced induction. He has Cameron explain the last thing he remembers, and Cameron
says that his phone rang and he heard a tone. Rosen asks if he suffered from aphasia, hearing
and seeing wrong words. When Cameron confirms that it happened to him, Rosen explains that
Cameron killed a man.

The operative goes to a convenience store and buys a bottle of bleach and then drinks it,
killing himself.

Rosen shows Cameron the MRI scan and explains that the aphasia was caused by the lesion.
The doctor explains that Cameron is an Alpha and everyone in the unit is also an Alpha. He takes
Cameron to the lounge and explains that his hyperkinesis is a delicate tool, and when it goes out
of balance it can have dire consequences. Rosen has Cameron try and throw two quarters into
the pop machine from 10’ away. Cameron misses the first two shots, and Rosen hands him the
quarters back. This time Cameron makes the shots, and Rosen tells him that he’s capable of so
much more.

The unit meets with Cameron and Rosen figures that the Ghost has kept Cameron alive so he
can kill someone else. He wants Cameron to wait and receive another phone call from the Ghost.
Gary will trace the call back to its source, but Cameron isn’t thrilled at being used as bait. Rosen
admits that they don’t have a choice because he’s still at risk as large as the Ghost is at large.

The Alpha team sets up Cameron at his apartment. Bill complains to Rosen over the phone
about using amateurs, but soon realizes that Rosen is using his shrink voice. Meanwhile, Nina
waits with Cameron in his apartment and notices photos of his ex-wife Patti and his son Tyler.
The conversation turns to the downside of Nina’s ability, but she insists that she doesn’t have
a downside. Cameron points out that she works for Rosen when she doesn’t have to. Nina says
she’s a really nice person but Cameron isn’t convinced. Cameron’s cell phone rings and Nina
tells him to answer it. When he does, the tone goes off again and he enters a trance. Rosen has
Nina administer a dose of topirimate. When she does, Cameron comes out of the induction.

Gary traces the cell phone signal to the sixth floor of the Thompson Hotel. Bill and Nina go in
after Bill handcuffs Cameron inside the car. Bill heads upstairs while Nina uses her powers on
the hotel manager to have him give her a list of long-stay guests on the sixth floor. The Ghost is in
Room 613 and Bill watches as a bellboy enters that room. Bill floods his system with adrenaline
and smashes through the door.

In the van, Cameron begs Rachel to unlock his handcuffs but she refuses.
The mind-controlled bellboy attacks Bill, stabbing him in the chest. Bill knocks him back and

goes after the Ghost as he runs out of the room. When she learns what has happened, Rachel
frees Cameron. Meanwhile, Nina tries to get the security guards to block the entrances but finally
has the manager do it.
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Cameron enters the hotel and Nina spots him. He goes up the stairs while Nina follows in
the elevator. The Ghost goes out on the upper terrace and leaps to his death without a second
thought.

In Room 613, Bill approaches the unconscious bellboy... and discovers that it’s the Ghost.
The Ghost touches Bill with his mutilated hand.

As the police take the body away, Cameron wonders why the Ghost would have jumped. Nina
contemplates the body and admits it brings back some bad memories. Rosen and Rachel examine
the Ghost’s hotel room and discover he compulsively documented the entire plan. The doctor is
skeptical that someone so compulsive would deviate from his pattern by using Cameron a second
time. In the street, Nina and Cameron check on Bill, who blames himself for not keeping the
situation contained. Bill stays to spin the story and congratulates Cameron on doing a good job.
Rosen talks to Wilson, who says that he’ll be coming for Cameron and refuses to hear differently.
Meanwhile, the Ghost watches Bill from the crowd.

Back at the office that night, Rosen notes to Nina that it doesn’t make sense that the Ghost
used an Alpha proxy this time. Further, he believes that the Ghost had to know that the plan
would draw some attention. He doesn’t accept Nina’s suggestion that the Ghost got sloppy. She
wonders if Wilson will send Cameron to ”the Compound,” and Rosen admits that they can’t
just keep a killer with them. When the doctor says that it’s complicated, Nina asks if it was
complicated with her.

Gary checks Cameron’s text messages and asks who Tyler is. Cameron explains that Tyler is
his son, a pitcher in Little League. Nina comes in and suggests that Cameron come back in the
morning rather than wait for Rosen. As she takes Cameron and Gary home, Gary picks up the
Ghost’s phone signal again. Cameron goes after the Ghost while Nina puts Gary in the car and
goes to warn Rosen.

Rosen gets a call from Wilson, who tells him that the body they have isn’t the Ghost’s but the
bellhop. The doctor realizes that the whole thing was a setup and Cameron was the bait... for
them.

The Ghost watches Rosen’s office from the parking lot and spots Cameron coming after him.
He backs away and panics when he snags his sleeve on a wire fence.

Rosen tells Wilson that Red Flag had the Ghost use Cameron to draw him and his team out.
Bill steps out and shoots at Rosen.

As Rachel goes to her car, the Ghost grabs her and uses her as a shield when Cameron comes
up.

Rosen runs to the drug cabinet to get a syringe of topirimate. When he can’t get it unlocked,
he smashes the glass open as Bill approaches him. Rosen tries to get through to him without
success.

The Ghost tells Cameron that he’s been the one who has guided him every step of the way.
Without his guidance, Cameron will fold under pressure.

Nina finds Bill and tries to use her power to override the Ghost’s induction. When it doesn’t
work, she remembers Rosen’s comment about an extreme emotional reaction and kisses Bill.
When he’s distracted, Rosen injects him with the topirimate.

The Ghost tells Cameron to release him in return for Rachel. Cameron hesitates for a moment
and then shoots the sign behind the Ghost. The shot ricochets as planned and hits the Ghost in
the back. As the Red Flag killer dies, he tells Cameron that he’s on the wrong side.

Later, Rosen scans Bill and confirms that the lesion is breaking apart, restoring him to nor-
mal. Rachel assures the doctor that she’ll be okay. He warns Bill that he may suffer from fatigue
and sadness. As Rosen goes, Nina comes in and Bill points out that she kissed him.

Rosen goes to see Cameron, who is watching his son in Little League. He sympathizes with
Cameron, pointing out that Patti doesn’t know what he goes through. The doctor offers to help
him and asks for help in return, but Cameron says that he’s worked for the government before
and it didn’t go well. Rosen says he understands, but then points out that Cameron murdered
a Federal prisoner. If Cameron doesn’t join the unit, Rosen warns that he can’t protect him. As
Cameron considers his offer, Rosen tells him that he’s back on the mound.
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Cause & Effect

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday July 18, 2011
Writer: Julie Siege
Director: Constantine Makris
Show Stars: Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), David

Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Laura Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik
Yoba (Bill Harken), Warren Christie (Cameron Hicks)

Guest Stars: Will McCormack (Marcus Ayers), Valerie Cruz (Kathy Sullivan), Deb-
orah Odell (Bonita), Mahershalalhashbaz Ali (Nathan Clay), Raoul
Bhaneja (Dr. Vijal Singh)

Summary: A problematic former patient of Rosen’s escapes as Rosen is getting
acquainted with his Department of Defense liaison, and the rest of the
team tries to balance their normal lives with their work as Alphas.

Twenty miles south of Binghamton, New
York, a prisoner is being transferred by
ambulance. When the agent watching
him gets a call, the prisoner quickly scans
everything in the back, computes the ve-
hicle’s speed, and spots a truck behind
them. He then takes a coin from his
mouth and throws it, knocking over a
shelf and dropping oxygen tanks on the
agent watching him. The oxygen tank
valve breaks off, blinding the driver, who
loses control and causes an accident. A
loose pipe from a truck passes through

the windshield, breaks the chain on the prisoner’s handcuffs, and knocks open the rear door.
The prisoner, unharmed, steps out of the ambulance, picks up his coin, and goes to make a call
at a nearby phone and report an accident.

The Alpha team move into their new offices. Gary complains about the hum despite Rachel’s
assurances that there is no hum. Nina has already used her abilities to get everything moved
into her office. Rachel reluctantly takes a call from her parents, and Gary listens in until she
tells him to stop. Cameron arrives and wonders what they do, and Nina explains that they spend
most of their time finding other Alphas. Some of them go to the Compound, where dangerous
Alphas are taken.

Bonita, the real estate agent for the building, arrives. Rosen explains who she is and avoids
telling her exactly what they do, while Bill demands the security codes and keys. As Rosen directs
her away, Bonita gives him his tie and says that he left it at her place the previous night. Rosen
is then called to the accident scene where he meets with Dr. Singh. The doctor soon realizes
that the prisoner was Marcus Ayers, and he engineered the entire accident. He tells the agent in
charge, Nathan Cley, that they’ll need his help. Nathan figures that it will be a simple recovery,
but Rosen warns that Marcus calculates every possibility, is always on the attack, and sees
everyone as enemies. What they need to do is figure out who Marcus perceives as the enemy. As
Nathan and Singh go back to the crash site, Rosen sees a chess knight etched into the glass of
the phone.

Seven Years Earlier
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Rosen and Marcus play chess at a park, and Marcus insists that everyone makes perfect
moves for them. The doctor points out that Marcus believes that there are no accidents or mis-
takes in life, but people aren’t like that. Rosen tosses him a coin and says everything is as random
as a coin toss. Marcus disagrees, explaining that he got mad at his roommates, which lead to him
becoming Rosen’s prisoner. Rosen insists that Marcus isn’t like everyone else, and that he is one
of several people with neurological disorders that he calls ”Alphas.” He asks if there’s anything
extraordinary that he can do. In response, Marcus takes Rosen’s hand and holds it up just as a
leaf floats into it.

Now
Rosen goes to the park and finds a leaf and a coin on the table where he and Marcus played

chess. Marcus watches him from hiding.
As Rachel and Nina leave the office, Rachel continues arguing with her mother over the phone

about the man she’s supposed to marry. When Rachel figures that Nina would have handled
things better, Nina admits that she hasn’t talked to her family in years. As Nina drives home, she
stops to talk to Cameron and assures him that Rosen wants him there.

The next day, Kathy Sullivan arrives at the office. Bill assumes that she’s another of Rosen’s
dates, but it becomes clear that Sullivan knows all about them. Rosen arrives and introduces
Sullivan as their new DoD liaison while Wilson is on assignment. Sullivan talks to Rosen in
private and warns him that Marcus blames him for his institutionalization. When Rosen reveals
that Marcus left him a message but didn’t try to kill him, Sullivan warns the doctor that he has a
conflict of interest. Rosen admits that he isn’t happy to be working for the government but they
have no choice so they should get started.

Rosen meets with his team and explains that Marcus can perceive and manipulate chains of
cause and effect. Once the others leave, Nina confronts Rosen and says that she’s not comfortable
with who Rosen decides goes to the Compound and who doesn’t, particularly after she used her
abilities on her boyfriend. Rosen insists that he thinks about it every day.

Cameron watches tapes of Marcus’ sessions with Rosen. He warns the doctor that Marcus
has a mean streak, and Rosen admits that Marcus can’t understand why others can’t control
their environment the way that he does. The doctor believes that Cameron’s abilities are similar
to Marcus, but Cameron directs the blame of his failures inward. Cameron figures that Marcus
is blaming himself the same way that Cameron does.

Rachel analyzes the coin and informs Rosen that she found an old smudge. Rosen knows that
it’s ash and simply says, ”past failures.” He then goes to an apartment building.

Six Years Earlier
Rosen goes to the building where Marcus lived with his roommates. It has burned down,

putting Marcus’ roommates in the hospital, and Rosen finds a coin among the ashes.
Now
Marcus approaches Rosen and asks him what took so long. He then asks about Rosen’s team

and the doctor insists that they’re not his enemies. Rosen tries to get through to Marcus, who
says that things have changed and Singh and his team are doing something different. When
Rosen denies it, Marcus doesn’t believe him and explains that the people at Binghamton have
big plans for him. He asks Rosen why they were transferring him and then realizes that Rosen
doesn’t know a thing, including the fact that he’s being used as bait. Nathan and his agents move
in and Marcus tosses a bottle of pop in front of a skater, setting off a chain of events that cause
concrete blocks to fall on the agents so Marcus can make his escape.

Back at the office, Rosen asks Nathan what is going on at Binghamton. Nathan blames Rosen
for the death of his agent and storms off. Miss Sullivan says that Rosen should have told them
he was going to see Marcus, and Rosen insists that they have to investigate the basis for Marcus’
paranoia. They go to see Dr. Singh at a hotel restaurant and Rosen asks why Marcus was being
sent off-site. Singh explains that all standard treatments failed so they were sending him off for
surgery to try and excise the part of his brain that gives him his abilities. Rosen objects but Singh
suggests that he doesn’t know what’s going on at Binghamton and prefers it that way. As Singh
goes outside, he sees a chess piece sitting in the gutter. As he picks it up, he hears a coin flip.

Rosen hears the sound of a crash and runs outside. He spots Singh... knocked up on top of
a railing and impaled. The chess piece, a black rook, is sitting on the sidewalk below Singh’s
corpse.
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Rosen’s Alphas arrive at the scene. Rosen warns Sullivan that Marcus sees it all as a game,
and she warns the doctor that it will end with Marcus’ death. Meanwhile, Cameron uses his
own perceptions and finds the coin that Marcus used to set off the chain of events. Rachel
finds nothing on it and Nina is unable to learn anything from the witnesses. Rosen shows them
the chess piece and Rachel finds stargazer lily pollen on it. Back at the office, Bill has Gary do a
search of security cameras for the flowers. Rosen contemplates the chess piece and remembers...

Six Years Earlier
As Rosen serves him coffee, Marcus insists that the fire at the apartment was an accident. He

boasts that nobody died because he didn’t want anyone to die. As Marcus realizes that he’s been
drugged, Rosen explains that Marcus needs more help than he can provide and Nathan is there
to take him to Binghamton.

Now
Bill tells Rosen not to blame himself because Marcus was born broken. The doctor doesn’t

believe it, noting that he helped Marcus developed his ability. Gary comes in and says that Bill
needs to be more specific. The teenager breaks down the overlaps and finds an office tower near
the Federal Building with stargazer lilies... the building where Nathan has set up his team.

Nathan finds the flowers and a chess piece. He calls Rosen to update him and assures the
doctor that he can handle things. Nathan then goes out onto the lawn and yells to Marcus that
he’s waiting.

Rosen and his team go to the Federal Building and find Nathan waiting for Marcus. Nathan
has planted snipers on the roof and is in an area with nothing for Marcus to use. Rosen doesn’t
believe that Nathan’s plan will work. As the team spreads out, Nina complains to Rosen that she
didn’t sign on to assassinate Alphas.

Bill spots someone moving away and Rachel tries to concentrate. She finally smells gas from
the sewers. Nathan’s men open fire, setting off the gas. Cameron anticipates the explosion and
gets Nina to safety. In the field, flames burst out of the grilles around Nathan. Marcus grabs
Rosen and hauls him away. He forces Rosen to drive away in a government SUV to show him
something.

Rachel calls Gary and has him track the vehicle. Bill and the others follow the trail, unaware
that Nathan is following them. Meanwhile, Marcus takes Rosen to a bridge overlooking the park
and tells him that he has every reason to be afraid... along with everybody else on every side.
Rosen reminds him that he’s broken the law and hurt people, but Marcus insists that what they
plan to do to all the Alphas at Binghamton is an abomination. He sees what is coming 20 moves
ahead and thought Rosen was a part of it, but now he knows that Rosen doesn’t see anything.

As Nathan and his people move in, Marcus explains that the government is reacting with
panic and violence toward the Alphas. Rosen insists that Alphas are an opportunity for all of
them, but Marcus reminds him that Singh was going to turn him into nothing and was going to
do it to the other Alphas as well. Marcus admits that Singh may be right, but Rosen insists that
things can be different. The Alpha explains that Rosen is the variable and has one move left to
get to the rosy future he sees. When Rosen asks what the move is, Marcus tells him to kick over
the chessboard.

Bill and Rachel arrive and Marcus explains that things are playing out the way he planned.
Nathan arrives and Marcus says that if he’s wrong, they’ll take him alive. He shoves Rosen away
and stands up, an easy target. Nathan guns him down and Marcus falls into the river below.

The next day, Rosen meets with Sullivan and check out the park below the river. Nathan has
reported that he shot Marcus in the chest, but they haven’t found his body. Rosen comments
that Marcus considered the Alphas an out-of-context problem but warns that they can’t enter
into an us-versus-them mindset. As Sullivan leaves, Nathan continues to have his men drag the
river. He’s unaware that Marcus’ coin is lying in the water with Nathan’s bullet imbedded in it.
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Anger Management

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday July 25, 2011
Writer: Ira Steven Behr, Robert Hewitt Wolfe
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Tatiana Maslany (Tracy Beaumont), Devon Graye (Matthew Hurley),
Callum Keith Rennie (Don Wilson), Mahershalalhashbaz Ali (Nathan
Clay)

Summary: The team deals with a runaway teenage Alpha setting off riots up and
down the East Coast. Meanwhile, Rosen discovers that the government
isn’t so willing to cooperate with him as he believed.

On a subway car, a young runaway,
Tracy Beaumont, argues with another
passenger. She walks away from the man
and makes her way through the car.
When a policeman takes her arm and
asks if she’s okay, Tracy panics. Every-
one on the subway goes berserk, attack-
ing each other. A woman grabs the offi-
cer’s gun and shoots him with it.

At the office, Gary complains to Bill
about the humming from the nearby cell
phone tower. When Bill refuses to shoot it
for him, Gary asks Nina to push someone

but she refuses. Meanwhile, Rachel is using scents s to calm herself after the meeting with her
parent’s arranged date goes bad. Rosen suggest that she try becoming more assertive and then
goes to see Cameron, who is trying to negotiate visitation rights with his wife. The doctor assures
Cameron that Tyler will always be his son, but a frustrated Cameron loses control of his abilities.

Don Wilson calls Rosen and tells him that they have a case. The team arrives and Nina
convinces the officer in charge to tell them about the police officer on the scene, Lorizano. Bill
arrives late and Nina points out that he’s still under disciplinary review. None of the witnesses
know why they did what they did. Gary picks up random chatter while Bill notices that Cameron
has left the crime scene to get a cup of coffee. He gets him back in past the police and complains
that Cameron isn’t following orders.

Don tells Rosen that the riot is the fourth in a pattern along the East Coast. Rosen admits
that it could be an Alpha and Don demands that he come up with something. As Don goes, Rosen
asks him to procure the train’s surveillance footage. Meanwhile, Rachel analyzes the interior of
the subway car with enhanced scent and finds a stuffed monkey giving off a distinctive odor.

Back at the office, Bill analyzes the files and explains that in each case, people suffered from
uncontrolled rage. Rosen explains that the Alpha responsible gives off pheromones that trigger
the riots. Cameron wonders why they should get involved, but Rosen explains that the police
aren’t trained to handle Alphas. Gary picks up the streaming footage from Don but demands
that they stop the humming noise first.

A stressed out Cameron practices throwing pencils and Nina comes in. She admits that Rosen
likes to give speeches but insists that what he says is important. Nina assures Cameron that she
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was a mess and Rosen helped her, and points out that they need Cameron’s abilities. Meanwhile,
Rachel calls in Bill and Rosen to show them the monkey and the girl who had it on her backpack.

Bill identifies Tracy by name and starts checking the files. He has Gary monitor the street
cameras to locate Tracy but he complains about the humming. Bill has the others stay on hold
and wait for developments and Cameron realizes that he has a real job.

At home, Rachel’s mother says that she has to be careful not to let their chosen man learn
that she has a condition. Rachel insists that she’s fine, but her mother says that she shouldn’t
stay single her whole life.

Rosen gets a call from Gary, who has found her on the security cameras. As they go to Tracy’s
location, Rosen tells Don that they’re on the trail. Rachel can smell traces of the pheromone and
follows it into a crowd. She loses it among the people and Bill tells everyone to spread out, taking
Cameron with him. Rosen calls Gary, who is trying to sleep, and has him check the area. Gary
directs them toward Tracy and Rachel spots her. Tracy runs into a youth hostel and seconds later
people storm out, fighting. Tracy runs out into the street and a young man chases after him.
Cameron stops the man, Matt Hurley, and Nina recognizes him from the subway surveillance
footage. As Bill runs after Tracy and loses her in the traffic, they realize that Matt is immune
because he’s Tracy’s brother.

Cameron brings Gary back to the office, and Gary complains that he’s out after his bedtime
and there’s still a hum. Rosen calls and gives Don an update, warning him that he should keep
his people away while they convince Matt to cooperate. The doctor then tells Matt that he and
his team are trained specialists, not cops, and gets him to help. Matt explains that Beaumont is
their mother’s maiden name and she is dead because her husband beat her to death three years
ago. He claims that his sister’s name is actually Alice and she took the name ”Tracy Beaumont”
to get away from her former life, and she blames herself for her mother’s death.

As Bill runs a check on Tracy and Matt, Rosen assures Matt that Alice isn’t a freak. The doctor
hopes that Matt will prove the key because his brain produces enough serotonin to counter her
pheromones due to constant low-level exposure. As they watch on the monitors, Cameron asks
why Nina doesn’t use her abilities to push Matt, and she explains that her abilities only last a
few minutes and that Rosen doesn’t’ work that way.

Don storms in with his men and demands that Rosen turn Tracy over to him. When he
mentions Binghamton, Matt overhears and realizes that they plan to lock Tracy up. Gary finds
Alice and gives them her location. As Matt and Don argue, Rachel gets a call from her mother.
Meanwhile, Bill confirms that Matt’s sister doesn’t match the description of Tracy. When Matt
panics and Don tries to restrain him, Matt unleashes his pheromones and everyone goes into
a fury. Rachel screams at her mother while Cameron, Nina, and Gary attack the agents. Bill is
the only one able to maintain control but everyone attacks him while Matt runs off. Don chases
after him and tries to shoot him, but one of his agents attacks him with a chair and beats him
to death.

Once Matt is gone, everyone recovers and realizes that Matt has escaped. They find the agent
sobbing over Don’s body. In the aftermath, the Alphas try to deal with how they were felt. Rachel
leaves to see her mother and Rosen asks Nina to take Gary home. Rosen explains that Bill can
control his fight-or-flight reflexes and that he can give Cameron serotonin to maintain control.

Matt finds Tracy at the bus station. He explains that she is the only one who can stay calm
around him and he can’t afford to lose her. Tracy says that she ran away from their hometown
of Arden to get away from him. Cameron and Bill arrive and Matt threatens to start a riot. Tracy
tries to stop him and Bill tells Matt to control it. Matt insists that he’s doing it for her and
unleashes his pheromones. The crowd goes berserk and Cameron goes to rescue Tracy while Bill
chases after Matt. Cameron uses a fire extinguisher to hold the crowd back long enough to pick
up Tracy and walk across the crowd to a balcony.

Bill follows Matt to a bus and calls upon him to surrender. Matt unleashes his pheromones
again and goes for the rear exit, but Bill grabs him and punches him unconscious.

Later, Nathan reports to Rosen that they have successfully taken Matt to Binghamton. As they
talk, Rosen hears screams in the background and Nathan says that it’s another tactical problem.
Rosen insists that they treat Matt as a patient and Nathan suggests that he avoid getting his
next handler killed. The doctor insists that the comment is unfair and Nathan warns that their
situation is getting worse. Once Nathan cuts off, Rosen considers the recording he made of his
meeting with Matt and then puts it in a case with others, a case labeled ”Binghamton.”
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Nina comes to see Rachel, who is trying to come to terms with Don’s death. Under the influ-
ence of her pheromones, she told her mother that she’s moving out to live with her cousin. Nina
offers to let Rachel stay with her until she figures something permanent out. When Rachel says
she doesn’t want to impose, Nina says they could both use the company.

Rosen calls everyone into his office to deal with Don’s death. Gary is upset while Bill insists
that Don died in the line of duty. Rosen then explains that the government is going to maintain
the Alpha team and Sullivan will probably replace Don. The doctor explains that Don didn’t give
them the trust they needed to do their job, and insists that they will thrive as a team. He admits
that it’s going to be messy but they’re the only ones who can deal with the Alpha phenomenon.
Gary complains about the humming and says that no one has helped him with it. Cameron
invites him to take a walk up to the roof. Gary points out the antenna and Cameron throws a
baseball to destroy it. As they go inside, Gary says that he’s not worried about his future and
Cameron admits that he isn’t either.
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Rosetta

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday August 1, 2011
Writer: Zak Penn
Director: Karen Gaviola
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hick), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Valerie Cruz (Kathy Sullivan), Liane Balaban (Anna), Jane Moffat (San-
dra Bell), Mike Tyrell (Purlec)

Summary: While trying to thwart a Red Flag operation, Rosen and his team find
a captive woman, Anna, who can translate any language. While the
others try to track down the Red Flag leader, Gary bonds with Anna
over their similar conditions.

Gary is at home and his mother Sandra
makes sure his water is the right temper-
ature. He disagrees and refuses to get it
himself, and she goes back to try again.
As Gary studies the transmissions, he
sees something interesting and then says
”Gotcha.”

At a suburban home, Purlec makes
supper when his partner, Milos Kosar,
comes in. Kosar plugs in his tablet to
charge sits down to eat, unaware that
outside agents are moving in on the
home. Down the street, Rachel listens in.

Rosen and his Alpha team are there, and they confirm that the man inside is Milos Kosar, the
man who sent the Ghost after them. Gary found him while scanning for cell phone signals.
Rachel confirms there are three people inside, and Bill coordinates the assault teams. Cameron
is leading another team and they prepare to move in. Sullivan is there and asks Rosen for her
opinion on what to do with Bill and Cameron.

Cameron’s squad realizes that the approach to the house is too open. Cameron draws a pair
of guns and tells them that he’ll get them in. Rosen finally gives the order for them to move in.
Bill bolsters his strength and Purlec uses his own Alpha ability to sense other Alphas coming.
Cameron shoots the door off of its hinges and Bill breaks in. Kosar tries to grab his tablet but
Purlec grabs him and they head for the door. The Red Flag leader concentrates... and the lights
go out around the block. After a few seconds the lights come up and Rachel reports that she is
only picking up one heartbeat in the backroom. Cameron and Bill investigate and find a woman
sitting in a rocking chair, seemingly oblivious to their presence.

The next morning, Rosen tries to get through to the woman without success. He concludes
that the home owner, Anna, is a barely- functional autistic and Nina reports that Anna has no
family. Meanwhile, Rachel and Bill go over the house for evidence. Rachel finds singe marks and
realizes that it wasn’t a normal blackout. Meanwhile, both Cameron and Bill resent that they
were sent in against unknown Alphas without being told. Rosen asks Nina to watch over Gary
and Anna, who he’s keeping at the house, and leaves. Inside, Gary watches as Anna goes through
her own routine, feeling and stroking objects.

Back at the office, the others watch a video from the laptop with Red Flag talking of how
they reject the label of deficient and consider themselves better. Cameron wants to watch it and
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try to deduce their mindset, but Rosen wants to move on. Bill discovers plans for an explosives
triggering device and letterhead for Northwell Petroleum, a regional fuel company. Rosen figures
that Red Flag will be targeting the company.

One of the government agents chats with Nina about what she can do. Meanwhile, Gary tries
to get through to Anna and get her to explain. When she doesn’t respond, Gary calls Nina’s cell
phone and puts her on mute. Once he has a signal, he tries to pick up what Anna’s trying to say.
He realizes that she’s saying that she can help Gary and his team finds Mikos.

That night, Gary calls Rosen in and explains that the signal he picked up from Mikos’ cell
phone was a transmission that Anna encoded. He explains that Anna understands every lan-
guage and Rosen tests her by speaking in Swahili. Gary is able to translate for her by reading the
sounds she creates. Once he’s alone with Nina, Rosen explains that Anna is a living universal
translator. He’s checked her case history and determined that she has apraxia, preventing her
from being able to communicate. Anna has created her own unique language and no one noticed
that she was an Alpha until Red Flag figured it out. Rosen believes that Anna can help them
translate the tablet and believes she needs to stay in her house for maximum stability.

Sandra calls Rosen and demands that he bring Gary home. When Gary gets home, he says
that since he’s late he won’t go to bed that night. When he goes inside, Sandra says that they
can’t keep putting Gary through the paces. Rosen explains that Gary has met a girl similar to
himself and promises that there won’t be any more late nights. Satisfied for the moment, Sandra
goes inside with her son.

The next day, Gary gives Anna the tablet and asks her to decrypt Kosar’s emails. She uses the
sounds she makes by stroking a hairbrush to tie into the tablet and uses its voice synthesizer to
talk to Gary. Excited, Gary talks about his ability and describes how he sees the signals. Nina
comes in and tells them to get to work, and Anna starts translating.

At the office, Bill goes through the Red Flag files that Gary and Anna have decrypted. Rachel
analyzes the carpet samples and realizes that a tightly-controlled static charge was used to create
the brownout. Bill confirms from a number in the files that a Northwell petroleum truck is Kosar’s
target.

At a gas station, Kosar goes into the restroom and attacks a truck driver. He comes out where
Purlec is waiting in the truck and tries to start the ignition. While Kosar waits for the charge to
blow off, he gives the detonator to Purlec and makes sure the explosives are set. Once the charge
bleeds off, the two men drive off.

Bill, Sullivan, and Cameron drive to intercept the Northwell truck. They try to divert their
truck to an intersection by pulling in front of it. A second van moves to intercept, cutting the
truck off on the side road. When Bill and the others arrive, they order the driver men out but
discover that they have the wrong truck.

Kosar and Purlec drive onto the New Jersey turnpike.
Rosen meets with his team and assures Sullivan that he’s confident that Kosar will go through

with his plan. He calls Nina to have her bring Gary into the office.
As they work, Gary and Anna talk and she says that he doesn’t need anyone to take care of

him. Gary explains that he doesn’t like to take care of certain things himself. Anna translates a
file and gets the year wrong. He asks her to count to ten and she refuses, but admits she made
a mistake. When Nina tells Gary that he has to go, he refuses and accuses her of pushing him.
Gary insists that he’s fine and refuses to discuss it any further with her.

At the office, Rosen tries to work out Kosar’s plan. Cameron comes in and advises Rosen not
to take it personal, but the doctor points out that Red Flag tried to kill him. The hyperkinetic
concedes the point but tells Rosen to let Kosar make the mistakes.

Anna thanks Gary for staying with him, but he asks why she lied to him. He explains that
he went through the messages and confirmed that she gave him the wrong truck number on
purpose and tried to fool him. Gary assumes that Anna works for Red Flag, but Anna explains
that Red Flag works for her.

Bill and Cameron try to work out Red Flag’s plan and they realize they need to see a list of all
the other Northwell trucks on the roads. There are too many to cover all of them.

Anna explains that she writes all of the messages for Red Flag and that she wants Gary to
join them. She promises that she won’t treat him as a child, but Gary says that he can figure
out what she did and that he doesn’t want to hurt anyone. Anna agrees to help but first explains
that there is a birth-defect prevention drug named Renestrin that will also prevent the birth of
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new Alphas. Since the government views Alphas as a problem to be fixed, Red Flag plans to send
them a message that they’re not a problem. Anna tells Gary to make a choice, and that all he
has to do is remain silent.

Kosar drives the truck into New York City.
Anna repeats her question to Gary, and he explains that he has never made friends. He tells

Anna that she’s the first person he’s met that he thinks of as a friend, but asks if she’s really a
friend. When Anna says that she is, Gary admits that he did something sneaky and figures she
won’t like it.

Bill is on the phone with Sullivan trying to set up a blockade of trucks when Rachel gets a
call. Meanwhile, Nina reports to Rosen that Gary wouldn’t come back. He disagrees with Nina’s
decision to leave Gary behind. Before he can pursue the matter, Bill and the others come out
and explain that Gary has directed them to Montclair Pharmaceuticals. Gary has told them that
Anna gave them the wrong information. They realize that Gary is in danger and Rosen takes
Rachel and Nina with him to get Gary.

Gary says that Red Flag tried to kill Rosen, who is willing to help her. Anna says that she
doesn’t need his help and that Rosen isn’t one of them. She overloads the tablet, jamming Gary
with signals and causing him to collapse in pain.

Kosar and Purlec drive up to Montclair and Purlec senses Cameron and Bill coming. They
drive through the security gate and Bill and Cameron follow them in. Kosar realizes that they
won’t make it in time and has Purlec take the wheel and get as close as possible to set off the
charges. As he jumps out, Cameron tries to get a clear shot at the truck. Kosar electrifies the
nearby water puddles, jamming the ignition on the pursuing vehicle. Bill goes after Kosar while
Cameron shoots Purlec’s hand before he can set off the charge. Kosar sees the detonator and
runs to get it, and Bill shoves a van, smashing the detonator. When Bill touches the van, Kosar
electrifies it, shocking him. The Red Flag leader runs to the explosive pack beneath the truck and
activates it electronically, killing himself and Purlec while Bill gets to cover just in time.

Rosen, Nina, and Rachel arrive at the house and find the stunned Gary. He insists that he’s
fine and asks where Anna is. There’s no sign of the woman and Gary walks out without comment.
They take him home and Rosen tries to get through to Gary. Gary says that Rosen isn’t one of
them, and Rosen warns that Red Flag has extreme ideas. As he goes inside, Gary tells him to
read the email that he sent him. Inside, Gary tells Sandra that he can take care of himself and
she goes to bed. Once she leaves, Gary receives a signal from Anna, who says that she hopes he’s
still his friend. He shuts down the signal, smiles, and continues brushing his teeth.

Sullivan and Rosen watch a new propaganda broadcast from Red Flag. Rosen is sure that
Anna is the one responsible and admits that he got emotional and underestimated her. He con-
siders her argument and notes that if the drug had gone to market, it would have prevented any
new Alphas from being born. When Sullivan wonders if he’s changing sides, Rosen admits that
he’s conflicted. He then shows Sullivan that he’s analyzed the messages that Anna flooded Gary
with, and has learned that there are thousands of Red Flag members across the U.S.

17



Alphas Episode Guide

18



Alphas Episode Guide

Never Let Me Go

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday August 8, 2011
Writer: Jordan Rosenberg
Director: Jeffrey Hunt
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken) Recurring Role:

Guest Stars: Isabella Hofmann (Jessica Elkhart), Lindsay Wagner (Dr. Vanessa
Calder), Kathleen Gati (Zahra Pirzad), Shane Daly (Coach Zelanski),
David Sparrow (Chief Handell), John White (Sam Girardi), Vanessa
Dunn (Waitress), Steve Lund (David Burton), Ali Kazmi (Internist), Sid-
ney Leeder (High School Girl), Marshall Williams (High School Guy),
Penny Eizenga (Pedestrian #1), Bonnie Black (Pedestrian #2)

Summary: The team is called in to investigate a series of deaths in a Pennsylvania
town where the victims suffered from massive organ shutdown.

A girl and her boyfriend run out onto a
football field and then go to the bleach-
ers. As they kiss, a noise echoes through
the bleachers. They ignore it but a man
staggers out, his face decaying. He falls
back, sobbing and the students recognize
him as Mr. Howard.

Rachel brings her new boyfriend Sam
to the apartment she shares with Nina.
He’s impressed at her ability to identify
all of the ingredients of the meal they had
and offers to whip up something with her.
They kiss but Rachel reacts badly and

asks Sam to go.
The next morning, Nina tries to talk about Sam but Rachel refuses to discuss it. Dr. Rosen

arrives with a package. Gary takes the package he has and discovers that it’s their badges show-
ing they’re members of the DCIS, the Defense Criminal Investigative Service. Rachel slips away
to make a call and Rosen inadvertently interrupts her. He figures that it’s about Sam and tries
to talk to her about it, but Rachel refuses to discuss it with anyone. Rosen then asks her to go
with the team to Fenton, Pennsylvania.

As they drive to Fenton, Rosen explains that there have been a series of deaths brought on
by acute organ failure. The CDC has been unable to determine the cause so Agent Sullivan is
sending in Rosen’s team. Rosen and Rachel arrive in Fenton and he admits that they’re broad-
ening the scope of their activities. Rachel enhances her smell and informs Rosen that she can
smell fear and that everyone in town is scared. They walk through the town and Rachel listens
in as the townspeople discuss various rumors of what is causing the deaths. Dr. Vanessa Calder
of the CDC meets them and explains that she stayed to handoff the reports to them as the CDC
withdraws. She explains that the damage in all three victims centered on the amygdala centers
of the brain and they were subject to extreme shock. Calder wishes them well and leaves.

Rosen and Rachel go to the sheriff’s department where Coach Kent Zelanski is complaining
to Sheriff Marty Handell. As Zelanski leaves, Handell says that there were four deaths, but the
fourth one was an unrelated car crash involving Chris Elkhart, a local teen. He admits that there
was no autopsy, but Rosen asks to see the body to be certain.
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They go to see Chris’ mother Jessica to ask permission to exhume her son’s body. Rachel
notices that Chris father is dead and Jessica explains that her husband passed away when Chris
died. He hung out with Jessica and they were very close. Rosen asks if anything odd happened
in Chris’ life before he died. He wasn’t big enough so Zelanski made him the equipment manager.
Jessica says that Zelanski is a thug and always yelled at Chris. Chris persisted, refusing to let
the team down. Rachel breaks into tears and then apologizes. She continues, telling Jessica that
Chris was lucky to have such a loving mother. She agrees to let them exhume the body. Outside,
Rosen asks if Rachel is okay with the case and he points out that she’s been particularly sensitive
since she moved out of her parents’ home. Rachel admits that her family won’t return her calls
and seeing Jessica and her suffering brought it home for her. They go to see Sheriff Handell
but get no response. Rachel smells decay and hears a single heart beating. They investigate and
Rosen steps on a piece of flesh. Handell grabs Rachel, vomiting on her, and Rosen pulls him off.
He tries to get through to Handell, who says that he should have listened and stopped it before
he dies.

The next day, Rachel leaves a message for her father while the rest of the team arrives and
meets with Rosen in the local diner. Rosen reports that he found high levels of cortisol in Han-
dell’s body. At high concentrates it can eat away the organs. The waitress comes over and Gary
overreacts, and she figures that the Federal government is involved because a serial killer is at
large. Rosen tries to reassure her and she leaves. Bill goes over the file on Coach Zelanski, noting
that he’s connected to all five victims. Rosen admits he’s not comfortable investigating and Bill
offers to take over.

The team goes to the Fenton high school and they split up to check things out. Gary focuses
on the transmissions to Zelanski while Cameron accompanies him. As the students stare, Gary
confirms that Zelanski sent emails to one of the victims’ son, David Burton. Bill and Nina go to
talk to the coach and Zelanski overreacts. He insists that his team gives people hope and snaps
at Bill. Nina uses her power to tell him to sit down, calm down, and answer their questions.

When the team gathers back, Bill tells the other that Zelanski is a jerk but he isn’t the
killer. There is one football player whose name keeps coming up for bullying and vandalism.
Gary wanders off, checking emails and realizing that everyone hates David Burton, the player
in question. He finds David beating up on a student and confronts him in his own unique way,
telling him what the other students have said about him in their emails. Cameron arrives and
easily takes out David and his fellow players. David runs off and Cameron trips him with a book.
Bill and the others arrive but discover that David is convulsing. Rosen confirms that he’s not
an Alpha, but another victim. They take David to the hospital while Gary tries to take his letter
jacket. Rosen calls Sullivan and asks her to prepare a MRI suite, and then tells the others to
check David’s activities that date.

At the sheriff’s office, the team is unable to find anything unusual with David’s activities that
day. However, Bill has checked the autopsy and confirmed that Chris Elkhart had no unusual
cortisol levels.

At the hospital, Gary arrives wearing David’s jacket. Nina objects, but Rosen arrives and
informs them that they have flushed David’s systems but his body is still generating cortisol.
Rosen realizes that David is in withdrawal but there are no foreign substances in his blood. He
realizes that all of the victims were addicted to a person, and they suffered lethal withdrawal.

Calder returns to the hospital to check on David. Rosen and Nina meet with her and watch
as she takes David’s hand. His condition stabilizes and Rosen has her release his hand. He gets
worse and Rosen realizes that holding his hand is causing him to generate oxytocin, a love-type
hormone. As Calder goes to get oxytocin, Rosen tells Nina that their Alpha created the bond and
then severed it.

Rachel goes to talk to Jessica and assures her that they are investigating. Unimpressed,
Jessica says that David and his friends beat up Chris and spread rumors on the Internet. He
never understood why they targeted him and idolized David and the others. She confirms that
Rachel won’t be meeting her friends for another 30-45 minutes and offers to make her a snack.
Rachel declines and Jessica admits that Rachel reminds her of her son. Upon reconsidering,
Rachel agrees to stay.

Cameron and Bill go to the site of Chris’ crash. There are no road conditions that could
account for the accident and the weather was fine on that day. Cameron analyzes the scene with
his hyperkinesis and realizes that it was no accident.
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The oxytocin treatment stabilizes David, and Rosen refuses to explain exactly what is causing
the addiction. After Calder leaves, David says that he needs to see a female and apologize. Rosen
tries to get him to explain who he’s talking about but David passes out again. Bill calls Rosen
and tells him that Chris crashed on purpose. Handell covered it up and also covered up David’s
bullying. All of the victims helped in the cover-up. They realize that Jessica is the Alpha and that
Rachel is with her.

Rachel talks to Jessica about how her parents think she’s a freak. She then explains that
she has enhanced senses but that her parents think she’s sick because she can’t handle any
extreme sensory input. Bill calls but Jessica tells Rachel that it can wait and hugs her. As she
does, Rachel glows and feels much better.

Bill and Cameron approach the Elkhart door and discover that the front door is unlocked.
There is no sign of Rachel or Mrs. Elkhart, and Rachel’s cell phone is on the end table. Mrs.
Elkhart is driving the blissed Rachel, who admits that she can’t trust Rosen. She admits that her
entire team is Alphas and Mrs. Elkhart says that she’ll need her help with one thing before she
can escape.

Rosen calls to have Gary track Jessica’s cell phone transmissions and warns Nina that Jessica
isn’t thinking rationally and is suffering from something similar to post-partum depression.

Jessica explains that she killed the victims because of what they did to Chris. She comforted
one of the bully’s fathers at the funeral and he admitted what his son did. Jessica soon realized
what she could do and blamed them for Chris’ death. Rachel tries to get through to her and
Jessica cuts off the oxytocin, causing withdrawal. She insists that if Rachel helps her, she’ll feel
better.

Gary directs Bill and Cameron along the roads to cut Jessica off. Bill finally loses control and
goes off the road, breaking the axle of his car. Bill floods his system with adrenalin and starts
running.

Rachel spots Bill and Jessica realizes that she’s seen something. She reapplies the oxytocin
and gets Rachel to tell her what she is seeing. Jessica pulls over and gets Rachel out of the car,
and then slaps her and says she wants her to die. Rachel collapses, moaning in pain, and Jessica
drives off. Bill finds her as she starts to deteriorate.

Jessica goes to see Zelanski, who is glad to see her and figures that he’ll feel better now that
she is there. She tells him that he and the others murdered Chris and now he’ll die alone.

Cameron and Rosen arrive and the doctor gives her an oxytocin injection. It doesn’t break
the pain cycle and Rosen has Rachel focus on his voice. He tells her that what she’s feeling is
not love and insists that Rachel is like a daughter to him and always will be. The others join in,
telling her that they love her. Rachel manages to generate the oxytocin on her own and recovers.

Zelanski begs for Jessica’s love, insisting that he need to make Chris tougher. Jessica is
disgusted hearing everyone blame her son and tells the coach to burn in hell. She walks outside
just as Rosen and the others arrive. The doctor goes inside while Rachel tells Jessica that Chris
wouldn’t have wanted her to hurt anyone as revenge for him.

The next day, Rosen tells Rachel that he informed the authorities that Jessica poisoned her
victims. Rachel realizes that Rosen is sending her to Binghamton and he worries that it may be
the portent of things to come. He asks Rachel how she is and she admits that she’s alive thanks
to him. Rosen tells her that it was her own ability that saved her life and says that she’s more
capable than she knows. He offers to take her home and Rachel agrees that home sounds good.
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Bill and Gary’s Excellent Adventure

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday August 15, 2011
Writer: Adam Levy
Director: Leslie Libman
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Alaina Huffman (Sara Nelson), Peter Wingfield (James Collier), Rachael
Crawford (Jeannie Harken), Melissa Hood (Lisa Collier), Conrad Pla
(Luke), Brandon McGibbon (Reg), Richard Quesnel (Detective Keller-
man), Paulino Nunes (Agent Lou Persky), John Cleland (Agent De-
rasmo), Michael Reventar (Alonso), Patrick Stevenson (Detective), Dar-
ryl Flatman (Traffic Cop), Yan Lecomte (Backpacker)

Summary: When a millionaire’s daughter is kidnapped by a drug cartel, Bill sees
a chance to get involved and guarantee his reinstatement with the FBI.
But to crack the case he’ll need Gary’s help. Meanwhile, Cameron gives
Nina some personal advice.

Lisa Collier and her bodyguard Sara Nel-
son are walking down the street when at-
tackers taser Sara unconscious and cap-
ture Lisa.

At home, Bill watches video of him-
self attacking Persky and almost killing
him when he uses his strength. Jean-
nie comes down and notes that Bill didn’t
come to bed that night. She wonders if he
wants to go back to the FBI, and Bill half-
heartedly says that he’s better off with
Rosen. Jeannie insists that he belongs in
the FBI and makes him some tea.

Later, Bill is chasing a man through the streets. Cameron and the others are caught in traffic.
Nina and Hicks finally get out and run while Gary coordinates by tracking the man and his
package on the city’s security cameras. The man goes into a park with no cameras and Rachel
is forced to park. She tells Gary that they have to run, but Gary refuses to budge. Rachel orders
him to stay in the car and takes off. Once she leaves, Gary gets in the front seat and pretends to
drive.

The group’s target runs through the park and Cameron catches up to the man. Nina tells him
to pass out and he does.

A police officer tells Gary to move. Gary refuses to talk to him and flashes his badge, but the
officer is unimpressed.

The others take a tablet from the man and download the information, and then Nina convinces
the man to forget them. When Rachel arrives, they realize that Gary is on his own and go back.
He’s nowhere to be seen and his phone is still in the car.

At the station, Gary waits and scans the frequencies. He sees a transmitted image of a woman,
gagged and crying.

Back at their office, Bill makes some calls and confirms that Gary is under arrest for illegal
parking and impersonating a Federal officer. Bill finds it amusing and then snaps at them as he
goes to get Gary, and Rachel and Rosen wonder why he’s in a particularly foul mood.
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At the station, Bill negotiates Gary’s release and hears from the detective in charge that they’re
dealing with a kidnapping by a drug cartel, Los Fundadores. They sent a transmission of Lisa to
prove that she is alive. Gary sees a photo of the girl and explains to Bill that he saw the signal
of her and traced it to a cell phone. Bill insists that they need to go and leaves, taking Gary with
him. They find a sewer grate at the address and Bill enhances his strength to lift it up. As he
prepares to go down, he explains to Gary that the FBI is going to kick him out. If he cracks the
kidnapping, they’ll have to take him back. Bill asks Gary to be his partner and Gary is thrilled to
help. The FBI agent digs through the muck and finds the discarded cell phone.

At the office, Nina finds Police Detective Kellerman waiting for her. He wants to ask her about
Timothy Darren and she starts to push him. Cameron comes in but Nina insists that she has it
under control and tells Kellerman to go on. Once he leaves, Cameron asks what’s going on and
Nina finally explains that Kellerman thinks that she killed someone.

Bill turns the phone over to Persky with the FBI investigation and asks what’s going on. Persky
explains that Collier had some factories in Los Fundadores territory. Collier demands a solution
and Bill offers to help, and Collier accepts their help over Persky’s objections. When Sara adds
her support to her boss, Persky caves and warns Bill not to screw it up.

The head of the kidnapping operation confronts Reg, the man that he told to get rid of the cell
phone, and warns him that the authorities have found it. Reg finally apologizes and goes to get
some air, saluting the leader and calling him ”Sergeant.” The sergeant, Luke, apologizes to Lisa,
saying that Reg has been through a lot.

As Rosen calls to reassure Gary’s mother that her son is fine, Rachel tells him that she hasn’t
had any help getting answers from the precinct house. They head for the station to get some
answers.

Bill talks to an ex-con, Alonso, and demands to know what he might have heard about Los
Fundadores. Gary reads Alonso’s texts and Bill grabs Alonso and lifts him into the air. Alonso
finally admits that he might know something.

Cameron comes by Nina’s apartment and apologies for intruding earlier. She gives him a tour
of her apartment.

Bill and Gary stop to food and Gary points out that according to Alonso, the cartel didn’t take
Lisa. Gary checks Persky’s cell phone and learns that the kidnappers want $10 million in nine
hours. They plan to call again in an hour to give Persky the location. The FBI can’t trace the cell,
so Bill wants Gary to trace the next call. However, Gary says that they need to go back to the
precinct house to use the cell tower there.

An hour later, Gary and Bill go to the roof of the precinct house and Gary sorts through
the signals. Bill promises to let Gary drive if he finds the phone, much to Gary’s surprise and
pleasure. He finds the kidnappers’ call but Bill tells him that he can’t drive until he has lessons.

Nina shows off her collection of Hollywood memorabilia and explains that she has a gift from
Bill Murray. She tells Cameron that before she met Rosen, she was using her powers on a tear.
When Cameron says that Rosen can help her with the police, Nina says that she can handle it.
However, when Cameron refuses to drop it, Nina finally explains that she dated Tim and finally
tried to break it off. They had an argument and she casually told him to kill himself, and he did.
Cameron suggests that she go to the police and tell them what really happened, but Nina points
out that no one would believe her. She thanks him for his advice and then kisses him.

Bill and Gary go to the bar where the call was made from. He points out the man, Reg, and
Reg runs for it. Bill tells Gary to stay put and then uses his abilities to break through a door and
go after Reg. Reg shoots back and Bill shoves Gary out of the way, bruising him. The police and
Persky arrive and the agent complains that Bill spooked the kidnappers. He figures that Bill is
trying to get back to the FBI, while Sara tells them that the kidnapper has raised the random
to $15 million. When Bill refuses to drop the matter, Persky has him arrested for obstruction of
justice. As the police take him away, Collier tells Bill that he’ll hold him responsible if anything
happens to Lisa.

Rachel comes in and finds Nina and Cameron on the couch, making out. She tries to apologize
and they insist that it’s fine, and Cameron says that he needs to go. As Rachel goes to her room,
Cameron says that he’ll see Nina at work the next day and tells her to think about what he said.

In a cell, Bill tells Gary that they screwed up, but Gary insists that they’re partners and they
both screwed up. He refuses to let Bill give in to depression and tells Gary that Rosen is there.
Once Rosen gets them out with Sullivan’s influence, he complains that Bill put the team at risk.
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Bill reminds Rosen that he agreed to help get him back into the FBI, and insists that they need
to find Lisa. Gary sides with Bill, who insists that the kidnappers are amateurs with a grudge
against Lisa.

Luke talks to someone on the phone and apologizes, and then shoots Reg for screwing up.
The next morning, Bill and Gary meet with the rest of the team. Bill thanks them for their

help while Gary intercepts the delivery instructions and learns that Persky and Sara are going to
make the drop.

At the station, Collier promises Sara that things will be different once they get Lisa back.
Gary accesses Sara’s GPS and learns that she’s going to the Bronx Zoo. Bill and Cameron

both realize that the Bronx Zoo is a poor spot to stage an exchange from the kidnapper’s point of
view.

Luke lays out a sheet of plastic sheeting and tells Lisa that it’s nothing personal, and that if
he lets her go then he’ll get caught. He offers to make her death painless if she’ll tell him what’s
next. Luke wants her to send him a message once she dies so that he knows there’s something
better. Lisa nods in agreement.

Bill goes over the map while Gary repeats a saying from his mother that it’s the journey, not
the destination. They realize the route will go through the area where the bar and the discarded
phone were, and Bill calls to get a list of lease agreements in the area. Rachel and Bill start
searching, and she uses her enhanced senses to smell blood. She also smells thermite on the
door and warns Cameron. He goes up the fire escape and enters the apartment through the
window. He slips momentarily but finally gets inside and defuses the thermite. They find Reg’s
corpse in the apartment and realize that the kidnappers left because they have someone on the
inside who tipped them off. Bill checks with Gary, who confirms that Persky is in the car making
the transfer.

Sara and Persky are driving to the drop-off and Sara asks if he is ever tempted. Persky says
that he’d never get away with it. Meanwhile, the team drives after the FBI team and Bill calls
Persky to tell him that someone is on the inside. Persky realizes that it’s Sara but she realizes
that Persky is on to him and tasers him unconscious and then shuts down the nav guide. The
team realizes that they’ve lost her.

Luke gets a text telling him that the plan is ready to go.
Gary tries to tap into the street cams without success and Bill has him ping Persky’s cell

phone. Cameron starts driving through the streets to home in on the cam. They arrive and Bill
confronts Sara. She claims that her car broke down and goes for her gun, but Cameron grabs
her and Nina uses her ability on the security chief.

A few minutes later, Sara arrives at Luke’s apartment and says they have to move the girl.
However, she has no idea what she’s doing. Bill breaks through the wall and grabs Luke, while
Cameron goes after Sara. She shoots at him but he dodges the bullets and knocks her out.
Collier is reunited with his daughter and thanks Bill and Gary for their help. Bill sends Gary to
the van and Collier offers to help Bill get back into the FBI. Bill says that he’ll consider it. Persky
reluctantly congratulates him and Bill apologizes for the incident. He tells them that they can
take credit for the collar. As Bill walks away, he tells Rosen that he’ll be staying with the team.

When Bill comes home, Jeannie asks if he had a bad night. Her husband tells her that the
FBI let him go and Jeannie wonders why he didn’t tell her. When Bill says that he didn’t want to
upset her, she says that it doesn’t matter as long as he’s happy where he’s working. Bill tells her
that he is now and Jeannie asks if there is anything else to know. He tells her that’s enough for
one night.

Nina tells Cameron that she talked to the police and Kellerman was investigating Tim’s in-
volvement with a financial scam, and she wasn’t under suspicion. Things grow awkward as they
admit they got caught up in the heat of the moment, but agree to have dinner later.

Bill takes Gary out driving and congratulates him on saving a woman’s life. Gary tells him
that he’s stalling and Bill finally lets him drive.
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Catch and Release

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday August 22, 2011
Writer: Michael Karnow
Director: Kevin Hooks
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Leigh Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Jorge Molina (Playboy), Summer Glau (Skylar Adams), Valerie Cruz
(Kathy Sullivan), Mahershalalhashbaz Ali (Nathan Cley), Jane Moffat
(Sandra Bell), Rachael Crawford (Jeannie Harken)

Summary: A young Alpha with the ability to create powerful inventions from com-
mon items goes missing, and Rosen and his team are called upon to
find her. . . and protect her. Meanwhile, Gary challenges his mother
and Bill contemplates fatherhood.

In Bushwick, New Jersey, a five-man
assault team approaches a warehouse
where a young woman named Skylar
Adams has a workshop. She spots them
on a flying insect-camera and gathers
some parts. When the team breaks in,
they notice Skylar on the rooftop across
the street. She yells at them to run and
then sets off an explosion to cover her es-
cape.

Sullivan goes over Rosen’s expenses at
his office and they share some carryout.
As they chat about how Sullivan grew up

overseas and ignored the map when hiking cross-country, Rosen admits that he may have mis-
judged her and that he’s happy to have done so.

The next morning at breakfast, Jeanie brings up the subject of wanting children. Bill objects
and she warns him that she doesn’t have forever.

As Rosen drives to work, Sandra calls and tells him that Gary is sick and can’t come in. Once
she hangs up, Sandra checks on her son, who is fine. He insists that he has to go to work but
Sandra tells him that he’s staying home.

At the office, Cameron is working on his toaster, much to Nina’s amusement. Rosen calls
Nina into his office and asks if she has something going on with Cameron. She assures him that
it’s nothing, much to Rosen’s satisfaction. He then gets a call from Sullivan, saying that Skylar
has gone missing. They go to her workshop and Nina explains that Skylar has the Alpha ability
to create inventions. Rachel examines the scene and confirms that five men broke in. Cameron
analyzes the scene and realizes that Skylar escaped, while Nina explains that Skylar was more
interested in things than people. Rachel finds a logo for Klauswerks on a customized piece of
equipment. They go to see the owner, Klaus, who refuses to help them find Skylar until Nina
uses her ability. The owner explains that Skylar came by the previous night and told him she
was going to see a buyer at a farmer’s market.

At the market, Skylar meets the buyer and sells him a compressed-sleep device. The as-
sault team arrives and Skylar runs for it. The Alpha team arrives and Rachel hears Skylar being
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chased. As they move into position, Skylar releases more of her bug-drones to attack her pur-
suers. One of them gets the drop on her just as Cameron arrives and throws a bottle to disarm
the man. Bill knocks him out and they get Skylar into Rosen’s van and drive off.

Back at the office, Rosen talks to Skylar, who reminds him that he promised to leave her
alone. Skylar explains that people get upset when she refuses to sell them things, and asks what
they want. Rosen figures that she’s talking to someone and knows that she’s holding something
back. Skylar wonders if Nina is going to push her and Rosen says that no one will hold her
against her will. When she asks if she can go, Rosen says that there’s a few things they need to
tend to.

Bill is getting pop and starts pounding on the machine. Cameron helps him and Bill asks
about his son Tyler and if he’s a normal kid. However, Bill refuses to say why he’s curious.

Sandra calls Gary to lunch, but he complains that he’s not at work. He figures that his mother
lied to him, and Sandra says that Rosen has lied to her and Gary isn’t working there anymore.
She has talked to Gary’s Uncle Alan, who has a data entry job for his nephew, but Gary refuses
and tells her to get out.

Skylar is working on her tablet when Nina comes in. They talk about the times they spent
together but Skylar wonders how long she’ll be there. Meanwhile, Sullivan meets with Rosen and
informs the doctor that Cley is going to take Skylar in. Meanwhile, Skylar sees them talking and
warns Nina that Rosen is part of the system and he’ll do what the government wants him to do.

Sullivan tells Rosen that Skylar will be placed in protective custody to make her gadgets for
the government, and she’ll be well- compensated. When Rosen points out that she was the one
who claimed she threw away the map, Sullivan says that was on vacation and this is work.

The assault team approaches the office building and Gary spots them as he monitors the
security cameras. He sends a text message to his teammate, who go on alert. As Sullivan calls
in her people, Cameron and Bill move to intercept the assault team. Before they can, Cley and
his men arrive. The intruders identify themselves as NSA. Meanwhile, Skylar uses a strobe-
disruption device to stun all of them and slips out. Gary, watching at home via the security
cameras, decides to sneak out against his mother’s wishes.

Rachel shuts down the device by shutting down all of her sensors, and confirms that it was
built using items from around the office. Nina sympathizes with her friend and blames Rosen for
turning her in. Rosen warns that it’s not up to them but Nina insists that they’re just government
flunkies and walks away.

Gary catches a taxi to the office.
Cley reports that Skylar was working for the NSA on code-breaking, but was also secretly

contacting someone named Z. The NSA was unable to break the code, and they believe that
Skylar was selling information to a foreign power. Cley believes that she was talking to an Alpha,
possibly someone in Red Flag. Rosen isn’t convinced and Cley tells him to get out of the way so
he can handle it himself.

Nina returns to her apartment and finds Skylar there, building a new gadget. However, Skylar
admits that she needs more from Nina than parts.

As Rachel analyzes one of Skylar’s bug-drones, she informs the others that it’s sending a
signal. They wonder where Gary is. Bill reports that they’ve spotted the car that Skylar hotwired
near Nina’s apartment.

Nina drives Skylar somewhere, and the girl tells Nina that she needs to toss her cell phone
away so they can’t track her. Once Nina does, Skylar says that she needs to go kill Bob. The go
to a NSA facility and Skylar explains that ”Bob” is the device being used to track her. They run
into a security guard who holds them at gunpoint.

The team goes to Nina’s apartment and confirms that Nina left with Skylar.
Nina controls the guard and has him take them to the vault containing Bob: a tracking device

that taps into satellite technology and locate anyone on Earth using their unique bio-electric
signature. She built it and the NSA took control of it. Skylar removes the processor and inserts
an explosive device on a ten-minute countdown, and the two women quickly leave.

The cab driver drops off Gary at the office and he discovers that everyone has left. He finds
Skylar’s bug-drone, locks onto its signal, and has the confused cab driver to ”follow the bug.”

The Alpha team arrives at NSA headquarters and discovers that Skylar has destroyed Bob.
Meanwhile, Rosen calls Sandra and learns that Gary has left. Cley arrives and explains what Bob
did. Rachel goes through Skylar’s notes and they realize that she took the processor with it. Cley
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figures that Skylar is planning something with her contact and Rosen concedes that Cley must
be right.

In Waterville, Maine, Skylar and Nina stop for gas and supplies. Nina demands answers and
starts to push Skylar, but she has modified contact lenses that protect her from Nina’s ability.
Gary arrives and explains how he got there, and that he called Rosen. Skylar realizes that it’s not
working and tosses out an electronic stunning device. The others catch up to them and make
sure they’re okay, and Rosen warns Nina that Skylar could be involved with Red Flag. He warns
her that running away with Skylar isn’t a way to reclaim her old independent identity, but Nina
insists that she helped Skylar because they promised they would protect her. Gary discovers that
Skylar has cut the signal to the bug-drone, but they realize that she has stolen a local car and
Rachel tracks the bio- diesel scent.

Skylar goes to a farmhouse and meets with a man, Wesley, who says that Z is upstairs.
Meanwhile the team arrives and surrounds the building. Nina wants to talk to Skylar, but Bill
advises against it. Rosen calls in Cley while Gary ties into the signals for the bug-drones. He
directs Cameron past the drones so he can enter the second story of the house. However, Wesley
comes up behind Gary and captures him at gunpoint. Bill disarms the man and Nina uses her
power to make him talk.

Cameron enters an upstairs room and finds a young girl, Zoe. She asks if Cameron is there for
her mommy. The room is covered with the girl’s mathematical formula. The team comes in and
meets with Skylar, who explains that Zoe has been doing advanced math since she was three.
She believed that the NSA would take the girl into custody so gave her to her Uncle Wesley. Rosen
realizes that Zoe is a second-generation Alpha.

Later, Rosen goes outside and ignores a call from Sullivan. Nina asks him who the government
will take next but Rosen warns her that life doesn’t go the way they want.

Cley and his team arrives and Rosen tells him that Skylar has escaped. He claims that Skylar
put together a device to let her escape, but Cley doesn’t believe him.

Gary returns home and Sandra embraces him. Her son insists that he works for Rosen and
that the team looks after him. Gary reminds her that she wanted him to be happy, and that he
is happy working with the team.

Sullivan meets with Rosen and goes over his report, and he insists that it’s all true. She isn’t
convinced and warns that Cley is raising hell at the DoD. Rosen informs her that his team comes
first and Sullivan points out that he’s making her job to protect the team that much harder.

Rosen and Nina meet with Skylar and Zoe, and tells Skylar that the government didn’t believe
his story. She gives them a device for Gary that will let him hack signals and contact her. Rosen
reminds her of their agreement, and Skylar turns over the processor. He believes that he could
modify it to find every Alpha on the planet, and Skylar wonders if he’d turn them over to the
government. In response, Rosen smashes the device and throws it in the garbage.

The next day at the office, the team receives a new espresso machine from Skylar to replace
the one she took. Cameron tries to figure it out and Nina steps in to activate it by voice.

Bill comes home and finds his wife opening a package he received about how to be a father.
He warns her that he’s not promising anything.

Skylar and Zoe drive away as one of her bug-drones scouts ahead.
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A Short Time in Paradise

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday August 29, 2011
Writer: Michael Chamoy
Director: John Showalter (I)
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Daniel Kash (Rachel’s Dad), Garret Dillahunt (Jonas)
Summary: Cameron and Nina fall under the influence of a cult leader who can

make his followers see visions of Heaven. . . and feel the suffering of
Hell.

Tennessee, 1980
At a church, the congregation sings as

a young boy, Jason Englin, attempts to
overturn a can of gasoline. His father, the
preacher, helps him and tells him not to
be afraid because they’ll be together in
love. Some of the congregation members
are lying on the floor, sick. The gasoline
spills and Jason’s father ignites the gas.
However, he watches as Jason backs out
of the church and then calls on him to
come back. The boy runs away as every-
one in the church dies in agony.

The Present
Cameron and Nina arrive at the office with boxes of Nina’s old possessions. Rosen has sug-

gested she give away everything that she’s accumulated over the years by pushing people.
Cameron gets a call from his ex-wife and takes the call privately. Meanwhile, Bill tells Rosen
that they should take a seminar on police tactics. The doctor is less than thrilled and insists
that he’s deliberately chosen not to fire a gun. Bill tells him that he may have to make some new
choices.

Rosen goes into the kitchen area and finds Cameron going through Nina’s boxes. He explains
that Patti has custody of Tyler after his DUIs came out in court, and now she’s moving back
to Nevada. Cameron finds a bottle of whiskey and contemplates it for a moment, and then tells
Rosen that he’s going to his AA group.

Gary is checking out Nina’s foot massager when Rachel comes in and asks where Cameron
is. He was supposed to be her date to her sister’s engagement party so that her parents wouldn’t
try to set her up on blind dates. Rachel doesn’t want to take Bill or Rosen because they’re too
old, and she and Nina look over at Gary.

At the AA meeting, the leader, Gil, asks Cameron to speak. However, an adult Jonas stands
up and says that he’s not an alcoholic, but he can help them with their pain. Cameron starts to
usher him out and Jonas speaks in tongues. A glowing pair of wings appears on his shoulders
and all of the members pass out,

Rachel and Gary arrive at the party and she hears everyone talking about her and her new
date. Rachel’s father comes over and Gary notices that he’s sick. Her father insists that he’s fine,
but Rachel sees something with her enhanced smell. Her parents object to her using her ability,
but Gary defends her and says that Rachel is special. When Rachel insists that her father see a
doctor, he snaps at her and her mother tells her not to ruin her sister’s day.
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Cameron arrives at Nina’s apartment at 7 a.m. and tells her that he’s finally found something
that has changed his life, something amazing. He invites Nina to come with him and she reluc-
tantly agrees. They drive to an estate in Connecticut where the people from the AA meeting are
working. Cameron explains that his new friend Jonas is preparing to speak at a huge gather-
ing the coming weekend. When Nina realizes that Jonas influenced Cameron, she figures that
he’s an Alpha. Nina tries to leave but Jonas and his men come up. She tries to push him into
explaining but he’s immune to her power. Jonas raises his hand and speaks in tongue, and is
surrounded by a golden light.

Gary arrives at the office and asks Rachel if her father went to the hospital. She admits that
he ignored her and Gary tells her that she has to do what he’s doing and keep telling people the
truth until they listen. Rachel agrees to do it.

Cameron and Nina are working together in the estate gardens with the other AA members. The
couple goes into the woods and makes love. Meanwhile, Gil collapses in the garden, clutching
at his chest. Cameron and Nina return and Jonas explains that the darkness overwhelms his
followers. They suggest that they bring in Rosen, who understands Alphas.

That night, Rosen drives to the estate. There is no one to greet him so he goes inside and finds
a boy, Teddy, drawing pictures. Teddy calls Jonas ”Father” and says that he’s everyone’s father.
The boy’s father was burned when he got sick. Jonas comes in and explains that they practice
cremation. He sends Teddy to his friends and takes Rosen to see his patients. A dozen of Jonas’
followers are bedridden, some of them for over a week. One woman is dead. Jonas explains that
the darkness of the world overwhelms them despite his best efforts to show them the light of
truth and interconnectedness. Rosen realizes that he’s an Alpha and Jonas offers to make him
happy and content. The doctor refuses and asks to see Cameron and Nina. Jonas takes them to
a bedroom where the couple is naked in bed together. He leaves them alone and the couple tries
to explain that Jonas reveals the light that shows how all people are connected. Rosen wants
them to come back to the office but they say they’ve found peace.

Rosen tries to call out and Jonas tells him that his people have disabled the only cellular tower
for miles. The doctor explains that his new patients are suffering from encephalitis lethargica,
leaving them speechless and passive. Rosen tries to describe it in neurological terms but Jonas
says that it can’t be quantified and he can only show the doctor. In response, Rosen says that
he can treat his patients with L-Dopa, but Jonas insists that he let one of his people get the
prescription.

Rachel goes to see her father at his store and reminds him that he used to be a doctor. He
insists that he’s fine but Rachel refuses to let the matter drop. She tells him that he has cancer
in his throat and he’ll die if he doesn’t do something soon. When Rachel threatens to bring in her
mother, her father agrees to get the tests.

Rosen tries to drive away from the estate but discovers that Jonas’ followers have tampered
with his car. Nina and the others come out and escort him to Jonas, who is cremating the dead
woman’s body and sending her to the Great Light. Rosen, watching, insists that she didn’t have
to die, but Jonas says that people have died in the past because of his ability and it’s up to Rosen
to save them.

The next morning, Rachel arrives at the office and confirms by phone that her father went in
for the tests. Bill wonders where the others are and Gary notes that Rosen didn’t pick him up.
Nina hasn’t returned any of Rachel’s texts, and Gary confirms that their three friends are out of
cellular range. He and Rachel go to check Rosen’s computer.

Rosen tries to treat the patients and Jonas insists that it’s what’s meant to be. The doctor
gets Jonas to explain that he first gifted his father with his ability, and the entire congregation
was grateful for the visions of the light. However, when they became ill, Jonas’ father blamed
the boy and tried to ”save” everyone by purifying the congregation with fire. Gil responds to the
treatment and starts eating, and explains that he got a drug rush from Jonas’ visions. Jonas is
disappointed that Gil didn’t find insight in the light, while Rosen confirms that Gil no longer has
a connection to Jonas.

Rachel and Gary check Rosen’s Google searches and discover that he went to the estate of a
man who gifted his home to Jonas.

Rosen returns to the ward and discovers that the L-Dopa is gone. He goes to see Jonas,
who explains that the ”poison” robbed Gil of his gift. Rosen points out that he plans to expose
thousands to his ability at the meeting, and Jonas insists that he can change the broken world.
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The doctor insists that making people die won’t fix anything and asks for the L-Dopa back. Jonas
tells him that he can’t feel his own gift and is trapped in the darkness. He locks the L-Dopa away
and tells Rosen to find a way to give his people paradise and life or they’ll all die.

Bill, Rachel, and Gary drive to the estate but Rachel can’t identify their friends’ heartbeats
from that distance. She does find a window for Bill to go in, and he insists that he’ll do it alone.
If he isn’t back in 20 minutes, Bill tells them to call in a tactical squad and warn them that it’s
a hostage situation. Bill gets into the house and easily finds Rosen, but Nina uses her ability to
force him to come with her to Jonas.

When Bill doesn’t return, Rachel calls in Tactical. Gary figures that Bill is in trouble but
Rachel tells him to stay put.

Once Jonas subverts Bill, the ex-FBI agent tells him that a tac squad is on the way and he
can’t call them off. Jonas goes to pray and Bill admits to his friends that he really needed to feel
the light.

Jonas goes to the ward and blames Rosen for bringing violence to the estate. The doctor asks
him for more time but Jonas accuses him of bringing in the government thugs. He refuses to let
anyone stand in the way of bringing his message to the world and doesn’t believe that anyone
will listen to him without his ability. Jonas realizes that he would rather die in the flames then
give into the darkness.

The Alpha’s followers start spreading gas throughout the estate. When Bill tries to use his
ability, he discovers that he’s too passive to be able to amp up. Cameron is the next to collapse
and Jonas says that they’ve all been called. Meanwhile, Rosen breaks into Jonas’ desk and gets
the L-Dopa syringes. He also finds Jonas’ hidden gun.

Jonas and his followers gather in the cremation room and he tells his people that he healed
them with the light, the connection to something greater than themselves. Rosen sneaks in and
injects Cameron with the L-Dopa. He then gives an injection to Nina before she can react, but
Jonas spots him. Rosen begs him to put down the torch while Nina gives Bill an injection. Jonas
activates his ability and Rosen has no choice but to shoot him.

Nina, Bill, and Cameron get the others out while Rosen stares at the gun in horror. Bill finally
gets him out and they watch as the estate burns down. The followers respond to the L-Dopa and
Rachel tells the stunned Rosen that they can go.

Back in New York, Rachel meets with her father. He tells her that the doctors were able to
treat him for stage 1 cancer because they caught it early thanks to Rachel. Her father tells her a
miracle and then asks Rachel to start treating the family.

Cameron and Nina meet in the kitchen and they agree not to talk about their recent relation-
ship in group therapy. He says that they can pretend it never happened and he’ll talk about how
he’s lost his son Tyler.

Rosen looks at Bill’s manuals and tells him that he killed a man. Bill insists that he saved a
bunch of people and that’s what he has to hold on. When Rosen asks how the light felt, Bill says
that he never felt better but he still can’t amp up. Rosen figures that the DoD will cover things
up and he’ll never pay the price for murder, but Bill says that he already is paying.
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Blind Spot

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday September 12, 2011
Writer: Ira Steven Behr, Robert Hewitt Wolfe
Director: Michael W. Watkins
Show Stars: Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Rebecca Mader (Griffin), Brent Spiner (Dr. Kern)
Summary: After capturing an Alpha working as an obstetrician, the team takes on

an Alpha with the ability to remain unseen and undetectable against
any opponent.

Nina and Cameron go undercover as a
couple to capture an obstetrician who is
apparently working with Red Flag. Rosen
and Bill get word and go to a new contain-
ment chamber that they’ve added capable
of suppressing most Alpha abilities. The
whole office is also equipped with an au-
tomatic lockdown. Rosen is reluctant to
have things go beyond his initial vision,
but Bill warns him that they’re now gov-
ernment assets. Bill admits that he’s lost
his ability since his run-in with Joshua
Englin and he’s fine with that, but Rosen

warns that it’s not him and that the DoD may consider letting him go if he no longer has his Alpha
ability. Gary comes in and complains that some of his recommendations, including automated
gas turrets, and Bill gently points out that those things don’t exist. His co-worker complains that
Bill isn’t like he was and wonders why he’s there if he isn’t an Alpha.

Rachel calls in on the elevator and informs the others that Nina and Cameron are bringing
in the obstetrician, a bound and gagged Dr. Kern. Nina tells them that Kern was immune to
her ability and they take him to the containment chamber... unaware that an unseen force has
emerged from the elevator behind them.

As Rosen prepares to place Kern in the MRI scanner, he suggests to Bill that he can come up
with a mixture of adrenaline and steroid that will restore his abilities. Bill says that he doesn’t
need it. Meanwhile, Nina files a report and Cameron brings her coffee. They wonder what tipped
Kern off and Cameron figures that Kern could tell they weren’t a happy couple. Nina says that
it’s a bad idea for the two of them to be romantically involved, and Cameron is unhappy that she
told Rosen. She finally tells Cameron that Rosen thinks Cameron would be bad for her, and Nina
admits that she’s screwed up every relationship they’ve ever had. Bill interrupts to tell them that
Rosen has found something and called a meeting. As they leave, the same unseen forces starts
typing on Nina’s laptop computer.

Rosen tells the team that the MRI revealed that Kern has no optic nerves even though his
eyes function normally. Cameron points out that Kern could see perfectly well and tried to avoid
him at his office. Gary complains that someone took his phone and Rachel finds it nearby.
He complains that someone opened the data files on it. Rosen tells everyone not to touch it and
explains that the DoD believes Kern was doing research for Red Flag. Cameron and Nina brought
everything from Kern’s office back and Rachel and Gary go to work examining it.
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Kern wakes up in the containment chamber.
As Rachel examines the urine samples from Kern’s office, she thinks she’s hears something

outside in the office. She goes to investigate but can’t find anything despite her enhanced senses.
The best she can do is pick up a heartbeat. When Gary comes over, he tells her that she inter-
rupted him and that he’s been in his office. As Rachel goes to her office, something scratches the
window glass behind her.

Rosen and Bill go to see Kern and ungag him. He demands a lawyer and they tell him that
he’s being held as a member of a terrorist group. Kern claims to have no idea what Red Flag
is. Rosen has Bill stand Kern up facing the opposite wall and then throws a mug at him. Kern
flinches and Rosen explains that he has echolocation and uses sonar to ”see.” They lock him
back up and Kern warns them that it won’t end well.

Bill goes back to his office and gives Clay a status report. Clay says that he’ll be there in two
hours. Once Bill hangs up, he thinks he hears something but dismisses it as imagination.

Cameron comes to see Rosen and asks him to give them a little space. The doctor refuses,
saying that he has a responsibility as their psychiatrist and employer. Rachel comes in and
says that she found pregnancy vitamins and confirmed they contain active human DNA. Rosen
explains that they would cause mutations and birth defects. Before he can pursue the matter,
Rachel smells blood from the hallway. They go out and develop that Nina is having a nosebleed.

Rosen goes to see Kern, who uses his echolocation to do an ultrasound and spot a mitral
valve prolapse. Impressed, Rosen enters the chamber as Kern says that he took an oath to do no
harm. Rosen asks about the vitamins and Kern says that he cares about the future. He reminds
him of Renestrin, the drug that interferes with the fetal development of Alphas, and explains
that his vitamins are a counteragent. Rosen wonders who will be distributing the vitamins and
Kern refuses to answer his question. He says that government agents will take him away and
that would be a mistake, and that the Red Flag people who tried to assassinate Rosen were a
fringe element. Rosen doesn’t believe it but Kern says that he believes in a future where humans
and Alphas work together. When Rosen notes that he isn’t an Alpha, Kern says he sees a time
when the unenhanced could join their cause. Kern refuses to cooperate and says that he won’t
be going to Binghamton.

Rachel hears someone outside her office and goes to investigate. She hears the same heartbeat
from earlier and sees faint footprints in the carpet. Following the trail to the elevator, Rachel goes
inside, discovers that the camera lens has been cracked, and someone grabs her.

Bill and Cameron contemplate Kern and try to figure out how to break him. They realize that
someone has tapped into the computers and locked them out. Nina asks if they’ve seen Rachel
and reports that she’s disappeared. As they call out for her, Gary complains that something has
glitched the monitors. They bring up the security footage and track Rachel to the elevator where
she disappears off the cameras. They find blood and drag marks, and Cameron notices a crack
in a ceiling supports.

Rosen goes to Kern and demands answers. Kern has no idea what he’s talking about and tells
Rosen that there are eight heartbeats in the building, the same that have always been there.
Rosen points out that there are only six of them plus Kern, and Kern asks if things have gone
missing. He then warns Rosen that they have an unwelcome guest and asks to be released so he
can help them. If Rosen ignores him, things will get worse.

Rachel is tied up and gagged and left unconscious in an air vent.
The team gather in the briefing room and watch Kern yell at them to release him. Rosen figures

that Kern is telling the truth about an intruder and Bill talks about how he thought he saw
someone earlier. The doctor picks up on that and says that they have an unconscious sense of
people around them. Rosen demonstrates the concept of the human blind spot and suggests that
the intruder has an ability to insert herself into everyone’s blind spot simultaneously, effectively
becoming invisible. When Nina points out that there are cameras, Gary says that someone has
tampered with the cameras. However, he tunes into a camera across the street and shows them
the image on the screen. It reveals a woman in the room with them. Cameron tries to hit her
without success and runs out into the hallway, and the woman stabs him before fading away
again. The alarms go off and the building goes into lockdown, closing the blast door.

Bill confirms that the intruder has locked them out of the system. Gary panics and tries to
break the safety-glass windows, and Rosen calms him down. Meanwhile, Nina treats Cameron’s
wound and insists that she’s not good for him, and Cameron says he doesn’t care.
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Bill discovers that his gun is gone at the same time that Gary realizes the woman took his
phone. They hear gunshots and run to the containment chamber. The intruder tried to shoot
through the glass without success. Kern says that the intruder tried to kill him, but Rosen and
Bill don’t believe him. The obstetrician explains that the intruder is named Griffin, and that
Red Flag considers her an unsanctioned variable. Griffin is a mercenary and believes in nothing
except money. Kern offers to use his ability to find Griffin and Rachel, but Bill refuses to let him
loose. Rosen agrees and leaves with Bill.

Gary is unable to override the systems and get the blast door open. Meanwhile, Cameron’s
wound starts bleeding again.

Rachel wakes up and tries to free herself.
Rosen prepares the steroid/adrenaline shot to give Bill so he can use his enhanced strength

to get the blast door open. Once he injects it into Bill, they go to the door but Bill is unable
to amp his strength. Rosen wonders if he wants to become angry and Bill clearly isn’t. Rosen
says that they need to on the offensive and starts spraying condiments on the walls to create
abstract patterns and make it harder for Griffin to find the blind spot. He has Cameron shoot
a fire extinguisher and Bill spread creamer powder on the floor, while Gary sits in the middle of
the room with his computer and ties into the cameras.

They see Griffin run into the MRI room and go after her, but Griffin accesses the computer
and locks everyone in except Gary. They yell at Gary to lock himself away, but Gary takes out
his badge and demands that Griffin stop hiding. Griffin closes in on him with a knife, but Rachel
shows up and clubs the mercenary unconscious with Gary’s laptop.

The team tapes Griffin to a chair and demand answers. She suggests that they release her so
she can take Kern with her and let them live. When Rosen points out that Kern wants them to
release him, Griffin points out the growing number of cracks in the walls and explains that Kern
is slowly using his sonic abilities to bring down the building and escape. She refuses to say who
she works for and explains that she already has Kern’s research. She wants to take Kern out so
she can collect her bonus fee and they all win. Cameron’s wound bleeds again and they take him
to the lab. Rosen realizes that the vibrations are reopening the wound as well as causing Nina’s
nosebleed earlier. Nina looks concerned and Cameron tells her not to let Rosen know that she
cares about him. A new crack spreads across the wall as the vibrations get wrong.

Rosen goes to see Kern, who defends himself and says that he wanted to bring more Alphas
into the world. As the vibrations increase, Rosen gives Bill ether to knock Kern unconscious.
However, the reverb effect has superheated the chamber door and Bill can’t get in. Before they
can come up with another option, Kern superheats the links on handcuffs and breaks them, and
then shatters the chamber’s bulletproof window. Glass and debris fly everywhere, knocking out
the team.

Bill wakes up first and gets Rachel to safety with Gary, who is hiding under a desk. He tells
Nina to get Cameron to the blast door before he bleeds out, and then goes after Rosen.

Kern is torturing Griffin to get her to reveal who hired her. Bill arrives and Kern blasts him
back, and then blasts down Griffin as she rips free of the tape. Bill gets angry enough to amp up
his strength and approach Kern, but Griffin grabs a piece of glass and stabs Kern in the neck.
She reluctantly thanks Bill for his help and suggest that he go into business for himself. Bill
refuses and Griffin repays her debt by telling him a name: Stanton Parish. She then walks away
and disappears before Bill can stop her.

The next day, the team cleans up and Bill gives Rosen the name. Bill then teases Gary, who
complains that he’s annoying now that he’s back to being the old Bill. Bill says that he’s glad he
is.

Cameron goes to see Nina and accuses her of liking him. She insists that she would have been
concerned for anyone who was wounded, and Cameron simply kisses her.

Rachel and Rosen considered the contamination chamber and admit that keeping a prisoner
in their office was a bad idea. He thanks her for saving all of them, and they figure that Griffin
delivered Kern’s data to her employers. Rachel figures that things aren’t going to get any easier
and Rosen just walks away.
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The Unusual Suspects

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday September 19, 2011
Writer: Marc Bernardin
Director: J. Miller Tobin
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Mahershalalhashbaz Ali (Nathan Cley), Tom Barnett (Eric Letrobe)
Summary: Nathan Cley captures the entire team and takes them to Binghamton,

and informs them that one of their members is a traitor. Now the team
must determine which one of them is a mole once they find a way to
escape.

At an isolated dock, a young Alpha man
approaches an old man with a cane. The
old man’s visitor isn’t who he expected,
and the Alpha admits he isn’t with the
Committee. When the old man identi-
fies him as an Alpha and notes that
some mistakes never go away, the Alpha
touches him and causes his flesh to rot
away in a matter of seconds. He then says
that some mistakes do go away.

Rosen picks up Gary at his home de-
spite the fact that it’s the boy’s day off,
and says that he needs him on a case. As

they start to leave, DoD agents pull up and tranq both of them.
As Bill arrives in the parking lot outside the office, he has a momentary chest pain. Several

DoD agents come up and Bill assumes that they’re on a case until they dart him. Bill amps up
his system to resist the drugs but they hit him with more darts until he collapses.

Inside, Cameron and Nina are discussing sad movies when they hear Rachel scream in the
hallway. They discover that she’s unconscious and the DoD agents tranq Nina. Cameron man-
ages to hold them off for a few seconds but they eventually surround him and knock him out as
well.

The team wakes up in separate white cells, each one equipped with a bed, a toilet, and an
intercom. Each cell has been proofed against their abilities. Nathan Cley talks over the intercom
and informs them that he’s brought them there to figure out which one is a traitor. Guards finally
take Rosen to see Cley, who tells him that Sullivan has authorized their transfer to Binghamton,
although he gave the order to tranq them. Cley tells Rosen that three men have been killed:
scientists who worked for MK Alpha, the Cold War Alpha development program. All three died
24 hours ago by an Alpha capable of inflicting quick-onset necrosis. The Alpha responsible is a
Red Flag assassin, and Rosen has all of the information on file concerning the three scientists.
Someone called each scientist and arranged for a meeting, using Rosen’s phone and giving the
proper signs and countersigns.

As Cley talks, an Alpha named Eric Letrobe watches the conversation on the monitors. Cley
figures that the simplest explanation is best and that the evidence indicates that Rosen or some-
one on his team is a mole. Eric is able to measure the micro-expressions in Rosen’s face and
tells Cley via earbud that Rosen is being evasive and contemptuous. They call in Cameron, who
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says he doesn’t see the point in killing three old men. He concedes that he’s susceptible to mind
control and could still be under Red Flag’s control.

Cley calls in Nina next and wears glasses to prevent her from making eye contact and pushing
him. He reads Rosen’s report says that she’s immature and unable to reach her full potential,
and Nina admits that she used to be a thief and a con artist. Cley knows what she did to help
Skylar and Nina insists that she did the right thing. Next, Cley interviews Gary who admits that
he talks regularly with Anna, the leader of the Red Flag. Gary insists that he doesn’t talk to
Anna about work and that she didn’t hurt anyone and that Red Flag only hurts people to protect
Alphas. He points out that Cley hurt him, while Eric warns Cley that he can’t get a fix on Gary’s
facial patterns.

When Bill is brought in, Cley claims that he believes Bill is innocent and appeals to him as
a fellow investigator. Bill warns Cley that he’s driving his team members to go to the other side,
and Cley says that they’re planning a major move against Red Flag. He asks Bill who his top
suspect is. Rachel is brought in and rambles on about how they all say bad things about the
government. She explains that they all worry that DoD agents will sweep in arrest them. Eric
tells Cley to ask if Rachel has a boyfriend and goes to the one-way mirror. Rachel hears him and
Eric reintroduces himself. She knows him from when they brought him to Binghamton, and Eric
asks her out on a date once she’s released. Rachel is more interested in getting out and warns
Cley that he’s turning friends into enemies.

Once he’s interviewed everyone, Cley talks to Eric who admits that he can’t identify the mole.
Cley changes the plan and has everyone brought into a central room. Rosen figures that Cley has
brought them all together to see who breaks. Gary is sure that no one has read the computer
files except the team, and admits that he talks to Anna about non-work stuff. Bill explains that
Cley wants to see if they can figure it out. When Cameron wonders what happens if they don’t,
Cley comes on and says they’ll be sent to Building 7, where the worst Alphas are sent and never
come out.

Rachel panics and Bill starts to snap at the others. Nina asks if Cley’s tactic can work and
Bill says that the calm guy is the one who is usually guilty while the other ones sweat. They all
look at Cameron, and Gary figures that he, Rachel, and Bill are too agitated to be guilty. Rachel
tells them about Eric and Nina tells Cameron about what Eric can do. Cameron yells to Eric and
asks if he has a comfy life.

Rosen suddenly clutches at his back and everyone gathers around him. He traces the words
”door code” on the table top fingertip where Rachel can see them with her enhanced vision.
Cley sends in a doctor to treat Rosen and guards to take the others back to their cells. Bill
amps himself up and refuses to enter his cell, and resists the guards’ tasers. Rachel uses her
enhanced hearing to detect the door code as the guard uses it. Cameron takes out his guard and
frees Rachel and the others, and then helps Bill. Cley realizes that they’ve escaped and orders
lockdown. Bill and Cameron use the tranq guns to knock out the remaining guards, rescue
Rosen, and get outside. As they head for the fence, a sniper draws a bead on them and asks
Cley if he should shoot. Cley tells him to let them go so that they don’t lose five assets to get one
traitor.

The team steals a car and goes to an abandoned warehouse in an industrial park that Bill
knows is safe. They consider their options and Bill says that they’re not going anywhere until they
figure out who the traitor is. Nina points out that the three scientists conducted experiments on
Alphas, and everyone but Cameron admits that they read the files on the server. Rachel suggests
that Nina push everyone, but Gary reminds them that she can’t push him or herself, and Bill
and Rosen could do so as well. Rosen’s back still hurt but he assures them that he can treat it
given time. Gary suggests that he call Anna and ask her who the traitor is, but they say it’s a
bad idea. Bill wants to break down everyone’s location for the last few days, but Rosen says it’s
not necessary because he knows who the traitor is.

Cley is driving with Eric and gets a message saying that the team has gone to ground in
Scranton.

Rosen tries to decide how to handle the situation and hopes that the traitor will confess on
their own. Gary tells them that he’s intercept a signal to Cley and the DoD agent will be there in
20 minutes. Rosen asks the traitor to step forward and convince him that they’re redeemable so
he can protect them. Otherwise he’ll turn them over to Cley himself.

Cley and his men arrive at the industrial park but are unable to get a clear fix on the team.
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They start searching and Cley takes Eric with him. he admits that working with Rosen’s team
was supposed to be a cushy job that would get him a promotion to Washington, but it hasn’t
worked out that way.

Rosen doesn’t say anything and Cameron figures that he’s bluffing. However, Rosen then
tells the group that it’s Cameron, and that Gary has confirmed that Cameron has been placing
secret deposits into his bank account. Cameron says that it’s for his kid but the others don’t
believe him. When Rosen says that he should have sent him to Binghamton from the beginning,
Cameron punches him in the face. Bill amps up and attacks Cameron, while Gary crouches down
and covers his ears. Rosen spits out some blood from the punch and watches with the others
as Bill gets the upper hand. Before he can smash Bill with a brick, Cley and his team break in
through the wall. In the confusion, Rosen grabs Gary and gets him out to the cars. They drive
away, ignoring Eric.

Inside the warehouse, Rachel sees the blood and tells the others that ”Rosen” is an imposter
and that he was the traitor all along. Everyone goes outside and realizes that the imposter has
escaped with Gary.

Rosen wakes up in a room and sees photos of the entire team on the wall, including facial
maps of himself. There are several vials and syringes on the table next to the bed. When Rosen
hears someone coming, he grabs a syringe and roll over, feigning unconsciousness. The Red Flag
assassin comes in and gets a text message from his employer, Creighton, to dispose of Rosen. As
he touches him and starts causing necrosis, Rosen stabs him with the syringe and knocks him
out. The doctor runs outside and discovers he’s been held in a building across the street from
the office.

The Alpha imposter, Creighton, brings Gary to the office and tells him that he has to destroy
the MK files and that Gary is the only one who can do it. As they go to Rosen’s office, Creighton
throws up and is clearly in great pain. He has Gary start deleting the files but the real Rosen
arrives. Gary is confused until Creighton’s face starts to shifts as the morphogene loses control
due to the pain. When Creighton threatens Gary, Gary points out that if he kills him then he
can’t destroy the files. He says that Creighton killed the three MK Alpha scientists, and Rosen
realizes that they were the last three members of the program. Rosen wonders what is in the files
and goes for the computer, and Creighton tackles him.

The others arrive and Gary comes out and tells them that Rosen has a gun. Rachel realizes
that he’s the imposter and tells the others, and Cameron grabs him. Creighton says that they’re
the traitors and they’re all government thugs. The real Gary comes out and directs them to
Rosen.

Later, Rosen meets with Cley and Eric. Cley is satisfied that they’ve found the traitor and
Rosen figures that something in the MK files was important enough for Creighton to risk his
health. When Rosen wonders why Eric is there, Cley says that Eric has earned his work-release
and he wants him to work with Rosen from time to time. Eric is thrilled to have a part-time job
and dealing with people who are honest with him. Once he leaves, Rosen complains about how
Cley treated his team but the DoD agent insists that he did what he had to, to protect the team.
Cley tells him to worry about how Red Flag will come at him next, because they won’t stop.

The team meets in the cafeteria and Cameron explains that he’s been selling his autographs
for money and appearing at collectible card shows to build up his son’s college fund. Gary wants
to take Bill to the car show and get him a new car. Bill clutches at his chest and falls over as his
heart pounds out of control.
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Original Sin

Season 1
Episode Number: 11
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Monday September 26, 2011
Writer: Robert Hewitt Wolfe, Ira Steven Behr, Michael Karnow, Michael

Karnow, Zak Penn, Zak Penn
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken), Laura Men-

nell (Nina Theroux), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Warren Christie
(Cameron Hicks), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell) Recurring Role:

Guest Stars: Liane Balaban (Anna), Valerie Cruz (Kathy Sullivan), John Pyper-
Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle Sophia Rosen)

Summary: After a major confrontation between Red Flag and the DoD that ends
in bloodshed for both sides, Rosen makes a drastic decision that will
affect the fate of Alphas everywhere.

Rachel, Nina, and Cameron are track-
ing a Red Flag operative, assassin Isaac
Hale. He’s working with another Alpha
to track someone through the streets of
New York City. He’s the only lead they
have after several of the terrorist organi-
zation’s leaders have disappeared in the
last week. As a couple arrives at a pawn-
shop, Isaac confronts them and demands
what the woman, Danielle, has. The Al-
pha concentrates and the nearby flowers
wither as he unleashes his power of ad-
vanced necrosis, the same power he used

to kill the three MK scientists. Rachel hears them and leads her teammates to them as Isaac
corners his two victims. He kills the man, Will, and Rosen arrives in time to see Danielle. He
calls to her by name and she tries to flee, and he tells Nina to push Danielle and stop her from
running. However, Danielle uses her own Alpha ability to grab Nina and hit her with a wave of
sad emotions so that she can get away.

As Cameron and Nina search for Isaac, Nina explains that she knew that Rosen had a daugh-
ter, but not that she was an Alpha with the ability to transfer emotions. Rachel loses Isaac Bill
arrives at the office and discovers that Gary is coordinating efforts for the team. When Gary
points out that Bill is on medical leave, his friend says that since the infarction, his system has
normalized. He’s been using his time off to check on Stanton Parish, the name that Griffin gave
him. He figures that Stanton is on Rosen’s cloud drive and asks Gary to check it.

Gary spots Danielle at the Baltimore Hotel and tells Rosen her location. Rosen goes there and
pounds on Danielle’s door, begging for her to come out. She finally does and says that she doesn’t
want him there, but Rosen insists on helping. As she walks away down the hall, Isaac finds them
and approaches. Rosen tries to get her away but they run into a dead end. Isaac concentrates on
the two of them and insists that neither one of them has to die. Cameron arrives and shoots and
kills Isaac before he can kill them.

Back at the office, Rosen gives Danielle a medical and wonders what drugs that she’s taking
this time. She admits that she’s taking an anticonvulsant and insists that it’s better than the
drugs he proscribed for her. Danielle asks him for a prescription so he can get her out of his life,
but Rosen refuses to let her walk away again. When he asks why Isaac was chasing her, Danielle
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claims to have no idea who Red Flag is. Kathy Sullivan arrives and privately informs Rosen that
they know that Red Flag is going to strike the next day at 7 a.m. When Rosen worries about his
daughter, Sullivan tells him to compartmentalize and not let his personal issues interfere with
their case.

Bill is talking to his wife and taking pills when Gary arrives with a report on Stanton Parish,
who was on Rosen’s cloud drive. He supposedly died in 1974 and worked with MK Ultra, and
wrote a manifesto for the Alpha cause. Bill asks Gary to find out everything he can.

Rosen tries to talk to Danielle about what happened and offers to help, insisting that he loves
her. Dani points out that he has always treated her like a test subject, and that Will would do
whatever he could to help her. Danielle finally gives him a necklace with several fake rubies on it
and explains that’s what Red Flag was after.

Gary goes to see Anna at a greenhouse. After her Alpha bodyguard searches Gary, he sits
with her and she takes his hand. Anna then asks him about the quote from Parish that he sent
her and where he got it. She warns him that Parish is a dangerous man and Gary shouldn’t be
asking question. Gary realizes that she’s talking about him in the present tense and Anna tells
him that he has to go.

Her bodyguard leads him away over Gary’s objections.
Rachel examines the necklace while Rosen talks with his daughter and insists that he’s a

different person than he was 15 years ago.
Danielle points out that he still manipulates people and notes that whenever her mom got

angry at him for locking himself up with lab work, he’d come to Danielle and ask her to bring
his wife a cup of tea. She points out that her empathic contagion would calm her down, and that
he knew what she could do for three years before she moved out with her mother when she left
Rosen.

As Rosen walks away, Bill catches up to him and explains that he and Gary found something
huge. Gary admits that he talked to Anna despite their orders and confirmed that Parish is still
alive. He did a search by face and confirmed that Parish was a Russian scientist working on their
version of the MK Alpha program. Digging further, Gary confirmed that Parish was alive since
the Civil War. Bill figures that the shapeshifter was sent in to wipe the files on Parish and covers
his tracks to hide the fact that he doesn’t age.

After analyzing the fake rubies, Rachel explains to the team that they were synthetically made
and are a perfect storage medium.

Putting them together makes a jump drive and Gary reads the encoded data, while Bill points
out that it’s the same code that Anna uses. Gary deciphers them and confirms that they’re GPS
coordinate for Highland Mills, 60 miles away. Rosen points out that there’s a time, the time of
the big Red Flag event. There’s a final message, ”We’re not the problem but the solution,” the
signature phrase of Parish, and they realize that he’s called a Red Flag meeting.

Rosen calls and passes the information onto Sullivan. As they prepare an attack on the lo-
cation, an abandoned brick factory, Gary worries that Anna will be there and could be hurt.
Sullivan says that they’ll use non-violent methods initially, but she can’t guarantee anything.
Cameron offers to go in with the assault team and Bill insists on going as well despite Rosen’s
protest that his heart isn’t yet ready for the stress.

The next morning, Rosen goes over Parish’s manifesto as the others prepare to move out.
Danielle asks her father if Red Flag is responsible for Will’s death, and says that if they are then
she hopes they take in the group. He admits that he knew about her ability and tried to use it to
save a marriage that he had already ruined. When Danielle wonders what he wants her to say,
Rosen tells her that he doesn’t expect her to say anything. Meanwhile, Gary calls his mother and
tells her that he won’t be coming home because his friends need him. He tries to assure her that
Bill will protect him, and has kept Gary from taking a bullet in the past.

At Highland Mills, the assault team watches as Anna and the other Red Flag people arrive
at the factory to meet with Parish. Gary insists that he should go in and persuade Anna to give
herself up. Nina talks to Cameron, noting that he appears comfortable as an assault soldier, and
he tells her that he has a love-hate relationship with the military. He starts to tell her about his
feelings if something happens to him, but Nina says not to jinx it.

The meeting starts and Rachel confirms that Parish and a dozen of the Red Flag leaders
haven’t arrived. She listens in and tells Rosen that those that there have begun the meeting and
plan to go public. Rosen figures that it’s a setup and tells Sullivan that Parish is using them to
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capture the peaceful wing of Red Flag. Sullivan is glad to capture who she can and dismisses
Rosen’s concern. He admits that they’re not innocents and Sullivan orders her people in. Nina
insists on going in even though she’s wearing a mask that blocks her ability.

Sullivan’s people fire gas in and move on the terrorists. Gary runs in and Rosen goes after him.
Meanwhile, some of the Red Flag Alphas fight back. Cameron goes up against a woman capable
of deflecting his shots with her knives. Another one burns Bill with an acid touch, putting stress
on his heart. Bill manages to take him down, while Cameron fights his Alpha. He realizes that
she’s like him, but she says that she’s better and knocks him out.

Anna’s bodyguard finds Gary and grabs him, and Nina runs up, rips off her mask, and tells
the Alpha to sleep. Once he does, Gary goes with the soldiers to find Anna. A knife comes spinning
out of the gas, killing one soldier. Sullivan authorizes return fire while Gary calls for Anna. The
Red Flag operatives return fire and one of them accidentally shoots Bill in the bulletproof chest,
stunning him long enough for the burning Alpha to grab him. Bill has no choice but to amp up
to save his life.

Gary finds Anna and discovers that she’s been shot dead. When one of the soldiers tries to
lead him away, Gary grabs a baton and beats him repeatedly. Assuming that Gary is a Red Flag
terrorist, the soldier prepares to shoot him and Rosen arrives just in time to stop him.

Later at the office, the team meets and Gary insists that Anna shouldn’t be dead. He blames
himself for not saving her and comments that Rosen doesn’t know everything. The others say
that they can’t continue doing what they have been, fighting against their own kind. Rosen says
that they’re a team and that what they’ve done, they’ve done for the right reasons. He assures
them that they have nothing to be ashamed of. Bill starts to object, but Sullivan arrives and
asks to speak to Rosen in private. She says that it’s a win and promises to give Rosen whatever
resources he needs to find Parish if he exists. When she suggests they bring Danielle on the
team, Rosen tells her not to talk about his daughter. Rosen starts to walk away and Sullivan tells
him that the DoDo heads want Rosen to meet with them in a closed-door session and give them
his input.

At home that night, Rosen tells Danielle about what happened and she realizes that he doesn’t
have all the answers, and that she likes him better that way. He apologizes for what he put her
through and says that she’s his daughter, not his patient, and wants her to do her thing to him
so he knows what she’s feeling. Danielle reluctantly takes his offered hand and Rosen winces at
the strength of her emotions. Once she’s done, he admits that he doesn’t know what to say and
Danielle says that it worked.

Later, Danielle goes to bed and Rosen swims in his pool. When he looks up, he finds Stanton
Parish waiting to talk to him. He assures him that he came alone and Danielle is fine, and asks
Rosen how it feels to be living his dreams. Rosen protests about being used to eliminate Parish’s
opposition in Red Flag. Parish explains that he prefers to walk in the shadows and points out
that Rosen and the government don’t want the existence of Alphas revealed to the public any
more than he does. He explains that he has complete control of his mind, perfect brain-body
connection, and tells Rosen that humanity will soon become as elevated as he is. When Rosen
says that they have nothing in common, Parish says that there will be war between Alphas and
humans within the next two or three years, and that he can give Rosen understanding of Alpha
biology. In return he wants Rosen’s help, but Rosen says that people died and he’s done enough.
Parish says that he’ll come along and leaves.

Rosen prepares to leave for Washington and asks Cameron to check on Danielle from time to
time. He then addresses the DoD, warning them that the violent wing of Red Flag is still at large.
They offer him more tactical teams and assure him that they can confine many more prisoners at
Binghamton. Rosen objects, saying that the abuses there can only thrive on the dark. The DoD
is unaware that Rosen is secretly transmitting the entire meeting worldwide via one of Skyler’s
gadgets, a pen-camera. Finally he declares that all Alphas exist, and that they are their friends
and spouses, sons and daughters.

Parish watches the broadcast and admits that things have become complicated. Danielle is
with him and says that she warned him.

Sullivan realizes that the meeting is being broadcast live and has Rosen taken away as he
says that complete transparency is the only way to avoid the war that is coming.

45



Alphas Episode Guide

46



Season Two





Alphas Episode Guide

Wake Up Call

Season 2
Episode Number: 12
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Monday July 23, 2012
Writer: Robert Hewitt Wolfe
Director: Matt Hastings
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley)
Guest Stars: John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle

Sophia Rosen), Elias Toufexis (Cornell Scipio), John Boylan (Warden),
Jameson Kraemer (Jeff Kowalka), Alex Paxton-Beesley (Meg), Sarah
Slywchuk (Kimi Milard), Dylan Smith (Asher), Adriano Sobretodo Jr.
(Unassuming Man), Erin Way (Kat)

Summary: Eight months after Dr. Rosen’s startling announcement to the world
about the existence of Alphas, the government has locked him up at
Binghamton. His Alphas, which have gone their own ways, must de-
cide whether to reunite and save their friend.

We open with Rosen speaking with a ther-
apist in a mental health facility where he
has been a resident for the past eight
months. He’s there because he exposed
the Alphas and we see the wall of his cell
is covered with articles.

Hicks and Harken are working with
Clay to catch criminal Alphas. We see
them undercover in a grocery store at-
tempting to stop a robbery ring. They nab
one of the Alphas, but the other two are
able to leave out the back and get into a
car. For some reason Cameron has issues

using his power and misses a shot to take out their vehicle.
Back in the office we see Harken is having anxiety issues. They talk about the fact Gary has

disappeared from a chat room where he regularly contributed. He was assigned to the NSA,
which they view as a mistake.

Rachel is having a particularly tough time with her alpha power. She is unable to shut out
the world and hasn’t left her room for months.

Nina is ”pushing” average people on the streets. We see her convince a man to share a cab
with her.

Hicks and Harken bring the woman from the robbery to Binghamton. Looking down on the
floor they talk about how the alphas are controlled with a chip in their head. They are stunned
to spot Gary, who has the tell-tale scar on the back of his neck. We learn that Gary panicked at
the NSA when somebody tried to touch him. Clay tried to help him, but he put two agents in the
hospital and there was no choice.

Rosen’s daughter visits him in the hospital, using her power to take the edge off his sedatives.
He tells her that he’s confident he’ll eventually be released. Rosen thinks Stanton Parrish will so
something dramatic and he’ll be needed.

While her chip is being inserted, the alpha from the robbery, Debra, uses her power to short
out the building’s electricity and get into the system. She begins disabling the alpha’s chips and
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they are able to get the jump on the guards. Harken grabs Gary and tries to carry him out of the
ward, but he’s stopped by an alpha named Asher and tossed into a cell with Gary.

Debra is dating an alpha named Scipio, who seems to be the leader. She tells him there was
a failsafe door she couldn’t get passed. Scipio begins negotiating with Clay. Scipio demonstrates
they are capable of killing their hostages, forcing one to turn a gun on himself and begin pulling
the trigger. The safety was on but the message is received. Scipio says ”there’s only one person
I’m willing to negotiate with.”

Cut to Clay telling Rosen ”there’s been an incident.”
We see Rosen collecting the rest of the team. He helps get Rachel out of her room and pulls

Nina away from the man she was pushing. They both are willing to help Gary.
Harken tries to apologize to Gary, but so far he’s not saying anything.
Rosen and the women arrive at Binghamton. His plan is to go inside alone and have Rachel,

Nina and Hicks help from the outside. If there is trouble they will come in to help.
After being roughed up by Asher, Scipio welcomes him the ”monkey house” with a handshake.

With Rachel listening, Scipio talks to Rosen about how they’ve been treated inside. Scipio asks
about them being ”mistakes” and wonders if he can turn off the ability from his brains.

Gary is now talking to Harken, thought not about anything important.
Rosen finds it strange Scipio seems so calm under the circumstances and asks whether or

not he is employing a delaying tactic. Debra tells Scipio ”we’re ready.”
The monitors fizzle out briefly. When they return, Hicks and the team are stunned to watch a

hostage shot and Scipio use his powers to set Rosen on fire. But Rachel thinks something isn’t
right, as she can’t smell and burning from the fire or hear any yelling. Nina tells Hicks ”it is all
fake,” just as he finds Debra using her power to project a fact image on the monitor.

Asher has used the distraction to break through a wall and the alphas are all free. Rosen is
left alone, but Harken and Gary are placed in a truck. With some coaching from Rosen, Hicks is
about to fire a shot that disables the truck and flips it over. Gary and Harken are fine and Asher
is unconscious, but Scipio is gone.

Clay tells Rosen he needs him to put his team back together and fix the Binghamton mistake.
He’s being offered a full pardon, along with a consulting fee. Rosen agrees on the condition he
gets full control.

The team is back together. Gary is unable to interact with anybody. Rosen points out Gary’s
routine and helps him make a call to his mother. Gary is back and the rest of the team is falling
into their old roles. In his office Rosen glances down at Parrish’ file.

Cut to Parrish meeting with Rosen’s daughter. She is working with him and was behind Rosen
being released. They watch as a train derails and explodes.
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The Quick and the Dead

Season 2
Episode Number: 13
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Monday July 30, 2012
Writer: Michael Karnow
Director: Michael Nankin
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley)
Guest Stars: C. Thomas Howell (Eli Aquino), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle Sophia

Rosen), John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish)
Summary: The team search for an Alpha who kills and has superspeed abilities,

but he soon comes looking for them when he believes that Rosen may
be able to cure his accelerated aging.

Alpha Eli Aquino uses his ability to move
at superhuman speeds to enter a restau-
rant and abduct Dr. Jay Westman in the
middle of a meal with his wife, before any-
body can even see him arrive.

Cameron and Danielle Rosen are in
bed together. After sex, Danielle asks if
anything is wrong and Cameron admits
that he’s not entirely comfortable with
their relationship given who her father is.
He mentions feeling weird about Nina, his
ex, but Danielle says that he doesn’t want
to talk about his ex-girlfriends.

Rosen arrives at the office and finds Nathan’s analysts occupying the offices. Gary is in the
break room shoving the government around because they’re using his shelf. After Gary storms
off, Cameron talks to Rachel, who is cleaning off her office furniture.

When he asks about Nina, Rachel figures that things will get weird and doesn’t believe his
denial that everything is cool between Cameron and his ex.

Nathan comes to see Rosen and admits that they’re crowded, but insists that they’re not
the enemy. Rosen is willing to work with him and then asks about a report on the crash of a
cargo train. There were electrical and fuel supplies aboard and Rosen suggests that Stanton was
responsible, but Nathan isn’t convinced that Stanton even exists. Rosen assures him that the
immortal alpha does exist and then meets with Bill, who has received a report about Westman’s
abduction.

Bill takes Rachel and Cameron to the restaurant and checks out the crime scene. Rachel
sees Eli’s footprints while Bill talks to the witnesses and confirms that no one saw Westman’s
captor. At the office, Gary goes over the footage from the restaurant and spots a blur, and Rosen
calculates that Eli must have been moving at ten times human speed. Gary finds another blur five
blocks away and they realize that they’re dealing with an alpha with an accelerated metabolism.
Rosen has Rachel find an odor of burning body fat and as she concentrates, she smells lilac
perfume on Cameron. He claims that he used the wrong soap but neither Rachel nor Bill are
convinced. The trio follow the odor to a fish processing plant and find Westman, stabbed to death
with a screwdriver and stashed inside a walk-in freezer.

Back at the office, Bill confirms that the fingerprints on the screwdriver belong to Eli, who
has a criminal record. The team confirms that after his arrest he was sent to Building Seven at
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Binghamton, and they send for his medical records. When Bill proves reluctant to let Rachel gets
involved, she insists that she wants to help and Rosen agrees with her. According to the medical
records, Eli suffers from an enlarged suprachiasmatic nucleus, giving him superspeed but at the
cost of accelerated aging. Although Eli is only 22, he appears to be in his fifties, and Rosen warns
that the aging will get worse. Eli doesn’t have a history of violence and Rosen has Gary check for
similar abductions. Bill brings in Westman’s wife for questioning while Rachel and Cameron go
over incident reports.

As Cameron leaves, he spots Nina in the break room. They start to talk but Gary comes in
and complains about his refrigerator shelf again. As Nina walks away, Gary tells Cameron that
he has six text messages waiting and that they came from Danielle. Meanwhile, Nina hangs up
a Van Gogh painting in her office as Rosen comes in. He realizes that she’s pushing people for
personal gain again and tells her that if she can’t honor her commitments to the team then he
can’t have her there. Rachel comes in, interrupting them, and says that Bill needs help with Mrs.
Westman. Nina pushes the woman to calm her down and tell everything, but she talks about her
affair and her shoplifting instead of her husband. Angry at Nina’s misuse of her powers, Rosen
goes out and hears Gary complaining about the government agents. After getting Gary back on
track, Gary says that he did find a similar abduction that just occurred eight minutes ago. Rosen
has him ping the new victim’s cell phone so they can trace it.

Eli takes his new victim, Dr. Casey, to a warehouse. Casey doesn’t recognize Eli even though
the alpha says that he was Casey’s patient. Cameron and Bill arrive, following the trace, and
Cameron shoots the knife out of Eli’s hand. Eli runs past them at superspeed and ducks into the
crowd. Bill amps himself up and tries to follow but can’t match Eli’s maneuverability and slams
into a dumpster while taking a corner.

The team brings Casey to the office and show him photos of the younger Eli. Casey confirms
that he and Westman both worked with Eli at the Yankee Medical Group in Stamford, Connecti-
cut. They were researching a controversial brainwave entrainment therapy for children but Casey
defends his work, insisting that the parents gave their permission.

Danielle is at a hospital with Stanton, using her powers to sooth the agony of a dying elderly
woman. Stanton explains that the woman is the last of his thirty-one grandchildren who never
knew who he really was. When Stanton asks about Cameron, Danielle uses her power to reveal
her anxiety to him and then suggests that Stanton talk to Rosen now that he’s out of the psych
hospital. Stanton says that for now, Rosen needs to reach his own conclusions about Stanton’s
cause. He asks about Cameron and Danielle says that he’s a nice guy. However, Stanton warns
her that she loses control of her powers when she gets emotionally involved.

Later, Cameron meets Danielle on the street for a date. However, she tells him that she’s
breaking up with him because things are too complicated now that her father is back. Cameron
doesn’t believe her claim that she’s using his powers to make him feel the way he does, but
Danielle walks away without looking back.

Back at the office, Rosen and Bill discuss Casey. Bill wants him to go to jail but Rosen says
that they should use him as bait to lure in Eli. He believes that working together, Bill, Cameron,
and Gary can match Eli’s speed, but Bill warns him that the team isn’t ready. He points out that
he’s been running the team for eight months while Rosen was gone, and accuses him of having
ego issues. When Rosen objects, Bill points out that he made his nationwide announcement
about alphas without consulting his teammates.

Rosen snaps back, saying that he should leave if he feels that way, and Bill storms out.
Nina comes to see Cameron in his office and apologizes for using her power on him, ending

their relationship. She wants to make things right by trying again, but Cameron tells her that
he’s seeing someone else. He refuses to tell her, saying it doesn’t make a difference, but Nina
pushes him into giving her Danielle’s name. As she storms off to her office, she runs into Rachel
and accuses her of knowing about Cameron’s new girlfriend but keeping it a secret.

That night, Bill and Cameron watch Casey’s apartment from an adjoining rooftop. Gary checks
the cameras and as they wait, finally figures out that the text messages he read earlier mean that
Cameron is involved with Danielle. Bill is amused by the entire situation.

At the office, Rachel is worried because Nina isn’t returning her calls. Rosen assures her that
Nina is just working some things out and suggests that Rachel go home and rest. Rachel says
she’s rather join the others and lend an extra pair of eyes, and Rosen agrees. As she leaves, she
feels a brief burst of wind but dismisses it as the air conditioning. Once she’s gone, Rosen starts
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to call Nina but Eli snatches the phone from his hand and then holds a knife to his throat. The
alpha explains that he needs Rosen to stop his aging process, and rants that Westman and Casey
don’t care about him. Rosen assures him that he cares and promises to do everything he can,
but needs Eli to trust him.

Rachel goes to the apartment and joins the others, and Bill tells her about Cameron’s new
girlfriend. She thinks that Danielle is manipulating him just like Nina did, but Cameron insists
that it’s different. Rachel realizes that they’ve been waiting long enough and that Eli is too impa-
tient to have waited as well. She realizes that the burst of wind she felt back at the office was Eli
and leads the team there.

Rosen runs a MRI on an increasingly impatient Eli and tries to calm him down. As they talk,
Eli sees Rosen’s files on Stanton and informs the doctor that Stanton was the head of the clinic
that experimented on him. Rosen tries to find out more about Stanton’s involvement but Eli tells
him to focus on him. Danielle comes in and sees them, and calls Cameron to warn him. However,
Eli sees her and smashes her phone, and Rosen begs him to leave Danielle out of it.

The others return a few minutes later and find Danielle tied up. She tells them that Eli took
her father and Gary spots them on the highway via the CCTVs. The team follows them to an
empty lot that Eli claims is where the clinic was. There’s no sign of the building now and Eli has
no idea where it’s gone. He begs Rosen to cure him but Rosen warns him that while he can slow
down the aging process, he can’t reverse it. The FBI team pulls up and Eli takes Rosen into a
nearby church and holds a knife to his throat.

When the others come in, Eli threatens to kill Rosen if they don’t help him. Danielle walks
forward and offers her help, and uses her power to stabilize Eli’s metabolism. Eli thanks her and
they embrace... and a shot rings out. Eli falls dead, a bullet in his back. Danielle, shocked, insist
that Eli was just a kid.

The next day, Nathan tells Bill and Rosen that an investigation into the shooting is underway.
Bill isn’t satisfied but Rosen calms him down, assuring Nathan that they’re not questioning
his competence. Rosen then suggests that they might take advantage of the open lease on the
third floor to move Nathan’s analysts out of the team’s way. Realizing that he’s being played,
Nathan agrees and leaves. Bill congratulates Rosen, who is furious that someone on Nathan’s
team betrayed them. Upset that he couldn’t protect Eli, Rosen apologizes to Bill, admitting that
he was letting his ego get in the way, and promises to make it up to them.

Danielle meets Stanton and tells her that she wants to be with Cameron. He gives her his
blessing but warns her to be careful.

Rachel comes into the office and tells the others that Nina isn’t returning her calls. The others
haven’t seen her either. Rosen tells them that something is wrong and that they’ll continue to
work with Nathan. However, they won’t inform him of their secret findings about Stanton and
the other Alphas. Rosen believes that someone deliberately eliminated their first lead to Stanton
and tells the others that they’ll keep any further information within their inner circle.

Stanton goes to see his last grandchild, kisses her gently on the forehead, and then smothers
her to death.

Rosen finds Nina at her favorite bar and she accuses him of getting another alpha killed.
Rosen objects but Nina points out that he’s gotten a lot of alphas killed. When Rosen asks why
she hasn’t been returning their calls, Nina tells him that she’s done with the group and is going
on her own. She tells Rosen that Cameron is involved with his daughter and then uses her power
to push Rosen into leaving her alone. When he snaps out of her spell, it’s hours later and the bar
is empty.
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Alpha Dogs

Season 2
Episode Number: 14
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Monday August 6, 2012
Writer: Eric Tuchman
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), Warren

Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Malik Yoba
(Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Erin Way (Kat), John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Steve Byers
(John Bennett), Rachael Crawford (Jeannie Harken), Jane Moffat (San-
dra Bell), Patrick Garrow (Dr. Harrison), Andrew Moodie (Matt Seidel),
Markus Parilo (Tough Guy), Meghan Swaby (Clerk)

Summary: Cameron and Bill go undercover as fighters as an underground arena
and meet a young girl with a unique power. Meanwhile, Gary considers
moving out,Rachel bonds with the team’s new tac leader, and Rosen
tries to find out more about Stanton Parish.

Bill is at home taking pills for his heart
condition when his wife Jeannie comes
in. She suggests that they both call in
sick and take the day off, pointing out
that he’s too stress, but Bill says that he
has it under control and leaves for work.

As Sandra Bell lays out breakfast for
her son, she hears Gary screaming up in
his room. He then comes downstairs and
calmly starts eating. Sandra calls Rosen
later on his way there and he suggests
that Gary is using screaming as a cathar-
tic release. She worries that Gary is going

back to work too soon after his imprisonment at Binghamton, but Rosen assures her that work
is the best thing for her son.

Later, Rosen and Gary arrive at the office and meet Rachel, who is complaining about how
her parents are smothering her. Rosen suggests that she move out and find an apartment, but
Rachel reminds him that it didn’t work out well when she roomed with Nina. She then starts
complaining that someone is wearing too strong an aftershave and storms through the office
trying to find them. She finally gets to Bill’s office and he introduces them to their new tac team
leader, John Bennett. Realizing he has the aftershave, Rachel tells him to tone it down.

Rosen calls the team, minus the absent Nina, to the morgue where an Alpha has turned up
dead. The Alpha, John Duffy, is one of the Building 7 escapees with the ability to generate elec-
tricity, and he was killed by an Alpha who can spit hydrochloric acid. Rachel spots a telephone
number written on the corpse’s hand and Bill dials it. It’s a voicemail providing an address and
a password, ”Bolivia.” Rosen asks Bill to take charge of the investigation while he and Gary do
some digging into Stanton Parish’s past.

Bill takes Hicks, Rachel, and John to the address that night and Rachel smells hints of the
acid. Bill has her stay with John in the van while he and Hicks go in. They use the password to get
into the warehouse and discover that it’s an underground fighting arena for Alphas. Meanwhile,
Rachel tries to get a fix on the acid scent but complains that John’s hygiene products are still
too strong.
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He gets out of the van and walks into a nearby alleyway, following the trail, and an Alpha
confronts her. He has an acid burn on his neck and comments that a man named Ivan Bazevich
gave it to him. The Alpha starts to hit on Rachel until John arrives and backs her up. As John
and Rachel go back to the van, she thanks him for coming after her.

The current fight wraps up and the arena promotor tells Bill that first-timers have to fight and
orders him in. While he swings and misses at his opponent repeatedly, a teenager girl named Kat
comes and talks to Hicks. She says that Bill’s opponent has the ability to distort his opponent’s
vision, making them miss. Much to Hicks’ surprise, Kat knows that Alphas exist and she tells
him that all of the arena fighters are Alphas.

At the office, Gary and Rosen track Stanton via the Internet and learn that he served in the
Civil War as Major Jacob Dunham. As they check the hospital records from that era, Rosen talks
about Gary’s screaming and Gary finally tells him that he screams because the government killed
his friend Anna. Rosen assures him that it’s fine to express his anger but suggests he find a way
that doesn’t frighten Sandra.

Bill’s opponent beats him and he goes out to the van with Hicks. They compare notes and
John confirms that Bazevich was in prison after serving a term for assault. The fight promotor
comes out with Kat and Bill tries to ask him about the previous night’s fight with Duffy. The
promotor avoids the question and tells Bill not to bother coming back, but Kat suggests he give
Bill another chance.

The promotor is skeptical and Kat says that she’ll train him. Once the promotor leaves, Kat
gives Bill his number and admits that she wants to increase his chances of winning so that she
can bet on the underdog and win big.

The next morning, Sandra is relieved when Gary doesn’t scream. However, he tells her that
he’s moving out so that he won’t frighten her. When Rosen arrives, he insists that he didn’t
advise Gary to move out, and Gary points out that he told Rachel to move out from her parents’
apartment. Sandra tells Gary that he’s not moving out and that he’s not going to work, and Rosen
reluctantly agrees. He tells Gary that he can take the day off and promise to call him if they need
him, and says that they’ll all need to talk soon about Gary’s future.

When Hicks, Rachel, and Rosen get into the office, they gets Bazevich’s file from the DoD.
Hicks figures that their best bet to get a line on him is through the fighting arena. However,
Rosen objects, saying he wants it to be stakeout out only, no fighting. In response, Hicks points
out that Bill is the one who wants to fight and points out that he’s with Kat now, training.

Kat is at her loft apartment watching martial arts videos and memorizing audio records on
neurology studies. When Bill arrives, he asks Kat about Bazevich as she goes over the list of
fighters, and she warns him that the acid-spitter is bad news. Kat then demonstrates her own
abilities, executing the kickboxing moves she saw on the video. She admits that she just learned
them and Bill realizes that she’s also an Alpha.

John comes into Rachel’s office and shows her all the soaps that he picked so that she can
approve one. Smiling, Rachel thanks him for his consideration.

When Bill refuses to amp up for practice, Kat suggests that his heart condition is brought on
because he’s holding back and advises him to just stop fighting it and let go. She has Bill relax
and find a still spot, telling him that when he needs his strength, it will be there. Bill relaxes and
then snaps out of his trance-like condition, and discovers that he’s demolished the loft.

Rosen goes to the hospital and finds the archive box belonging to Zachary Harrison, who first
encountered Stanton in 1862.

While serving as a doctor during the Civil War, Zachary finds Stanton on the battlefield, clearly
dead from a head wound. However, the Alpha revives as the doctor looks on in astonishment.

Rosen takes Zachary’s files back to the office and studies them. Hicks comes in and notices
the files, and Rosen explains what he’s found out.

For the next two years, Zachary continued to test Stanton’s regenerative abilities and realized
that they were becoming stronger.

When Hicks wonders why Rosen is researching Stanton’s background, the doctor explains
that he hopes that they can gain insight into the Alpha by reading about his formative years.
Hicks then admits that he’s dating Rosen’s daughter, but Rosen informs him that Nina already
told him. Plus, Rosen was able to read the relationship between them and assures Hicks that
he’s okay with them being together as long as it makes Danielle happy.
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Jeannie comes to see her husband with takeout and finds Bill practicing his meditation ex-
ercises in his office. He assures her that he’s doing fine without his pills and then pulls her into
his office and closes the door.

Later, Rosen meets with Gary and Sandra at their home. Gary insists that it will be safer
for his mother if he isn’t there, and Sandra accuses Rosen of turning her son against her. Rosen
says that he thinks it’s important that they both support Gary in whatever he chooses for himself.
When she complains that it’s too big a step, Rosen asks if she is referring to herself or her son.

Bill and Kat take a break for training and go out for hot dogs. As Bill tries to find out more
about Bazevich, Kat says that she can’t remember what a hot dog tastes like. As she tries one,
she explains that because of her ability, which purges her brain of old information to make room
for her new skills, she can’t remember anything more than a month old. The last thing she
remembers is finding herself at the underground fighting arena, and they’re all she has for a
family. Bill asks if she’s lonely and Kat half- jokingly tells him not to try to play father to her.

Rosen takes Gary to the university and goes over their microfiche records, and they find an
article about Zachary’s murder by an unknown assailant.

Zachary is going to a presentation when Stanton stops him outside of the doctor’s home. He
knows that Zachary plans to reveal his existence to the world and asks him not to. When Zachary
refuses, Stanton cuts his throat.

When Bill and Hicks get to the underground fight arena, they notice that Kat isn’t there. Bill
insists on fighting again and the promotor lets him. Bill’s first opponent is acrobatic and has
rubbery skin. He leaps back and forth over Bill, who simply focuses his ability and then lashes
out with a single punch, knocking the man out. Meanwhile, Rachel and John watch the building
from the van and discuss how John is following his family’s tradition of military service. Rachel
smells Bazevich’s acid again and confirms that the odor is coming from a black van parked
nearby.

Kat arrives... and steps into the ring to fight Bill. She tells him that it isn’t personal and
then defeats him relying on the recent movies and audio recordings that she paid attention to,
outmaneuvering him despite his greater strength and After Kat drops Bill with a nerve strike,
the promotor tells her that two people in suits have a high-paying job for her. She leaves with
them and they take her out to the black van. Bill and Hicks join Rachel and John and they
follow the van to an abandoned factory. Rachel smells Bazevich’s acid again and hears hospital
machines and respirators working inside. As John calls for backup, Rachel hears Kat being given
anesthetic and then prepped for surgery. An angry Bill storms in and Hicks and John follow him.
Some security men open fire on Bill, who amps up and pushes a pop machine ahead of him as
a shield. He uses it as a battering ram to knock them out and then finds a large room filled with
Alphas unconscious and strapped to medical monitors. As a security man opens fire, Hicks fires
another shot, deflecting the bullet, and John takes the man down.

When the DoD arrive, they find Bazevich’s corpse, two days’ dead. Meanwhile, Rosen checks
on Kat and confirms that she’s okay. He’s also interested in how Bill is reacting after amping up,
but Bill insists that he’s doing fine and there’s no downside to his Alpha ability. Kat realizes that
they’re a team of Alphas and insists that they let her in on it despite their denials.

Later, Rachel goes shopping for soap and then visits John. She gives him the best soap with
the least scent and tries asking him out for dinner. However, he points out that it wouldn’t be
appropriate since they’re co-workers and an embarrassed Rachel walks away.

Stanton goes to his favorite restaurant and isn’t surprised when he discovers that Rosen is
waiting for him. Rosen realizes that the Alpha set the whole thing up for him to find out his
background and Stanton explains that he killed Zachary because the doctor was going to use.
The Alpha explains that after he murdered Zachary, he served and died in military service to the
country over and over throughout the decades. When Stanton says that he wants to stop that
kind of bloodshed, Rosen points out he said at their first meeting that a war is coming. Stanton
explains that it is the ordinary people will react from fear and become violent. Rosen talks about
how he was always fascinated by the big picture when he studied medicine and Stanton leaves.

Sandra goes to the office and prepares Gary’s bed for him. He objects, saying he has a different
bed for the office, and Sandra leaves for the evening. As she walks away, Gary promises to call
her in the morning after he screams, and his mother tells him that she’ll answer.

Bill goes back to the underground arena and tells the promotor that he’s there to fight.
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When Push Comes to Shove

Season 2
Episode Number: 15
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Monday August 13, 2012
Writer: Adam Levy
Director: Omar Madha
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley)
Guest Stars: Erin Way (Kat), Steve Byers (John Bennett), Morgan Kelly (Tommy),

Rod Wilson (Nina’s Dad), Arlene Mazerolle (Nina’s Mom), Sarah Man-
ninen (Becky), Jack Ilijanich (Lucas), Michael Dyson (Cashier), Daniel
Park (Cop), Natalia Ross (Hot Girl (Lap Dancer)), Robert B. Kennedy
(Robert Lewis), Sava Drayton (Security Guard), Katie Douglas (Teenage
Nina), Rian Michelsen (Teenage Tommy), Lenno Britos (Pushed Man)

Summary: The team discover that the Alpha they’re hunting is their missing
teammate, Nina, whose powers are going out of control.

Nina stands outside of her childhood
home and remembers. As a child, Nina’s
mother and father argue. As her father
prepares to walk out, Nina begs him not
to leave... and her power forces him to
stay.

Nina’s new boyfriend Tommy pulls up
in a Ferrari and tells her that it’s time to
leave, and they drive off together.

A bank manager, Robert Lewis, leaves
the bank at night as the security alarm
pulls up. A security guard arrives and as-
sumes everything is okay at first, until

Lewis refuses to hand over what he claims is a baby. When Lewis becomes violent, the guard
tasers him and takes away the bundle... which contains the stolen money from the bank.

The next day, Rachel and Bill arrive at work and she discusses how she used her heightened
senses to confirm that when John said he didn’t want to date, he was lying that it was because
they were co-workers. Gary runs into his office, wearing nothing but a towel, and they go in to
see what’s going on. He explains that he’s running late because his alarm clock didn’t go off and
he’s just now getting out of the shower. Rachel is less than thrilled that he’s using her blanket
to sleep on. John comes in looking for Rosen as Gary threatens to remove his towel, and Bill
welcomes him to a normal day at the office.

Kat is in Rosen’s office demonstrating her ability to reassemble a carburetor simply by reading
a book on the subject. She’s eager to go on a mission with the team but Rosen says that he has
her there so that he can overcome her long-term memory loss issues. He suggests that she try
remembering her favorite song and shows Kat his collection of LPs. John comes in and tells Rosen
that they have an Alpha-related case and Rosen gives Kat a video recorder to collect memories.

John has a MRI of Lewis’ brain and Rosen confirms that it shows the same alterations as
several other innocent people involved in a series of robberies. He points out that it’s similar to
the alterations that Nina inflicts with her powers, but Rachel points out that her influence fades
after an hour and the robbery took longer. Cameron tells them that from personal experience
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he knows that Nina’s power has been growing and that her influence lasts longer. Rosen warns
them that the government has always been nervous about Nina’s ability and that he won’t tell
Cley about her until he has to. As Rachel goes to find Gary and have him track down Nina,
Cameron insists that he doesn’t want to be involved. Rosen assures him that Nina still trusts
him but Cameron warns him that they won’t be able to stop Nina if she doesn’t want to be
stopped.

Rachel spots John in the break room as she looks for Gary and asks for the real reason why
he doesn’t want to go out with her. He tries lying again without success and finally explains that
it’s him, not her. John tells her that two years ago, he was serving in a war zone and was hit by
an IED. Now over 30% of his body is covered in scar tissue. He opens her shirt and shows her
the scar tissue, and Rachel gasps in horror as the sight overwhelms her senses. John walks out,
hurt, and Cameron comes in to collect Rachel.

Cameron and Rachel check out Nina’s favorite clubs and finally locate her and Tommy when
Rachel smells her perfume. Rachel approaches Nina on her own and Tommy flirts with her,
explaining that he knows all about her ability from what Nina has told her.

Nina tells her former friend that she should enjoy her ability because it makes her special and
then compels Rachel to kiss her.

Cameron arrives and shoves Tommy out of the way and then pulls Rachel clear. Nina finally
tells Rachel to stop and then asks Cameron to let Tommy go. Cameron realizes that Nina is
the one responsible for the robberies but she tells him that she never understood her. When
Cameron refuses to back down... he discovers himself outside the club, several minutes later,
carrying Rachel. He snaps out of Nina’s spell as Rachel tells him what happened.

Back at the office, Rosen gives Cameron risperidone to terminate the induction and then
examines his MRI scan. The scan shows that Nina’s powers are growing. Rachel paces nervously
back and forth, clearly upset at Nina’s abuse of her, and Rosen asks her to get Gary. He then
warns Cameron and Bill that Tommy was Nina’s first boyfriend and still has a great deal of
influence on her. Rosen believes that Nina is becoming addicted to the use of her power, as
each use strengthens her cycle of dependency. Bill is concerned that Cley may be onto Nina’s
robberies. He asks Gary to check on Nina’s high school yearbooks but Rosen is the only one who
knows which high school she really went to because she’s lied to the others.

Nina is in her backyard listening to music on her headphones so that she doesn’t have to hear
her parents fight. The new next-door neighbor boy, Tommy, climbs over the fence, hears Nina’s
parents, and says that his fight all the time as well. He suggests they go get some pizza but Nina
says she has to make sure her parents don’t become violent, and Tommy goes to get some and
bring it back for her.

Nina and Tommy are at the river and he gets her her favorite coffee. He tells her that everything
will be all right but Nina isn’t convinced. Tommy tells her that he loves her and they kiss.

Cameron and Bill go to see Tommy’s old girlfriend, Becky, and the couple’s son Lucas. Becky
insists that Tommy walked out on his family and that they’re better off without her. Bill gives her
his card in case she thinks of anything or Tommy calls, but Becky clearly doesn’t intend to call
them back.

Tommy and Nina go to the local store and try to buy a beer. When the cashier refuses to
let Tommy buy the bottle, Nina uses her ability and makes the cashier sell it to them. Outside,
Tommy figures that Nina got her way because she’s a girl. When the cashier comes out, Nina
demonstrates what she can do by making him jump up and down on one foot. Once he goes
back inside, Nina tells Tommy that she can only control someone for a couple of minutes, but
Tommy is still impressed.

Nina takes control of a yacht owner and forces him to take her and Tommy out onto the river
so they can enjoy pizza. When they run out of red peppers, Nina tells the steward to swim to
shore to get some. Tommy mentions Becky briefly but then tells Nina to forget it and suggests
that they should sail to Bermuda and get married. Nina figures that Rosen will keep pursuing
them no matter what but Tommy assures her that she can handle anything.

Rosen watches the tapes of his first sessions with Nina, while Kat comes in. She points out
that Rosen has been ignoring her and he admits that he’s been preoccupied. Kat asks if he wants
to talk about it, pointing out that it’s unfair that she’s the only one who has to talk about her
problems. Rosen takes the recorder and explains that he’s taking things slow with her because
he has a tendency to let his scientific curiosity override his better judgment. Kat is satisfied for
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the moment but tells him that he shouldn’t blame himself for Nina. Cley comes in, worried that
Rosen hasn’t returned his calls, and reminds him that the committee needs Rosen’s report on
the Building Seven escapees. Rosen promises it in a couple of days but Cley gives him 24 hours.

Rosen goes for a walk and then comes back to meet with the others. Gary and Cameron have
picked up a police report about the swimming steward and they figure that Nina is near the
docks. Rosen insists that that they have to call off the search for Nina because Cley wants the
report. Meanwhile, Kat is taking more video and sees Bill, and reminds him that she beat him
in the Alpha fights. Becky comes in and meets with the team, telling them that she didn’t really
want Tommy to leave. Using her heightened senses, Rachel realizes that Nina pushed her. Rosen
keeps saying that they have to stop looking for Nina and file the escapee report, and Rachel
realizes that Nina has pushed him as well when he was out walking.

Nina and Tommy arrive at Nina’s home and her father is sitting in the living room. Wincing at
the pain in his head, Nina’s father says that he couldn’t leave the house to go to work. Nina tells
him that he can leave whenever he wants and come back later, and her father gets up and goes
to work.

Nina arrives at the docks and looks for Tommy. As she searches for him, she catches a brief
glimpse of herself in a windshield. Nina then spots Cameron and Bill escorting Tommy off the
boat that he planned to steal. Rachel is with them and catches a brief whiff of Nina’s perfume
but fails to spot her before Nina runs off.

Cameron injured Tommy while capturing him and they take him to the hospital. Rosen inter-
views him and Tommy insists that he’s always loved Nina and that Rosen is the one who tried
to exploit Nina’s power. Realizing that he can’t get through to him, Rosen brings in Becky and
Lucas.

Cameron and Bill are waiting outside when a police officer comes by and asks Bill to help
him with his incident report. As soon as Bill leaves, Nina comes up behind Cameron and takes
control of him. As Rosen and Rachel leave Tommy’s room so he can have some time with his
wife and son, Cameron draws a gun on them under Nina’s command. Nina orders Rachel to walk
away but Rosen assures her that he won’t try to fight her. Nina agrees to have Cameron put down
the gun and she goes inside to Tommy. He wonders how she could have used her power to make
him love her and take her away from his family. Rosen tells Nina that there’s nothing between
her and Tommy was real and that he’s been under her control the entire time.

Tommy has second thoughts and tells Nina that she has to talk to someone because what
she’s doing isn’t right. Nina doesn’t believe her and threatens to control him when he prepares
to tell someone. Horrifies, Tommy runs off before Nina can stop him.

Nina leaves with Cameron as John and Bill arrives. She tells Cameron to protect her and she
shoots John and then they run off. Bill goes after them while Rosen confirms that John is okay
because he was wearing a bulletproof vest. The police cut off Cameron and Nina and they head
to the roof. Bill goes after them but Cameron holds him off. Rosen comes up and Nina agrees to
let him through.

As Nina looks down on the street far below, Rosen asks what she wants to do. She admits that
Tommy made her happy when they were children, and Rosen points out that she used her power
to recreate her childhood relationship with her friend. When Nina blames herself for influencing
Tommy and her father, Rosen tries to reassure her that she was just following her childhood
instincts.

Nina comes home and discovers that her father killed himself because of the stress.
Tired of hurting people, Nina frees Cameron from her control and then jumps off the roof. As

she plummets toward the street below, Cameron shoots a nearby crane cable and jumps after
her. He catches the cable as he falls and then grabs Nina by the hand and swings back toward
the building. As Cameron starts to lose his grip on the cable, Nina tells him to save himself and
let her go. Bill manages to pull them up and save them both.

The next morning, Gary has his morning scream and then casually greets Kat as she walks
by. She runs into Bill and she wonders what happens to her as Rosen explores her past. Bill
talks about the memory of his prom date with his wife-to-be and tells Kat that one good memory
is worth a dozen bad ones. Kat considers what he’s said and then goes to listen to one of Rosen’s
records.

Rachel goes to John and he assures her that he’s doing better after being shot. He apologizes
for overreacting early and not allowing for her enhanced senses, and invites her to breakfast.
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Rachel wonders if it’s a date but John assures her that it’s just a meal. He warns her that he
hasn’t been with anyone since his injury and they’ll have to take it slow, and Rachel agrees.

Cley meets with Rosen and tells him that he’s convinced the committee to release Nina into
his care. Rosen admits that he couldn’t take the chance of telling Cley, but Cley warns him that
the next time it happens will be the last. Rosen then goes to see Nina, who is being kept under
suicide watch with a blindfold to negate her powers. Cameron is sitting outside her room and
wonders how she can get over what happened, and Rosen tells him that it takes a lot of help.
He goes inside and apologizes for the restraints, and Nina warns that she’s dangerous. Despite
that, Rosen removes the blindfold and greets her, and then sits down to help her work through
her issues.
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Gaslight

Season 2
Episode Number: 16
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Monday August 20, 2012
Writer: Terri Hughes Burton, Ron Milbauer
Director: Leslie Libman
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Guest Stars: Erin Way (Kat), Liane Balaban (Anna Levy), Lauren Holly (Senator Bur-
ton), Noah Reid (Adam Gordon)

Summary: An Alpha goes insane and his delusions lead him to abduct Rachel.
However, when the rest of the team search for her, they find themselves
entangled in a series of bizarre situations.

Adam Gordon is taken to the morgue
by the orderlies. He confirms that the
dead girl there, Maggie, is his sister. As
they take him away, the lights flicker and
Adam hears Maggie calling to her and
reaching toward him. He tries to go back
to his dead sister, climbing the walls us-
ing his Alpha ability. When he drops to
the ground, the orderlies grab him and
haul him away... from what Adam can
now see is his sister, dead.

Nina comes in to see Rosen at his of-
fice for the first time since she’s been re-

leased from the hospital. It’s evening and Rosen explains that he wanted to have her come in
when no one else was there so she could get acclimated. He admits that he needs her help and
says that she wants to take a different approach with her this time. Rosen explains that he’s try-
ing to track down Stanton, who is willing to kill anyone who interferes in his crusade. Gary has
tied Stanton to the Llamrei Foundation, a charity that has made donations to New York Senator
Burton. Rosen hopes that Nina can use her ability on Burton to find out what she knows about
Stanton.

Nina agrees and gets the schedule from Rosen as she goes.
The next day, Cameron is talking to his son Tyler by webcam and giving him pitching tips.

Cameron’s ex-wife interrupts to tell Cameron that her new boyfriend is taking them to San
Francisco so she’s cancelling Tyler’s visit with his father. As she cuts Cameron off, Bill comes
in and hears the tail end of the conversation. Cameron admits that he was drunk during their
marriage and missed Tyler’s first Little League tryout. He figures that his ex-wife is still angry at
him and admits that she’s right to do so.

Cameron then notices that Bill is bruised and his friend admits that he’s been going to the
fight club.

Rachel helps Gary dress in a good suit for the unveiling of Anna Levy’s memorial stone. Gary
doesn’t think that it will help him get through her death. Nina comes in but Rachel tells her that
she’s no longer part of the team. When Nina tries to apologize, Rachel refuses to listen and orders
her out.

Rosen receives a report from the hospital where Adam is staying. Adam was his former patient
and Rosen tells Cameron and Bill that Adam was fine but something triggered his condition. As
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they head out for the hospital, Kit comes in with blankets and pillows and Rosen tells the others
that he’s conducting a sleep study experiment on her that night. He tells her to make herself
comfortable and then leaves with the others.

Nina catches up to Burton at a hotel and follows her into the women’s restroom. She then
uses her ability to make Burton tell her what she did for the Llamrei Foundation, but the senator
says that the information is gone.

When they get to the hospital, Rosen talks to Adam, who explains that he saw his sister
Maggie alive. He admits that he cut Maggie off when he found out that she was using, hoping
that it would shock her into going cold turkey, but it backfired and she OD’d.

Rosen suggests that Adam go to the clinic for further treatment and the Alpha agrees. Rosen
asks Cameron and Bill to escort Adam to the clinic and then leaves on some pressing business.

As an orderly takes Adam down to the lobby in the elevator, the lights start to flicker and Adam
hears Maggie calling for help even though the orderly hears nothing. The Alpha goes berserk and
struggles with his keeper. When the elevator arrives at the lobby, Cameron and Bill find the
injured orderly and see Adam climbing up the walls of the elevator shaft.

At the memorial unveiling, a rabbi speaks about how Anna’s spirit is still with them. Gary
doesn’t grasp the idea of her spirit being there and insists that Anna isn’t there. Rachel tries to
calm him down but she gets a call from Bill and leaves with Gary.

As night falls, Cameron and Bill coordinate the orderlies’ search of the hospital. Rachel uses
her enhanced hearing and hears someone calling for help, and Cameron has Gary tap into the
security cameras. While Gary stays behind, the others track the voice into the closed wing of the
hospital. Bill has checked with the staff and learned that they’ve seen strange figures moving
around and experienced equipment malfunctions. They split up and Cameron goes off on his
own.

Gary is checking the cameras when he notices Anna approaching out. He reminds her that
she’s dead and that even when she was alive, she couldn’t talk. Anna says that it’s different now
and Gary confirms that no one else can see her. She reminds Gary that he can see signals all the
time and then fades out and then back into sight.

Nina returns to tell Rosen what Burton told her. Rosen figures that the information is still in
Burton’s mind and suggests that Nina try to ”pull” rather than ”push with her ability and recover
the memory. He’s confident that with her new enhanced abilities, she can do it but assures Nina
that he won’t let her do it if she isn’t comfortable doing so. Nina agrees and tells Rosen that
Burton will be leaving on a red-eye flight in a few hours.

Despite the time limit, Rosen suggests that Nina test her ability on Kit and see if she can
retrieve any of her lost memories. They meet with Kit and she agrees to let them experiment on
her. As Rosen hooks her up to the monitoring equipment, Kit takes Nina’s hand and says that it
feels right. Nina then ”pulls” and tells Kit to focus on her sixteenth birthday. Kit recalls the walls
and the cake and then recalls a woman that was at the party. Satisfied with the results, Rosen
takes Nina to the airport to meet with Burton.

Gary follows Anna into a stairwell and points out that, just like a signal, she’s getting more
solid as she moves upward. However, he doesn’t believe that she’s a signal but admits he’s not
sure what she is. Anna touches him, much to Gary’s surprise, and thanks him for wearing a suit
to her memorial.

Rachel tracks Adam’s voice to an operating room but discovers that Bill has vanished. The
lights flicker and Adam drops down from where he’s been clinging to the ceiling. Cameron and
Bill join up and hear her scream, but by the time they get to the operating room there’s no sign of
their teammate. Cameron tries to call her without success and complains that Bill was supposed
to stay with her. However, Bill says that he thought Rachel was with Cameron. Cameron calls in
security to search the floor while Bill calls Rosen at the airport. Rosen says that he’ll get there as
soon as he can. Nina spots Burton and Rosen asks her about Kit holding her hand. Nina explains
that she could tell that Kit spent a lot of time in hospitals and that someone held her hand the
same way. She then assures Rosen that she wants to go through with their plan.

As Gary and Anna walk through the halls, Bill calls Gary. However, Gary tells his teammate
that he’s busy talking to Anna and hangs up. Anna tells Gary that he should help his fellow
Alphas and he pings for Rachel’s cell phone.

Nina and Rosen get to Burton in the VIP lounge and Nina goes to work. Burton describes the
man from the foundation who approached her and mentions the name ”August.” Before Nina can
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get more detail, Burton’s aides arrive and Burton leaves with them. Rosen tells Nina that they’ll
find out what August Burton was talking about.

As Bill searches for Rachel, he catches a glimpse of someone following him. Meanwhile,
Cameron is going up the stairs and hears the sound of a baseball game up above. A baseball
bounces down the stairs and Cameron hears Tyler calling for him. He follows the voice and sees
two orderlies taking Tyler away on a gurney.

Adam handcuffs Rachel to an operating chair and, seeing her as Maggie, prepares to use a
dialysis machine to drain out all of her blood so that he can clean the drugs from her system.
Rachel manages to grab a scalpel and, using her enhanced hearing, picks the lock and runs for
it. She sees Adam chasing her and takes an elevator to the hydrotherapy. However, it’s Bill that
is actually chasing her. When he misses her at the elevator, he runs down the stairs after the
elevator. Meanwhile, Adam hears Maggie calling him from a nearby sink. When he looks into the
water, he sees Maggie drowning. Adam bends over to help her and she pulls him in.

By the time Bill gets to the elevator, there’s no sign of Rachel. The scalpel is on the floor and
the words ”I’m drowning” are scratched on the wall. As Bill continues searching for Rachel, he
sees the figure behind him again. He picks up a mirror and sees...

himself. However, the image becomes Gary, who says that Anna asked him to ping Rachel’s
phone. Bill reminds him that Anna is dead and wonders if Gary is hallucinating. However, Gary
insists that Anna is alive and leaves to find her.

Cameron chases after his son but the orderlies lock a door behind them and take Tyler to the
morgue.

Bill finds Rachel’s cell phone in the operating room and then finds Adam’s corpse in the sink.
As Gary and Anna walk down the hall, he sees a tray of instruments vibrating on a cart.

Realizing that a signal is responsible, Gary takes out Skylar’s phone and uses it confirm that an
infrasound signal is vibrating the tray.

Rosen arrives at the hospital wing and locates Bill, who brings him up to speed. Gary catches
up to them and Bill says that something bizarre is going on. Gary explains about the infrasound
signal and Rosen is aware that infrasound can affect the human brain. Worse, Alpha brains are
particularly sensitive to infrasound. Bill figures that Rachel is affected by the signal and Gary
tells them that he can see Anna. He then plays back the signal on Skyler’s phone and Rosen has
him modify it so they can hear it.

Once Gary does, they can hear the words, ”Help me, I’m drowning.” Bill figures that it’s Rachel
and prepares to search for her, but Rosen warns him that the closer he gets to the signal source,
the more powerful the signal will become.

Rachel arrives at the hydrotherapy pool and sees Nina at the bottom of the pool. She dives in
to rescue her friend.

As Gary and Rosen go through the halls, Gary tells Rosen that Anna is becoming more solid as
they trace the signature. Rosen figures that each of them is responding to a plea for help based
on the subliminal cry in the infrasound signal and is sure that they’re dealing with a person, not
a machine.

The orderlies strap Cameron to a gurney and prepare to slice open his chest.
Bill tries to get to the pool but the mysterious figure blocks him. It’s his doppelganger, which

attacks him as both men amp up.
When Rachel tries to rescue Nina, Nina grabs her and pulls her down, drowning her.
Gary informs Rosen that there were three patients involved in drowning incidents. The third

one, sixteen-year-old Jason Miller, is in a vegetative state and his parents have okayed the shut-
down of his life support system. Rosen realizes that he can stop the infrasound and goes to find
Jason. Anna appears to Gary and asks what’s wrong, and he admits that he realizes that she’s
a hallucination induced by the infrasound. He tells her that he likes seeing her and then goes to
find Jason. He finds him in the coma ward and locks the doors, and Rosen arrives and asks him
to open the door before their teammates are killed. Gary insists that he needs to keep Jason in
his coma because then he can see Anna. Rosen warns him that he’s not thinking clearly because
of the signal, but Gary doesn’t care and wants to save Anna the way he couldn’t when she was
alive. After a moment, Rosen asks Gary to ask Anna what she wants him to do. He refuses at
first, but finally turns to her and she says that Jason is an Alpha and Gary has to help him. Gary
unlocks the door and lets Rosen in, and the doctor administers a drug to wake Jason up.
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Bill’s hallucination of a doppelganger disappears, while Cameron discovers that he has been
cutting himself with a scalpel. Anna kisses Gary on the check and then disappears.

When he realizes what has happened, Bill runs to the pool and pulls Rachel out just in time.
Later, Rosen talks to Jason but he doesn’t remember anything about drowning. A nurse is

using a photic stimulator to test another coma patient for brain activity and she admits that she
used the same equipment on Jason. Rosen is fascinated because the name of the stimulator’s
manufacturer is August Medical.

The next day, Cameron goes to his ex-wife’s house and asks to see Tyler. She reluctantly lets
him in and Cameron embraces his puzzled son.

Nina checks on Rachel, who tries to ignore her. However, after a moment Rachel thanks her
for asking.

Kit memorizes art lesson and then paints a picture of the woman from her memories. As she
touches its hand, she remembers the woman who touched her hand.

Gary comes to see Rosen with his report on the photic stimulator. There are 2,700 of them in
use across the country and Rosen admits that he doesn’t know if Stanton is involved. He asks
Gary for Skylar’s phone so that he can call and have her study the device. Gary talks about
Anna in the present tense but tells Rosen that he knows she’s dead. However, he’s come up with
another way to honor him.

He goes back to his office and secretly sends an Anna-Lives tweet saying that the revolution
is coming.
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Alphaville

Season 2
Episode Number: 17
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Monday August 27, 2012
Writer: Michael Chamoy
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish)
Guest Stars: Steve Byers (John Bennett), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle Sophia Rosen),

Summer Glau (Skylar Adams), Elias Toufexis (Cornell Scipio), Skyler
Wexler (Zoe), Conrad Coates (Claude), Kaniehtiio Horn (Trisha),
Nathaniel Stephenson (Bip), Grant Nickalls (Gower)

Summary: Rosen traces Skylar to an isolated Alpha colony to get her help exam-
ining Stanton’s photic stimulator. However, Stanton sends a team to
recover the machine and the colonists are caught in the middle.

Bill and Rosen watch Cold War footage
of tests on potential Alphas using light
stimulation of the cortex. Rosen reminds
his teammate that Stanton somehow con-
vinced Burton to fund the photic stimula-
tor and fast-track it through the FDA. Kit
hasn’t found anything and Rosen figures
that it was somehow used to enhance Ja-
son Miller’s Alpha ability. The manufac-
turer will soon be distributing thousands
of them throughout the country. When
Bill reminds Rosen that Cley wants the
device turned over by the next morning,

Rosen tells him that it’s going to Skylar Adams instead.
John takes Rachel to a diner but with her enhanced senses, she’s unable to enjoy the food.

She tells him that she has to go and John complains that even though he’s the head of tactical,
the team is keeping secrets from him. Rachel finds it sweet that she wants to protect him, but
flinches when he takes her hand and says that they need to take it slowly.

At the office, the team convinces Gary to go with them because it’s too dangerous for him to
remain behind once Stanton realizes that they have the machine. Gary reluctantly agrees and
they head for the elevator. Cameron is on the phone talking to Danielle at her apartment. She
hears them talking about their mission in the background but Cameron doesn’t give her any
specifics. Nina comes in and tells the team that she’s going with them, and Rosen assures them
that Nina will be using her powers for good and under careful monitoring. Nina agrees, saying
that she has to do it to prove to herself that she can. Once Danielle hangs up, she sends a text
message to someone saying that the team is on the move.

Gary traces the signal from Skylar’s phone and they find themselves deep in the forest. They
enter a dead zone and Gary is shocked to discover that he can’t connect with any signals. Several
men block the road ahead and their leader, Gower, tells them that they’re not welcome. When
Cameron tries to drive through, Gower slaps his hand on the car and generates an electromag-
netic pulse that stops the engine. Skylar comes up the road and tells Gower to back off, but
angrily tells Rosen that they’re not friends. She tells him to go home and walks away. Rosen goes

67



Alphas Episode Guide

after her and apologizes for not leaving her alone as he promised, but insists that he needs her
help. Nina also asks her friend for help and Rosen reminds Skylar that he helped her escape the
NSA. Skylar takes them to the old summer camp that is now a colony for Alphas hiding from
the world. Bill tells Cameron to stay with Rosen and the machine while he does a security check
with the others.

Skylar takes the machine to her cabin to examine. As Rosen watches, Skylar’s daughter Zoe
comes in and Skylar admits that the girl is always doing something and disrupting her work.
Rosen manages to keep the girl’s attention and admits that he’s had plenty of experience with
his own daughter.

As Bill and Gary look around, bees start swarming around Gary. He tries to brush them off
without success, and one of the colony Alphas, Claude, comes over and uses his ability to make
them fly away. He explains that he founded the colony and says that they’ve never had any
security problems before. When Gary complains about the absence of signals, Claude tells him
that Nature also has signals and walks away.

That night, Skylar continues examining the machine and admits to Rosen that it’s difficult
raising a young Alpha. She came to the colony because they’ve gathered to help each other.
Skylar then finds a power drain within the machine but isn’t sure if it’s a design flaw or not.
Claude brings Zoe in and refuses to shake hands with Rosen. Neither Skylar nor Rosen answer
his questions about the machine and he leaves. When Rosen wonders what the matter is with
him, Skylar explains that many of the Alphas are angry at Rosen for going public with their
existence. She goes to dinner and Rosen insists on taking the machine with him.

In the woods, Gary and Bill are on patrol and Gary insists that he wants to go back to the
office and get his things. However, his attention is diverted when he notices a pulsar in the sky
and picks up its radio signals. As he goes to an old parking lot to get a clear view of the sky, he
and Bill are unaware that a Building Seven escapee, Bip, is using his ability to keep them from
perceiving him. When they go back to the colony, Bip joins Scipio and their teammate Trisha in
the woods. When Bip wonders if they should attack, Scipio reminds them that their orders are
to get the machine but only if Skylar works out how valuable it is.

As they eat at the colony, Gary tells the others that he’s learning how to perceive the signals
given off by the plants and rocks.

Nina chats with Skylar and comments on how she’s become more responsible now that she’s
a mother. Skylar tells her friend that she came to the colony for Zoe, not for herself, and that
she’s having trouble with motherhood. She comments on how Nina’s teammates are angry at her
and Nina admits that she feels isolated since she went on her rampage.

At the neighboring table, Rachel and Claude discuss how humans exploit other creatures.
Rosen joins in and insists that it’s a beneficial relationship between humans and Alphas. Claude
isn’t impressed, saying that they didn’t elect Rosen as their spokesman or ask him to go public.
Rosen persists, asking what Claude would do if his beehives were going to collapse no matter
what he did, and Claude doesn’t have a ready answer.

As Rosen walks back to his cabin, Gower attacks him, knocking him to the ground and then
using his ability on Rosen’s heart. Cameron arrives in time to stun Gower with a well-thrown
rock. Bill and the others arrive and figure Gower was trying to steal the machine, but he insists
he has no idea what it is. Claude objects, saying that his colonists don’t believe in violence,
and that Rosen set it off by going public with their identity. Gower complains that when Rosen
revealed Gower’s existence to the world, his wife and daughter left him. Rosen tries to explain to
Gower why he did it, but Claude interrupts him and tells Rosen and the others to leave in the
morning. As they go, they discover that the machine was broken open when Gower attacked and
knocked it to the ground.

The next morning, Gary goes up on a hill to listen to his new signals. Meanwhile, Skylar and
Rachel try to repair the machine, and Rachel spots a miniature control circuit embedded in the
wires. Rachel suggests that Skylar and Zoe come with them, but Skylar says that she has to stay
for Zoe’s sake and that she sometimes wishes that she was alone. Zoe overhears her and runs
off, and Skylar goes after her. When Rachel starts to go after both of them, she accidentally turns
the machine on and the light beam shines directly into her eyes. She has a seizure and collapses,
saying that she’s gone blind and is overwhelmed by sounds.

Skylar goes into the forest after Zoe. Gary tries to get her attention and asks for a cabin so he
can stay, but she ignores him and keeps going.
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Rosen realizes that the machine amplifies Alphas’ abilities, and Skylar’s modifications have
inadvertently made it even more powerful. He has Rachel use her focusing protocols to get control
of her senses and she manages to recover.

In the woods, Bip follows Zoe and then corners Skylar when she crosses on a bridge. Scipio
cuts off the other side and apologizes for scaring her, and then asks her to give him the machine.
Skylar refuses, saying that it isn’t hers to give, but Scipio points out that Rosen stole it from
them. Bip shows Skylar Zoe’s doll as Scipio repeats his demands.

The others go to the van and Gary insists that he’s staying... until Nina tells him that they
don’t have Chinese and Thai takeout in the forest. Gary runs off while Rosen discovers that
someone has taken the machine and left Zoe’s doll. He finds Gary, who tells him where Skylar
ran off into the woods.

Skylar takes the machine to an old barn where Scipio is waiting for her. She insists on seeing
her daughter and when Scipio refuses, she aims her modified electrical gun at him. Rosen arrives
and tells her that she can’t trust Scipio because he works for Skylar, and Skylar explains about
Zoe. Scipio disarms her, using his power to burn her wrist, and Rosen grabs the device and uses
it to give Scipio a seizure. He then takes Skylar to the van, promising that they’ll find Zoe for
her. They drive into the forest and Rachel uses her super-charged senses to hear Zoe breathing.
Cameron and Bill prepare to rescue the girl and Skylar insists on going with them.

Scipio recovers from his seizure and discovers that his powers have increased a dozenfold,
burning hotter and reaching further. He sets the barn on fire and heads off to find Skylar.

While Cameron breaks into the second floor of the house where the Building Seven team has
gathered, Rachel smells smoke and realizes that Scipio has set a forest fire. She tells Rosen and
Nina that it’s heading toward the colony and they drive back to help.

Cameron moves through the second floor of the house, unaware that Bip is preparing to kill
him. When Cameron steps out on a balcony and spots Zoe below, the girl yells a warning when
she sees Bip. Cameron shoots the Alpha in the foot and jumps down, shooting the gun out of
Trisha’s hand. However, she’s a hyperkinetic like him, the sister of the one he fought at Highland
Mills. They fight and Trisha throws a saw blade into Cameron’s leg. Before she can kill him, Bill
breaks through the wall and knocks her unconscious.

Skylar arrives and they follow Zoe to the basement. However, Scipio appears at the top of the
stairs and sets the house on fire, cutting off their only escape. As the smoke gets heavier, Skylar
starts piecing together the junk in the basement to make a giant fire extinguisher.

Rosen and the others get back to the colony and try to help as the Alphas evacuate. Gower
accepts Rosen’s help but Claude tells the doctor to get out of the way.

Skylar and Bill put the fire extinguisher into place while Zoe helps Cameron bind his wound.
Once the fire is out, Skylar takes Zoe out and Bill carries the wounded Cameron outside. By the
time they get outside, Skylar has slipped away with her daughter. Rosen and the others arrive
and Bill insists that they get Cameron to a hospital before he bleeds out.

Later, Skylar goes to a diner with her daughter. Zoe is much happier and draws a picture of
the two of them together. Stanton comes to their tables and introduces himself, and offers them
an environment where they can both thrive. He apologizes for his team getting away and offers
Skylar a chance to make the world a better place for Zoe. Skylar considers his office and secretly
reaches for her electric gun.

At the office, John checks in on Rachel. She tells him what happened and that Rosen isn’t
sure if the enhanced effect will ever fade away. John offers her an origami bird, knowing she
doesn’t want something with a scent, and Rachel tells him that he’s the only person who gets
her. She promises him that she’s still herself and they kiss.

Danielle arrives and visits Cameron in his office. He assures her that he’s fine and says that
he’s looking forward to having medical leave with her.

Rosen and Bill meet and Rosen admits that he told Cley that the machine was destroyed in the
fire. Bill warns him that the lying will eventually catch up to him and points out that Scipio was
expecting them. Rosen figures that someone close to them is a traitor and asks Bill to secretly
vet everyone.
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Gods and Monsters

Season 2
Episode Number: 18
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Monday September 10, 2012
Writer: Kira Snyder
Director: Mairzee Almas
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Erin Way (Kat), John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Kathleen
Munroe (Danielle Sophia Rosen)

Guest Stars: Lauren Holly (Senator Charlotte Burton), Connor Price (Jason Miller),
Allie MacDonald (Lisa), Philip Nozuka (Evan), Nicki Whitely (Molly),
Adriano Sobretodo Jr. (Mimic Alpha)

Summary: Rosen and Parish face off against each other after a young Alphas
emerges with the deadly ability to control minds.

Nina and Rosen go to Washington to meet
with Senator Charlotte Burton again so
Nina can use her ability to order Bur-
ton to recall and destroy all of the August
Medical photo stims. After Burton turns
over the files, Nina tells her that they’re
friends and that she should leave. As the
senator crosses the street, Nina winces
briefly and Rosen asks if she’s having
another headache. She assures him that
she’s fine and then notices that Burton
has frozen in the middle of the street.
Nina gets her to the curb just in time and

a dazed Burton wanders off.
Junior Jason Miller goes to the senior dance and approaches one of the girls, Lisa. He suggests

that they might go on a date but Lisa reminds him that she has a boyfriend, Cody. Cody comes
over and invites Jason to come outside with him. Lisa is unhappy with the situation but doesn’t
stop Cody. Once outside, Cody and his friends beat up on Jason and tell him to get lost. Jason
grabs Cody’s hand and tells him that to stop.

Cody goes back to the gym and tells Lisa that she should date Jason. Another girl, Molly,
agrees and they escort Lisa outside.

Several other seniors have gathered and they all tell Lisa that Jason is cool. One of Cody’s
friends, Evan, mindlessly walks through the outer glass doors and joins in with the chanting.
Jason steps out of the group and takes Lisa’s hand, and she immediately starts agreeing with
him.

Kat is at the office and brings Rosen the police report on two high school students, Molly
and Evan, who were brought in after displaying strange behavior. When Rosen comments that
Bill usually handles police reports, Kat says that Bill had a rough night and that’s she’s helping
him out. She suggests that she might work as a probationary agent with the team but Gary
refuses, saying that she’s trying to steal Bill from him. Kat assures him that she isn’t and leaves.
Rosen and Rachel go to see the students and Kat reads from the report. They were two of fifteen
students that chased Lisa from the senior dance. When she mentions that Jason was apparently
in charge of the group, Rosen and Rachel recognize the teenager’s name. They go in and Rosen
asks if they’ve heard of Jason, and both students mindlessly deny having ever heard of him.
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Bill comes in later, limping, and Rosen asks if he’s okay. He doesn’t push the issue and asks
about the mole, and Bill says that he’s cleared the immediate team and Kat, and is starting on
family and support team. Rosen suggests telling Cley about the mole but Bill doesn’t trust their
DoD contact. Rachel tells them that both students have synchronized EEG brain patterns on the
MRI, and Rosen realizes that they’ve become extensions of Jason’s consciousness. When Rachel
points out that Jason could only affect Alphas before, Rosen speculates that exposure to the
photo stim boosted his abilities. Rachel hears an infrasound frequency and confirms that it’s
connected to the two students.

Danielle meets Stanton in the park and reports on her father’s progress. She insists that
Rosen should have a place in their future but Stanton isn’t convinced. He suggests that the gap
between them may be too great but suggests that one of his former patients could bridge the
divide.

Rosen sedates Molly and Evan as Hicks arrives to tell them that Jason’s parents aren’t an-
swering their phone. Nina tries to use her ability on Molly but is unable to get through the
infrasound frequency. She figures that it’s Jason’s will that is opposing her and that they have
to find him and cut the signal at its source.

Rosen goes to the school first while Bill assembles the rest of the team. The students are all
using the same mannerisms that Jason has, and Rosen checks with Bill. Bill figures that Jason
will go back to the school to show off his new power and signs off, and Jason finds Rosen. As
they talk, Lisa and the other students slowly gather around them and walk in unison, while
Jason assures Rosen that he’s fine. When Rosen suggests that Jason come in for some tests,
Jason refuses and walks away while the controlled students form a human barrier between him
and Rosen. Rosen takes a shortcut and tries to stop Jason, warning him that he’s hurting the
other students. Jason grabs the hand of a school security officer and then orders him to draw
his gun on Rosen. The teenager demands that Rosen leave him alone, but Stanton arrives and
knocks out the security guard. The gun goes off and the students panic as Jason momentarily
loses control. As they run off, Stanton tells Rosen that they need to talk.

By the time Bill and the others get there with the police, Rosen and Jason have both dis-
appeared. As Gary checks the security monitors, Rosen calls and tells Bill that he’s with the
school psychologist. However, it is actually one of Stanton’s Alphas, using his voice powers to
mimic Rosen’s voice. Stanton and Rosen are walking toward the street and Stanton explains
that he’s there because Jason’s public display of power is threatening Alphas everywhere. Rosen
points out that Stanton boosted Jason’s abilities with the photo stim, but Stanton points out that
Rosen ignored Jason’s problems because he was in a rush to shut down August Medical. The
Alpha suggests that they work together but Rosen isn’t interested, even when Stanton threatens
Danielle.

Nina is at the office watching the news as a clearly confused Burton stumbles through an
interview, echoing Nina’s words to her earlier. As her handlers escort her away, Nina calls to
make an appointment to see Burton as Rachel comes in.

Stanton takes Rosen to a warehouse where he has set up a makeshift treatment center for
Jason’s mother. The Alphas explains that Jason’s mother has dozens of subdural hematomas
caused by Jason’s ability eroding her brain. Rosen insists that they send her to a hospital for
treatment and Stanton immediately agrees. After examining the MRI scans, Rosen warns that
the students at the high school have a more flexible cerebral structure and will survive longer,
but eventually Jason’s ability will kill them as well. He blames Stanton for creating a weapon of
mass destruction but Stanton points out that Rosen is the one who is having Nina push Burton
and weakening her mind.

Nina tells Rachel that Burton has been hospitalized, supposedly from exhaustion, and she
wants to help. Rachel points out that there’s nothing to tie Burton’s condition to the team but
Nina insists that it’s her responsibility. She takes out the file showing the data on how her power
affects the human brain and explains that she wants to get it to Burton’s doctor. Rachel gives
in but insists that they make sure Rosen is onboard. When she calls Rosen, the Alpha mimic
answers and Rachel immediately realizes that he’s an imposter because of her enhanced hearing.

At the warehouse, Rosen and Stanton review the data on Jason and Rosen realizes that
there’s no potential limit on how many people the teenager can control. Stanton admits that he
had hoped when Jason came out of his coma, he would be mature enough to wield his power
responsibly. He mentions the many children that he’s had and Rosen tries to talk about his
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loneliness as an immortal, but Stanton refuses to discuss it. He suggests that Rosen have Nina
use her power directly on Jason while he directs her based his knowledge. Rosen agrees and says
that he needs to bring in his team, but Stanton figures that it’s a trap. They’re interrupted when
Rachel calls and demands to talk to Rosen. Working together, Gary and Rachel trace the call
and Bill assures Stanton that they can have an assault team there in minutes. Rosen promises
to let Stanton go once they deal with Jason and Stanton reluctantly gives him the phone. Once
they’re sure Rosen is unharmed, the team discusses their next move and Rosen suggests that
Gary check for infrasonic clusters at the addresses of Jason’s victims.

Jason and his controlled victims have gone to one victim’s house and are throwing a party.
Jason goes to the bedroom with Lisa and tells her to remove her clothing. However, when she
does so, Jason tells her that he wants her to want to do it for him. She merely echoes his words
and he apologizes, on the verge of tears. Gary tracks down the apartment and Bill, Hicks, and
Rachel go inside. All of the students stop dancing and watch the trio, who go to the bedroom.
Jason insists that he didn’t touch Lisa and that she’s not herself. Hicks asks Jason to come with
them for treatment and he agrees.

The trio takes Jason to the SUV where the others are waiting. Federal agents arrive to take
Jason into custody and the teenager panics. All of his victims run downstairs in response to
his panic and Jason tells Hicks that he’s changing his mind. He runs off and Gary goes after
him, while the students swarm the team like ants. Hicks gets free and goes after Jason and
Gary, picking up a tranq dart as he goes. Gary tries to capture Jason but the teenager grabs a
pedestrian and has him punch Gary in the face. Hicks arrives, knocks out the pedestrian, and
throws the dart into Jason’s back. The others pull up in the SUV and they escape just in time as
the swarm runs down the street after them.

Back at the office, Rachel and Rosen prepare Jason for a MRI. Rosen introduces the team to
Stanton, who tells Nina that he has to engage Jason at a primitive emotional level while Rosen
talks to the boy and convinces him to release his victims. Now that he has what he needs, Rosen
tells Hicks and Bill to take Stanton out. In the hallway, Stanton realizes that Rosen has broken
his word and they’re taking him into custody. Gary comes out of his office and accuses Stanton
of murdering Anna. The immortal says that it was the government that shot Anna and it was
Rosen who did nothing. He points out that Alphas are the ones who die for Rosen’s mistakes,
giving Gary something to think about as he’s taken away. Hicks and Bill lock him up in one of the
reinforced containment cells and assign two guards to watch him. Rosen comes in and realizes
that Stanton set up the whole thing to get to Rosen and recruit him.

Stanton admits that he’s right and points out that they’d be a great team, but Rosen reminds
him that he threatened Danielle. Once he leaves, Stanton asks the guards for water and they
give him a plastic cup for it.

As Rosen tries to convince Jason to free his victims, Stanton tells the guards about how during
World War II, a lieutenant lost his men to a German minefield when they refused to obey orders.
As he talks, he folds the plastic cup into a jagged edge and then cuts his throat.

Rosen explains to Jason what he’s doing to his mother and the others, but Jason doesn’t
believe him. He says that he wants to leave and Molly and Evan, confined in the building, wake
up. Nina and Rachel sedate them but the other students home in on Jason and storm the
building.

The two guards go in to check on Stanton. He comes back to life and casually kills them, and
then takes their security badges and a gun.

Hicks gets tranq rifles from the armory and gets back to the office as Gary seals the blast
doors. However, the students crowd up against the doors and the team realizes that they’ll crush
themselves trying to get in. Gary opens the doors and the students pour in and surround the
conference room office, pounding on the windows.

Rosen has found Nina and takes her to see Jason, only to discover that he’s fled. Nina heads
back to the office while Rosen looks for Jason and finds him outside a room where Stanton is
standing passively. Rosen realizes that Jason used his power on Stanton, but Jason explains that
the immortal has taken control of his collective now. Realizing that they’re out of options, Rosen
asks Jason to bring him into the collective as well. Rosen finds himself in a mental landscape
based on the school dance, in a gymnasium filled with all of Jason’s victims. They slowly leave
Jason and walk over to Stanton, who tells Rosen that he made sure to implant a neural failsafe
in Jason’s mind.
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The students continue pounding on the inside windows, trying to break them down to get at
the team.

Stanton explains that since Jason can’t handle his power, he’ll be taking charge. Rosen tells
Jason that he has to break the link and set everyone free rather than let Stanton get con-
trol. Stanton reminds Jason that Rosen isn’t one of them and that he’ll be alone forever. Rosen
promises that it will be different this time and Jason breaks the link. As the students disappear
from Jason’s mindscape, Stanton tries to stop the teenager and Rosen grabs him. As they strug-
gle, their minds merge and Rosen sees disjointed images of a painting, an address on a piece of
paper, and an entire city blacking out.

The collective members revert to normal and stop pounding on the windows. Rachel confirms
that she can no longer hear the infrasonic signal and they go to find Rosen.

Rosen wakes up next to Jason as the others arrive. They realize that Stanton has leaped out
of an upper-story window and made his escape.

Later, Rachel finishes releasing the students and checks in with Rachel. The former room-
mates chat casually and Rachel tells Nina that John has introduced her to Scotch. She offers her
friend a drink but Nina asks for a rain check because she has to get the file to Burton’s doctor.

As Hicks and Rosen finish, Hicks realizes that Stanton had inside information that allowed
him to make his escape. Rosen admits that he underestimated their opponent and that Stanton
knew all along and used the opportunity to meet the team. As they come to Hicks’ office, he
assures Rosen that they’ll capture Stanton again. Rosen notices a painting and Hicks explains
that Danielle painted it...

and it’s the same one Rosen saw in Stanton’s memories.
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Falling

Season 2
Episode Number: 19
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Monday September 17, 2012
Writer: Nina Fiore, John Herrera
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Erin Way (Kat), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle Sophia Rosen), Mahershala
Ali (Nathan Cley)

Guest Stars: Steve Byers (John Bennett), Gianpaolo Venuta (Dylan Renfro), Eli-
jha Hammill (Duncan Cley), Gage Munroe (Tyler Hicks), Azra Valani
(Shelly), Michael Ayers (Tony), Marni Van Dyk (April)

Summary: While Kat takes on her first mission tracking down a street drug that
gives normal humans temporary Alpha powers, Rosen discovers the
identity of the mole.

Four young adults go to the top of a tall
building, take a drug, and then jump.
They film themselves going down and
crashing into the street below... and then
getting up and walking away.

Rosen goes to Cley’s home as the NSA
agent is fixing breakfast and apologizes
for interrupting him. He’s eager to learn
about how the investigation is going into
the mole and Cley explains that when
they recently rescued Rosen, they were
briefly able to penetrate Stanton’s com-
munications network and download his

call list. The list was encrypted and the NSA is working overtime to unscramble it. Cley’s son
Duncan comes in to get tape for his school project and Cley admits that it’s hard to tell when to
help a child or let them try to solve their problems on their own. Rosen agrees and asks to look
at the list, but Cley warns him that even he has limited access.

When Rosen goes back to the office, John and Bill show him the newly discovered video of the
jumping incident, posted on the Internet. Bill figures that the drug they’re taking turns people
into Alphas. Rosen, distracted by his personal situation, tells Bill to handle it. Meanwhile, Kat
gives Gary a plant for his office but he figures that it has bugs. Bill tracks down Gary and asks
him to do face grabs from the video and find them on the Internet. When Kat wonders what she
can do, he tells her to get rid of the bugs on the plant.

In the break room, Rachel and John are discussing their upcoming dinner with her parents.
She assures him that she isn’t panicking and he tells her that if he can handle combat then he
can handle her parents. Once he leaves, Nina tells Rachel to take deep breaths as she starts
panicking, and Rachel figures that her parents will tear John up.

In his office, Rosen watches videos of Danielle as a young girl while waiting for Gary. When
Gary comes in response to his call, Rosen asks him to take on a secret assignment for him and
Gary agrees.

Cameron and Danielle pick up Cameron’s son at the airport as he arrives from Arizona for
a visitation weekend. As they go, Danielle tries to talk to Tyler but he’s clearly uncomfortable
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around his father’s new girlfriend. The boy casually tosses his pop can into a nearby garbage
can, ricocheting the shot without looking, and Cameron and Danielle both notice.

After checking the Internet, Gary tracks down Kat in the break room and tells her that she’s
under arrest. Bill asks what’s going on and Gary shows him videos of the jumpers’ leader, Daryl
Renfro. He’s found Facebook photos of Daryl with Kat from a year ago. Kat doesn’t remember him
because of her neural problems and Gary reports that there are videos of a lot of people using
the new drug, Jump, to do invulnerability stunts. He tells them that Dylan has an advertisement
to a party on his Facebook page and Kat suggests that she go undercover and meet with him. Bill
doesn’t like it, pointing out that she doesn’t have any field training, but Kat reminds him that
she kicked his ass in the fight club.

That night, Kat goes to the club party while Bill and Gary wait in the van and run surveillance.
Dylan quickly finds Kat and tells her that they knew each other, and he knows that she forgets
things. He kisses Kat to remind her and another girl, April, takes offense. Dylan explains that
Kat’s an old friend and asks for a minute alone with her, and April angrily walks away. As they
talk, Dylan and Kat see a kid on the club floor letting another kid hit him with a baseball bat
without doing any damage. Kat asks if Dylan has a sample and he has one for her as well as
himself. They both take the drug and Dylan leads her out to the roof. At the van, Bill and Gary
lose the signal as she moves out of range. As the drug’s effects overwhelm Kat, Dylan takes her
hand and they jump off the roof together, crashing to the street below. Neither one of them is
harmed and they run off before the police can arrive.

Back at the office, Rachel keeps warning John about her parents. He speaks in Farsi, telling
her that he’s good at parent, and she’s shocked to learn that he can speak the language. John
admits that he wanted it to be a surprise but Rachel isn’t happy.

Kat and Bill return and Bill complains that she broke the first rule of field operations. She
points out that he’s just mad because she succeeded and then tells him to take a sample of her
blood to analyze the drug. Meanwhile, Gary hacks the NSA computers, gets the encrypted phone
list, and takes it to Rosen. He explains that he cracked the decryption, which was apparently
created by an Alpha mathematician, and Rosen asks him to identify the numbers going to active
phones in the NYC area.

At his apartment, Cameron and Danielle discuss Tyler throwing the can. She assures him
that it doesn’t matter whether Tyler is an Alpha or not, but Cameron wants to make sure he’s
comfortable with his abilities if he is. When he suggests having Rosen run some tests, Danielle
advises against it, pointing out that her father ran tests on her and it ruined her life. She takes
Cameron’s hand and he immediately agrees with her, and they tell each other that they love the
other.

After analyzing the blood sample, Rachel tells the others that Jump reshapes human tissues,
hardening it and providing invulnerability. Nina has checked the hospital records and confirmed
that one of the users, Tony Dolan, died of cardiac fibrosis when the hardening reached his heart,
and Gary turns up eight other incidents in the last three weeks. Bill worries that Kat might be in
danger and tells her to get checked out while they work to get Jump off the streets.

When Danielle goes home to her apartment, she finds her father waiting for him on the steps.
She’s surprised to see him and Rosen claims that he just stopped by to see her. Danielle invites
him in and he notices that she’s kept a painting she did in seventh grade, and reminds her that
she used to share everything with him. She worries that she’s screwing up her relationship with
Cameron but Rosen tells her that nothing is inevitable and Danielle admits that she’s starting to
believe it herself. When she goes to get her father some tea, Rosen goes through her purse and
finds her cellphone. The number doesn’t match any of the active phones on Stanton’s list, but
he finds a second phone that is a match. Rosen puts the phones back just in time as Danielle
comes back.

The next morning, Cley meets Rosen as he takes the elevator to his office. The NSA agent
notices that Rosen looks concerned and assures him that he’ll tripled the manpower and will
soon decrypt the phone list. As Cley gets off, he tells Rosen that he helped Duncan with his
project and figures that when a child needs help, a parent helps.

Rachel discusses John with Nina and admits that she cancelled the dinner with her parents.
When Nina asks why, Rachel explain that she’s worried that her parents might actually like John
but she’s not ready for a relationship. She explains that her last boyfriend was three years ago
and that she had to get drunk to avoid feeling anything physical with him. Nina assures her that
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John isn’t the same man but Rachel explains that she still feels like a freak. Her friend tells her
that she’s changed in three years and that they’re all freaks, and Rachel has nothing to worry
about.

Kat meets with Dylan on the roof of his apartment and he provides her favorite ice cream dish,
even though she doesn’t remember it.

She’s surprised to discover that she likes it and then asks what they’re going to do that night.
Dylan assures her that he can get all of the Jump he wants and then shows her a knife with
the initials JD on it. He tells Kat that it’s hers and she gave it to him the last time they met. He
doesn’t know who JD is and that she used the knife to hustle money doing a knife trick with her
fingers.

When Kat goes back to the office later, she tells Bill that they can’t arrest Dylan. He figures
they can force Dylan to give up his Jump source, but Kat says that she’ll convince him to provide
the information. Bill doesn’t buy it and orders her off the case while he takes care of it.

Cameron takes Tyler to the local baseball field but the boy keeps missing pitches. The waiting
Little League players laugh at him and a disgusted Tyler says that he wants to go back to Arizona.

Gary finds Kat trying to get the vehicle for one of the official cars. He already figured that she
was going to disobey Bill’s orders, but Kat says that she cares about Dylan the same way that he
cares about Bill. She realizes that only an authorized agent can check out a car and sweet-talks
Gary into helping her in return for the chance to drive the car... until she discovers that he’s only
taken online lessons.

Rosen has Nina meet him at a diner and asks if she can get him a fake passport. Nina assures
him that she can in a few hours and Rosen gives her a photo of Danielle to use.

When Danielle arrives at Cameron’s apartment, she finds Tyler packing. Cameron admits that
he was trying to see if Tyler was an Alpha and Danielle tells him that it was a mistake. She then
convinces Tyler to sit down with her and takes his hand and Cameron’s.

Using her power, she makes each of them feel what the other is feeling. Cameron realizes that
he was humiliating his son and Tyler realizes how much his father loves him. Danielle leaves
them alone and a crying Cameron hugs his son.

Rosen tells Nina that Stanton has swayed Danielle to his ideology and Cley is about to arrest
her. He figures that he can send Danielle away but Nina tells him that a former drug addict will
never survive without a steady income. Rosen says that he doesn’t have a choice because Cley
will send Danielle to Binghamton. He blames himself but Nina tells him that Danielle made her
own choices and it’s time for Rosen to step blaming what he did to her long ago. She suggests
that Rosen let Cley do his job, but he refuses to endanger Danielle.

Kat goes back to Dylan’s apartment and warns him that the NSA are on their way. He figures
that she betrayed him and Kat admits that she’s working undercover, but she’s there to make
amends by getting him out. As Dylan goes to get his stuff, Kat hears a beeping sound from the
bathroom. She goes in and finds a drug lab and a female Alpha, Shelley, in the tub. Shelley has
tubes running from her arms to a blood pump and there are bottles of blood on the counter.
Shelley begs Kat to leave her there, insisting that she’s his, but Kat gets her up and out. Dylan
knocks her out from behind, grabs Shelley and the drugs, and boasts to the semi-conscious Kat
that she’ll forget him again and come back to him none the wiser.

As Dylan takes Shelley down to his car, Gary finds Kat and helps her up. Realizing that she’s
too far behind to catch up, Kat takes one of the abandoned Jump tablets and then runs to the
roof. She tries to jump to the next roof across the alleyway but falls and lands on Dylan’s car.
The Jump protects her and she hauls Dylan out and knocks him out.

Cameron and Danielle take Tyler to the airport for his trip back to Arizona. As Cameron walks
Tyler to the plane, Danielle gets a message asking for a meeting at Riverside Park at 3 p.m.

Kat is in her office playing with the knife when Bill comes in and tells her that Dylan gave
up the information on the drug. She blames herself, saying that she’s the perfect mark, but Bill
assures her that Dylan said he could never get her to do anything too crazy. Kat thanks him for
that and says that she doesn’t know who the knife belongs to. Bill tells her that it’s hers now
and she should keep it as a memento of her first undercover mission. She insists on hugging
Bill as Gary comes in, and Bill tells her that he has to make her an official agent so she can
hang around. He has enrolled her in the FBI training at Quantico and figures she can pass the
two-month course in two weeks.

77



Alphas Episode Guide

Danielle goes to the park and waits, and is surprised when her father sits next to her. Rosen
tells his daughter that he sent the message Danielle says that Stanton rescued her from the
streets when she was turning tricks to buy dope and doesn’t want Rosen’s help. She figures that
Stanton plans to ally with Rosen, but her father warns that won’t happen. John and his team
move in with guns, and Rosen says that they’re not necessary. John tells the others to put their
guns away and asks Danielle to surrender.

Realizing that she’s out of options, Danielle kneels on the grass.
Later, Rosen paces nervously outside of Danielle’s interrogation room, afraid to go in. Cameron

grabs him and demands to know why he didn’t protect his daughter, but then releases him and
walks away.

Bill and the others discuss what happened and Bill admits that he should have realized
Danielle was the mole.

Rosen finally goes in to see Danielle. She asks him to have them put her in Building Seven
and put a chip in her head so that she can forget. Rosen tells her that he won’t let it happens
and says that there’s a way out if only she will take it.
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The Devil Will Drag You Under

Season 2
Episode Number: 20
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Monday September 24, 2012
Writer: Robert Hewitt Wolfe
Director: Matt Hastings
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Kathleen Munroe (Danielle
Sophia Rosen), Sarah Slywchuk (Kimi Milard)

Guest Stars: Elias Toufexis (Cornell Scipio), Kandyse McClure (Agnes)
Summary: Hicks turns defector to be with the woman he loves and begins working

for Stanton. Meanwhile, Rosen and the others discover that Stanton
plans to use experimental grenades to generate an electrical storm and
wipe out millions in Manhattan.

Rosen waits outside the airport for his
daughter to come.

Earlier, Rosen convinces Danielle that
her best option is to agree to go under-
cover to find out what Stanton is up to in
return for her freedom. He worries that
she’ll get into trouble but Danielle assure
him that she knows what she’s doing.

Danielle doesn’t show up and Rosen
meets with his team the next morning
to tell them that his daughter has dis-
appeared. Hicks is angry that Rosen has
put Danielle in harm’s way while Bill is

unhappy that Rosen and Cley set up the undercover operation without bringing him in on it.
Rosen insists that Danielle made her choice but Hicks accuses him of twisting her mind like he
did in the past to protect his marriage. Hicks storms off, insisting that Danielle may be better off
with Stanton. When Rosen tries to stop him, Hicks accuses him of using everyone, shoves him
out of the way, and leaves the building.

Two Weeks Later Gary is giving directions to Bill and Nina, who are tracking two Alpha thieves
to the Darpa Storage Facility. While Scipio sets things on fire, Jeff uses his augmented strength
to brush aside the security guards. Their accomplice pulls up on a motorcycle and takes the two
bags of stolen items from Scipio. As Bill and Nina arrive, they spot the third man and realize that
it’s Hicks. Bill tackles him and demands answers, and Hicks says that he’s doing what he has to.
As Bill prepares to punch him, Nina calls to him to stop. Meanwhile, Jeff throws a grenade-like
object from one of the duffle bags into the air. It detonates, triggering an overload of the nearby
power lines that slams into everyone on the ground. By the time that Bill, Nina, and the surviving
guards recover, Jeff, Hicks, and Scipio have made good their escape.

When the team gets back to the office, Bill, Gary, and Rachel wonder why Hicks is working
for the other side. Nina insists that they can trust Hicks.

Hicks and the others take a boat to the expensive seaside manor that Stanton is using as his
base of operations. As they go to the house, Hicks asks Scipio what they stole but the Alpha says
that it’s need-to-know. He wonders how Rosen’s people found them and Hicks figures that Gary
or Nina traced them. Hicks insists that he’s helping to make a better world but Scipio figures
there’s more and his new ally admits that he’s doing it for Danielle.
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At the office, Rachel shows the others plans of the stolen devices. They are voltaic grenades
which can overload electrical systems and release the energy into the vicinity. One properly
placed grenade at a junction box could kill hundreds. Rosen insists that they have to focus on
recovering the grenades and that for the time being they’ll have to let Danielle and Hicks fend for
themselves.

As Hicks and Scipio go to the manor, Hicks continues insisting that he is there because
the government is going after all Alphas, even the ”friendly” ones. When he asks to meet with
Stanton, Scipio warns him that the jury is still out and tells him to be patient. A woman, Agnes
Walker, greets them and has Scipio tie Hicks to a chair. She explains that whenever she touches
someone, she rips open their mind and sees what lies inside. She touches Hicks and starts sifting
through his memory, while Stanton stands out on the lawn and listens. Once she discovers that
Hicks is sincere and used Danielle to contact Stanton, she stops for the moment and gets him
something to drink. Agnes apologizes for the pain and admits that she can’t turn off her ability,
but is impressed at the depth of feeling Hicks has for Danielle. She points out that there is still
something that he’s holding back and Hicks, expecting the worse, invites her to go looking for it.

Nina stops in to see Gary, who is eating pudding off-schedule. He admits that he doesn’t like
Hicks and Danielle now that they’re working for Stanton, and Nina tells him that sometimes
people do things for complicated reasons. Reassures, Gary offers her a pudding but she tells
him to save it for himself and leave. Bill comes in and asks Gary to check on the Darpa robbery
footage because something feels off to him, and Gary tells him that sometimes people do things
for complicated reasons.

Agnes leaves Hicks alone once she finishes, and Stanton comes in to talk to the defector. He
says that Agnes has cleared him and Hicks insists that he wants to help Stanton make the world
a better place. Stanton isn’t convinced and tells Hicks that he can’t see Danielle at the moment
because he’s keeping her safe until he can confirm that she’s sincere. He warns Hicks that he
will have to cause her pain to find out the truth, tells Hicks to get some rest, and walks away.

That night, Nina stops in to see Rosen and points out that he hasn’t eaten anything. She
blames herself for Cameron escaping at Darpa but Rosen tells her that he’s to blame for every-
thing that happens. When Nina says that he shouldn’t have to bear that burden, Rose disagrees.
As she goes, Nina reminds him to get some food out of the fridge.

The next morning, Stanton goes to the freighter Cerberus where he is keeping Danielle. When
she realizes that Hicks is working for him, Danielle begs Stanton not to hurt her. Stanton says
that he doesn’t want to and offers her one last chance to convince him of her sincerity. They go
for a walk and Stanton admits that he learned she was betraying him when he saw the look of
horror in her eyes when he told her of his plan. Danielle dismisses it as surprise and Stanton
insists that the only way to save the world from overpopulation is to cull the populace, leaving
enough resources for the rest. When she reminds him that it’s mass murder, Stanton asks if
she would choose ashes or paradise. Danielle realizes that he’s started and Stanton asks her to
join him on the first step because she’s family. When she says that she feels the same, Stanton
doesn’t believe her and says that Agnes will have to find out the truth.

Agnes leaves the manor in a car and Hicks secretly follows her.
Bill and Gary track down Nina at the office and place her under arrest. With Gary’s help, Bill

has worked out that he lost six minutes of time during the robbery and that Nina pushed him
into forgetting. Nina tries to talk to Bill privately but he refuses, and she insists that she did what
she had to. She walks away and Rosen stops Bill, saying that they need to talk.

When Agnes arrives at the Cerberus,Stanton greets her and tells her to probe Danielle’s mind.
Agnes realizes that Danielle frightened him and Stanton admits that when he saw the doubt in
her eyes, he doubted as well. Agnes goes to the tool cage where they’re holding Danielle and
prepares to touch her. Hicks breaks in and holds Agnes at bay with a gun. She offers to cooperate
if he’ll show her how he resisted her mind probe. Hicks agrees and Agnes discovers that Rosen
and Nina worked together using drugs and selective pushing to order Hicks to find Danielle no
matter what it took, and to resist telepathic probes. Impressed at the depth of Hicks’ love, Agnes
gives them ten minutes to escape. As they get up top, Danielle tells Hicks that she wants to stay,
get into Stanton’s good graces, and find out what he’s up to. All Hicks knows is that he overheard
two men discussing a shipping depot when he delivered the grenades. Danielle remembers that
Stanton owns a depot in New Jersey and calls her father. Once he warns him of Stanton’s plan,
he tells the team that Stanton is going to use the grenades to blanket Manhattan in a massive

80



Alphas Episode Guide

electrical discharge.
Stanton goes to the docks with another of his Alphas, Eddie, and has him use his ability to

see electrical current to find the most active conduit in the city. Once Eddie spots it, Stanton
calls Scipio and Jeff at the shipping depot and tells them to deliver the grenades. However, Hicks
and Danielle attack them and stun them temporarily. However, Jeff slams Hicks into the wall
while Scipio burns Danielle. Their backup, Kimi Milard, comes and uses her ability to give Hicks
the order to kill himself. As he prepares to shoot himself with a gun, Bill arrives and takes out
Jeff and Kimi. Nina and Rachel restrain Hicks long enough for Nina to use her ability to counter
Kimi’s, while Rosen goes to Danielle and makes sure that she’s okay.

Scipio drives off in the van containing the grenades and Hicks prepares to follow. Danielle
insists on going with him and they drive off on the motorcycle while the others follow in the SUV.
While Hicks closes in on the van, Rosen calls Gary and has him pinpoint the city’s largest power
line.

Hicks manages to get in front of Scipio’s van as he passes near a power station. After letting
Danielle off, Hicks crashes the motorcycle into the van and leaps off just in time. Scipio crashes
and they go to the van only to discover that Scipio has escaped.

They call the others and Gary tells them that the crash site is the target. Hicks opens the
van’s back door and discovers that Stanton has wired all of the grenades together into one huge
IED. They are hooked up to a remote trigger and a bomb squad can’t get there for at least fifteen
minutes.

With time running out, Hicks tells Gary to find a database with info on disarming bombs.
However, Gary is busy using Skylar’s phone to tap into the power systems and shut it down so
that the grenades will have no electricity to amplify. He warns them that it will take time and
Danielle gets an idea. She steps into the van and tells Hicks to stay back so that Stanton won’t
see her, and then calls the Alpha. He takes the call and she shows him where she’s at, and asks
him to let it go rather than kill her. Danielle refuses to let him kill millions of people or to step
away from the bomb. Eddie warns Stanton that the grid is shutting down and they have to set
off the bomb immediately. Stanton asks Danielle not to make him choose but she insists that
there has to be a better way to improve the world without killing anyone.

The others arrive and Hicks holds Rosen back, explaining that she’s buying Gary time to shut
down the power. Meanwhile, Danielle tells Stanton that he taught her to stand by her principles
and fight for what she believes in. Stanton expresses his admiration for her, saying that she’s
more than he ever hoped for... and she will be remembered. He triggers the grenades just as
Danielle realizes what is happening and jumps out of the van.

Gary confirms that he successfully diverted the power. However, his phone is out and there’s
no one to tell.

Eddie tells Stanton that the plan didn’t work. However, Stanton says that it worked and that
it has begun.

After confirming that the others are okay, Rosen runs over to his daughter and finds Danielle
dying among the debris. He begs her to stay alive as Hicks comes over, and Nina tries to convince
Danielle to stay alive. Despite that, Danielle passes away and a sobbing Rosen holds her tightly.
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Life After Death

Season 2
Episode Number: 21
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Monday October 1, 2012
Writer: Eric Tuchman
Director: J. Miller Tobin
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Rachael Crawford (Jeanne Harken), Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley),
Steve Byers (John Bennett)

Guest Stars: Daniel Kash (Mr. Pirzad), Diana Salvatore (Magda Ryan), Arnold Pin-
nock (Brian Kessler), Zoe Doyle (Jane Kessler), Jose Arias (Funeral
Director), Michael Dagostino (Police Officer)

Summary: Difficult times arise for Rosen and his team as the loss of a loved one
shocks everybody. Meanwhile, a woman abandons a baby boy at the
office and Gary takes him under his wing.

Rosen watches childhood videos of his
daughter, Danielle, and then goes to the
mortuary to pick a coffin for her.

Hicks is holed up in his office and
ignores Bill and Gary when they try to
get him to eat something. Gary suggests
that he try screaming to release his anger
and Bill hastily gets him out. Meanwhile,
Rachel is discussing Danielle’s death with
Nina and admits that she’s had trouble
sleeping since then. Nina tells her friend
that when she held Danielle’s hand as
she died, she could feel what Danielle was

feeling because of the latter’s power. Bill and Gary come over and Bill says that they need to keep
on top of the investigation while Rosen deals with his daughter’s death. Cley and his men come
in and the DoD agent is surprised to see them there. He explains that he’s there to get all of the
intel they have on Stanton and goes into Rosen’s office. When Rachel and Nina object, Bill says
that he doesn’t like it either but warns that they don’t have a choice.

As the DoD cleans out Rosen’s office, Cley asks Gary to download the files but he refuses,
saying he’s going to get pizza for lunch.

Meanwhile, Nina suggests that Rachel take the rest of the day off and enjoy things while she
can. As Rachel goes to the elevator, she runs into John, who says that he stopped by to see how
she was doing. Rachel admits that it’s good to see him and John asks if she wants to get some
coffee. In response, Rachel kisses him and then says that she wants them to go to her home
together. She explains that her parents are visiting her uncle in New Jersey and will be gone for
a few hours and John immediately goes with her.

Gary enters the lobby after picking up his pizza and finds a woman, Magda Ryan, waiting for
him. She’s holding a baby carrier and asks Gary if Rosen is there. When Gary says that he isn’t,
Magda says that she knows Rosen helps Alpha and gives him the baby boy that she’s carrying.
Gary protests but Magda runs out the door, ignoring him.

Nina goes to Hicks’s office to download his information on Stanton onto a flash drive. She
offers to be there for Hicks but he ignores her at first. However, Hicks finally asks her to use her
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ability to push him into forgetting Danielle existed, because he can’t stand to live without her.
Nina refuses, saying that she knows Danielle cared for him, and Hicks tells her to go. Outside,
Gary comes in with the baby and tells Nina and Bill what happened, and is reading the Internet
to learn how to take care of a baby.

Rosen goes to Danielle’s apartment to inventory her belongings.
Nathan debriefs Rosen, offering his condolences, and then asks who Rosen holds responsible

for Danielle’s death.
Rosen looks at some of Danielle’s paintings.
Rachel undresses and helps John undress, but he refuses to remove his shirt. They end up

in bed but Rachel is soon distracted by all of the sights, sounds, and smells filling the room.
At the office, Gary fixates on taking care of the baby and tells Bill that he already tried to

track Magda and lost her in an alleyway. When Cley comes in to ask about the downloads, Gary
tells him that he’s busy. Hicks stops by and complains to Cley about how he didn’t take Rosen’s
warnings about Stanton seriously until the immortal threatened to kill millions. Cley insists that
they’re doing what they can but it will take time and informs the group that Rosen was the one
who turned the investigation over to the DoD.

Gary finally finds a photo of Magda on a beach in the Caribbean. The baby’s parents, Brian
and Jane Kessler, arrive and ask for their baby Adam back. Bill insists on checking their IDs
first. While he does, they explain that Magda had seen a video of Rosen’s announcement about
Alphas and believed that Adam was an Alpha. She got the office’s address and came there, and
the Kesslers found where she had written down the address and followed her there.

After sex, Rachel and John both are less than enthused about what just happened. Rachel
politely thanks John for coming over and he suggests that they get dinner. She agree and asks
him to get dressed outside and let her dress alone.

Rosen continues to inventory his dead daughter’s paintings.
Rosen recounts how he supported Danielle’s decision to work as a double-agent against Stan-

ton in return for a pardon. When Cley wonders how Stanton attracts followers, Rosen tells him
that Stanton is a vicious psychopathic who preys upon people looking for purpose and a sense
of belonging.

In his office, Gary plays with the baby and lets it tug on his finger. Bill comes in and says
that the Kesslers check out and it’s time to give them their baby back. Gary refuses, shoves Bill
out, and locks the door. Nina comes over and Bill refuses to break the door down and set Gary
off further. When he offers to let Gary check the Kesslers’ IDs to reassure him that he’s doing
the right thing, Gary explains that he already did and that they have no bank accounts and no
online baby photos. As they talk, Cley comes over and apologizes for the intrusion. However, he
informs them that the DoD will be taking over the office the next day and using it as a base of
operations to bring Stanton in. When Bill wonders what will happen to them, Cley assures him
that they will still need the Alphas’ expertise.

As Rachel and John go over movies, John says that he’s fine with whatever Rachel wants and
she says that they both deserve better than fine. John wonders if they expected too much the
first time and that it felt like she was distant. Rachel explains that she does want to be with him
but that she had hoped it would be different. The first time she had sex, she was overwhelmed
and just shut down. John assures her that she’ll get to the point where she’s comfortable with
him, and Rachel asks why he kept his shirt on. She assures him that she is comfortable with
the sight of his scars but John admits that his ex told him that she couldn’t stomach the sight
of them. Rachel starts to kiss him again, just as her father comes home early. Embarrassed,
Rachel introduces John and runs off to her room. John tries to make polite conversation and
then goes after Rachel. Her father calls out that he’s going shopping for two hours and leaves,
and the happy couple end up back in bed.

Hicks goes to Danielle’s apartment and Rosen explains that he came there to make sure Cley
didn’t miss anything. When he asks why Rosen turned the investigation over to Cley, Rosen says
that he’s going to let the authorities handle it because his inexperience got his daughter killed.
Hicks points out that he should be looking for his daughter’s killer and Rosen wonders where to
start, but Hicks just walks away.

Nina and Bill realize that something is wrong with the Kesslers and tell the couple that Gary
wouldn’t harm their ability. They suggest that Adam is an Alpha and is somehow influencing
Gary, but the parents insist that they don’t believe in Alphas. Bill wants to call in Rosen to
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examine the baby but the Kesslers refuse to let him anywhere near their son. They give Bill a
half-hour to recover Adam or they call the police and he promises to bring the baby out. However,
he tells Nina that they’ll talk to the Kesslers separately and see if they can find out anything.

Bill tells Brian that their IDs don’t check out and invites him to call the police when the father
takes offense. Meanwhile, Nina pushes Jane to tell the truth. She eventually says that she and
Brian aren’t Adam’s parents and that Magda was a technician at the lab where some people were
doing genetic work on newborns. There are four other babies there, and a man named Murphy
sent them to recover Adam. Their orders were to get Adam out without a fuss if they could, but
otherwise they were to make sure that Rosen’s team knew who they were dealing with.

Brian reaches for his phone but uses his Alpha ability to shock Bill with electricity. Bill amps
up to resist the charge and charges at Brian, throwing him out into the main room. Jane takes
advantage of Nina’s distraction, amps up, and slams her into a wall. Brian manages to stun Bill
again, knocking him back, while Nina hits Jane with a vase. As Gary looks on, holding the baby,
Brian stuns Nina and Jane slaps her down. The Kesslers approach Gary but he refuses to hand
Adam over. They focus on him and Bill catches them unaware, knocking out Brian and holding
Jane long enough for Nina to push her into unconsciousness.

Rosen finds some of Danielle’s earlier childhood drawings.
Rosen unemotionally tells Cley how Danielle took the full blast from the voltaic grenades when

they detonated.
Rosen finds one of Danielle’s self-portraits and, crying, remembers telling Nina that whatever

happened was his responsibility whether he wanted it or not.
Later, Nina calls Rosen to the office to check on Gary. He confirms that Adam is emitting high

levels of vasopressin hormones, causing a feeling of protectiveness toward the baby. He gives
Gary a vasopressin antagonist while Bill returns from the DoD raid on the laboratory after they
got the address from the Kesslers. The tac team took everyone into custody and put the four
babies into secure foster homes. Nina figures that Magda brought Adam to the office because
she believed it was the safest place and congratulates Gary on how he protected the baby.

After a round of lovemaking, Rachel and John are much happier. When he warns Rachel that
her father will soon be back, she says that she doesn’t care.

Bill and Jeannie take Adam home with them for safekeeping. She’s surprised that her hus-
band wants a baby in the home, even temporarily, and Bill figures that they should take the good
when they can.

Rosen goes to Hicks’ apartment and talks to him outside on the step. They both blame them-
selves for Danielle’s death, but Rosen finally says that it was Stanton that used Danielle and then
killed her when she got in his way. Hicks warns Rosen that Cley will simply imprison Stanton if
he captures him, and they both agree that Stanton deserves more for what he’s done.
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If Memory Serves

Season 2
Episode Number: 22
Season Episode: 11

Originally aired: Monday October 8, 2012
Writer: Ron Milbauer, Terri Hughes Burton
Director: Allan Kroeker
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Erin Way (Kat), Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley), John Pyper-Ferguson
(Stanton Parish)

Guest Stars: Sean Astin (Mitchell), Lauren Holly (Senator Burton), Adriano So-
bretodo Jr. (Mimic Alpha), Jane Moffat (Sandra Bell), Gavin Fox (The
Caretaker), Eileen Li (Nurse)

Summary: Kat returns to the team as they set out to find Stanton’s secret
weapon. . . and protect him. Meanwhile, Senator Burton challenges
Rosen’s methods of fighting rogue Alphas.

Upon returning from training at Quan-
tico, Kat teams up with Bill, Hicks, and
a Tac team to take out one of Stanton’s
Alphas. Once they capture him, Nina in-
terrogates him and they move in on other
operatives, recovering data on Stanton’s
organization.

Cley comes to see Rosen at his office
and asks for his input, but Rosen warns
that he’s taking too wide an approach.
The DoD believes that they’ll get Stanton
eventually but Rosen isn’t convinced. As
Rosen goes over Cley’s data, he notices an

address but quickly dismisses the file as unimportant. Once he’s alone, Rosen tells Hicks that
the address may be a lead on Stanton. He tells Hicks to take Kat with him and check out the
address, making sure that Cley doesn’t get wind of their investigation. Rosen stays behind to
make sure that Cley doesn’t notice him. Meanwhile, Kat is eager to go with Hicks when asked
and Rosen asks her to keep Hicks on track because he’s still grieving over Danielle’s death.
Meanwhile, Gary reports that he’s traced a shipment of electronic parts from Stanton’s factory
in China, the same factory that produced the photic stimulators. Rosen asks him to found out
what was being shipped and Gary agrees, and then casually says that first he has to go to his
hospital because his mother has been in a car accident.

Kat and Hicks find an older farmhouse at the address and watch it from a distance. They spot
a caretaker leaving the place and going into town. The two agents break into the house and hear
someone upstairs. When they move in, they find a man watching cartoon on TV.

He immediately surrenders and then starts rambling about being a soldier in World War II
and a cordon bleu chef. The man finally says that his name is Mitchell and that Stanton told him
to stay in the room.

Hicks calls Rosen while Kat searches the farmhouse and finds empty jugs of milk and a
broken set of scales. Mitchell keeps rambling, sometimes talking as if he’s Hicks and narrating
what he’s doing. Rosen tells Hick to bring Mitchell in and hangs up, just as Senator Charlotte
Burton comes in to talk to him. She explains that she’s the Senate liaison to the Parish task
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force and has taken a keen interest in the case. Nina walks by the office and Burton seems to
recognize her, and Rosen quickly distracts her. She wants to know what weaknesses Rosen has
found in Stanton, and he admits that he hasn’t found any yet. Burton tells him that everyone
has a weakness and then thanks him for saving her life by giving her doctor the brain scans.

Once Rosen is alone with Nina, he accuses her of going behind his back to save Burton’s life.
Nina insists that she did it to save the senator but Rosen warns that they could both go back to
jail if Burton traces the paper trail back to them. He tells Nina to push Burton into going home
but she refuses, warning that it could cause more mental damage. Rosen understands but then
tells Nina to go home until he can find a way to remove Burton from the case.

Bill drives Gary to the hospital and Gary admits that hospitals make him uncomfortable. As
they wait for Sandra to come out of surgery, Gary says that there’s no point in waiting if his
mother is unconscious. Bill snaps at him and apologizes, admitting that he was up late with
Baby Adam. Gary agrees to trace the shipment and immediately confirms that it arrived in New
York. However, the manifest is in Chinese and neither one of them can read the language.

Hicks drives back to New York while Kat records what is happening and Mitchell echoes her.
As they keep talking, Hicks finally tells them both to shut up. Kat offers her condolences on
Danielle’s death but Hicks doesn’t want to talk about it. Mitchell suddenly blurts out that he got
Danielle killed, but before Hicks can interrogate him, the caretaker from the farmhouse opens fire
on them from an overpass. The car goes out of control and the man jumps onto the windshield.
Hicks brakes, throwing him off the car and into a barricade, breaking his neck. With the car out
of commission, Hicks and Kat take Mitchell with them and head into the woods.

They’re unaware that the caretaker has restored the broken bones in his neck and stands up,
unharmed.

In the woods, Kat warns Hicks that they’re out of cell range. Mitchell keeps talking about
his missing keys and Hicks draws his gun and tells him to explain what he meant about killing
Danielle. Mitchell touches Hicks and fills and transfers a memory of Danielle talking to Stanton.

Rachel and Rosen go over the translated manifest and they realize that Stanton shipped the
same components that he used to build the photic stimulator. Rosen realizes that they need to
recover the components before Stanton can pick them up.

At the hospital, Gary wants to leave, abandoning his mother for the moment. Bill convinces
his friend that he needs to take care of him, just like he took care of baby Adam. Gary agrees as
Rosen calls Bill and asks him to come back to the office.

As they head toward town, Kat asks Mitchell if he knows how his memory powers work. He
continues rambling about other people’s memories and Kat suggests to Hicks that Mitchell can
absorb memories and then project them into anyone else’s mind. Hicks figures that Mitchell has
some of Stanton’s memories, making him a vital piece of intel.

The caretaker goes to a gas station, takes all of the milk, and drinks them. He swallows a
packet of antacid tablets, tells the clerk that he’s good for it, and walks out.

Hicks insists that they keep a low profile, pointing out that they killed a man. Mitchell blurts
out the fact that he knows the caretaker can heal his bones and they realize that the man is
still alive and undoubtedly after them. Kat speculates that Stanton may use Mitchell to store his
memories since he may not be able to retain them given his advanced age. Hicks starts to lighten
up and Hicks suggests that he try to stop thinking about Danielle because it’s messing him up.
He irritably tells her to show him how and she admits that she can’t. However, Mitchell has heard
the whole thing and offers to put Hicks inside of his storied memories of Danielle. Hicks tells him
to shut up and continues on as they hear cars up ahead.

Rachel tells Rosen that if the parts are properly put together, Stanton could create a more
powerful version of the photic stimulator that she was, giving his Alphas even greater abilities.

When they get into town, Hicks tells Kat to hide with Mitchell while he rents a car. She takes
Mitchell to an empty office and picks the lock. As they wait, Kat looks outside and sees a woman
in a blue dress. She remembers the brief glimpse she can recall of her own past and a woman in
a blue dress, and Mitchell offers to help her recover the memory. Kat finally accepts and Mitchell
brings out a memory of the woman... who is an actress in a TV cleaner commercial. Mitchell
admits that’s the only memory he can find and apologizes, saying he can’t tell which memories
are his and which are someone else’s.

Burton trails Nina to a restaurant and talks to her about being pushed. Nina figures at first
that Burton is onto her, but the senator explains that she believes one of Stanton’s Alphas
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influenced her. She decided to join the task force and find out who was responsible, and admits
that she doesn’t know which decisions are hers and which are someone else’s made for her. Nina
tries to tell her that she has nothing to worry about and Burton finally realizes that Nina was the
one who pushed her.

Bill, Rachel, and Rosen go to the docks and convince a security guard to show them the cargo
container. As they go there, Rachel admits that the smells don’t bother her like they used to and
Bill figures that it’s because she’s having sex with John Bennett.

Bill breaks the container door open and discovers that there’s nothing inside. Rachel can see
the patterns of the thousands of boxes that were there and Rosen realizes that Stanton already
picked up the parts.

When Sandra wakes up, Gary is sitting next to her. He promises to come home so that he
can look after her and Sandra tells him that they’ll figure out a way to make things work. She
has a stroke and the doctors come in and have Gary escorted from the room as they tend to his
mother.

When Rosen realizes what Nina has done, he calls her into his office and angrily demands
to know what she was doing. Nina insists that Burton was suffering from the aftereffects of
pushing and that she chose to have Burton fear her rather than herself. Rosen warns her that
Burton could do anything but Nina points out that she’s doing what he wanted her to. As Rosen
goes to find Burton, he discovers the senator waiting for him in the office elevator. As they
ride down, Burton tells him that she’s reviewed his team’s case files and discovered all of the
unconstitutional things they’ve been doing. The senator insists that the team is dangerous and
Rosen is the most dangerous one of all, willing to do anything to subvert justice. Rosen concedes
that she’s right about his team but tells her that they knew she accepted illegal contributions for
her first campaign and that Stanton’s people had compromised her office. He tells Burton that
he could either have Nina push her or use blackmail. As he leaves, he tells Burton that he won’t
regret his choice and reminds her that his team is dangerous... and so is he.

The caretaker finds Hicks at the rental lot and attacks him. When Hicks tries to break his
fingers, the bones heal instantly and the caretaker knocks him out. When Kat calls, the caretaker
tells her that they’re going to trade, Hicks for Mitchell. Kat asks for five minutes and then talks
to Mitchell, trying to find the downside to the caretaker’s power. Mitchell mentions the caretaker
drinking a lot of milk and Kat works out that the caretaker needs calcium to heal. The resulting
bone alterations make them incredibly dense, and she realizes that the broken scales at the
farmhouse indicate her theory is correct. Kat comes up with a plan, calls the caretaker back,
and tells him that they’ll swap at a place she chooses. Once she hangs up, Kat looks out the
window and spots a nearby semi.

When Bill comes back to the hospital, Gary tells his friend that his mother had another stroke
and is in a coma.

The caretaker drives the rental car to the coordinates that Kat provides, and finds himself at a
quarry. As he parks near the lake, Mitchell walks toward the car and says that Kat dropped him
off and drove away. Kat drives the semi into the caretaker, slamming him against the rental and
pushing them both into the water. The caretaker drowns, his bones too heavy to let him swim.
However, there’s no sign of Hicks and Kat realizes that he was in the trunk of the rental. She
grabs a rock for ballast, goes out, and manages to get the trunk open. When he realizes that Kat
can’t swim, Hicks hauls her to shore where Mitchell is waiting.

Once Mitchell is delivered to the office, Rosen talks to him and realizes that Stanton has
placed many of his memories in the Alpha.

Rosen asks Mitchell to show him the last time he talked to Stanton.
Stanton realizes that Danielle is dead because of him and worries that he’s made the wrong

decision. However, he promises that his sacrifice of Danielle won’t be in vain. He tells Mitchell
that he’ll grow old in a better world than the one he had. Mitchell talks about the farmhouse and
how he raised his family there, and Stanton gently tells him that those are Stanton’s memories,
not Mitchell’s.

Kat looks up the cleaner commercial on her laptop and watches it as Hicks comes in. He
records a message admitting that she saved his life and thanking for her it. Kat tells him that
despite what she said earlier, she wouldn’t help him forget Danielle even if she could, and that
he should treasure the painful memory because they show him who he is. Hicks tells her that
he knows who Kat is: the girl who saved his life. However, Kat admits that she doesn’t like
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remembering that she killed a man, and plays back a recording she made saying that she doesn’t
want to forget what killing someone feels like.

After interviewing Mitchell, Rosen meets with Hicks and says that Mitchell was the key even
though he doesn’t know anything of Stanton’s plans. From what he’s seen of Stanton’s memories,
Rosen has realized that their enemy’s weakness is humanity and they can use it against him.

Hicks takes Mitchell to Building Seven and watches as the doctor prepares to put in a chip.
As they wait, Mitchell offers his hand and Hicks takes it as the Alpha feeds him the memories
of Danielle. Hicks then goes to meet with Rosen at the farmhouse. They burn it and Rosen says
that Mitchell will be happier without his powers, even though Hicks doesn’t believe the Alpha
deserves to be at Binghamton. Rosen casually dismisses Mitchell as a thread that they can pull
on and unravel Stanton. When Hicks warns that Stanton will come after Mitchell, Rosen says
that he is looking forward to it.
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Need to Know

Season 2
Episode Number: 23
Season Episode: 12

Originally aired: Monday October 15, 2012
Writer: Adam Levy, Michael Karnow
Director: Nick Copus
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Steve Byers (John Bennett),
Rachael Crawford (Jeanne Harken)

Guest Stars: Sean Astin (Mitchell Morgan), Elias Toufexis (Cornell Scipio), Summer
Glau (Skylar Adams), Skyler Wexler (Zoe), Alex Paxton-Beesley (Megan
Bates), Jameson Kraemer (Jeff Kowalka ”Dumpy”)

Summary: While most of the team goes underground to interrogate one of Stan-
ton’s people, Bill, Gary, and Kat track down Skylar, who has inadver-
tently manufacturing a device that will let Stanton initiate his master
plan.

Bill and Jeannie are in the city walking
with Baby Adam and go by a power sub-
station. Bill points out that Jeannie is
good with the baby and assures her that
she would be good with the ones they
have as well. As she wonders what kind
of world they’d be bringing children up in,
an explosion rocks the power substation
behind them.

After sending his wife out of town, Bill
goes to the office where John and his tac
teams are coordinating the hunt for Stan-
ton.

There have been five attacks on power substations in the last week and the power company
workers will have protectors in place within a few days. Rachel tells them that according to the
intercepts, Stanton will be launching a major assault in the next few days. Rosen looks at the
board with his files on Stanton and realizes that in two days it will be the 150th anniversary
of Stanton’s first ”death” and resurrection. Bill wants to pursue the lead on the electronic ship-
ments, figuring that they’re critical to Stanton’s plan, but John believes that pressuring Stanton’s
organization is the better option. Meanwhile, Rachel tries to find Skylar and have her analyze the
components that they have. Rosen wants to probe Mitchell’s mind and see what other memories
Stanton stored there, and asks for permission to move him from Binghamton to a psych hospital
in New York City. John hesitates and Kat offers to go since she won Mitchell’s trust. Rosen ob-
jects, saying she doesn’t have enough experience, but John agrees to move Mitchell and let her
accompany the convoy.

Stanton and his Alpha operatives go to an underground bunker inside of an abandoned Na-
tional Guard armory. Scipio informs his superior that the doctors will soon be there and the
medicines are stockpiled. He reports that Vince is still working on Skylar and Stanton, impa-
tient, says that he’ll talk to Vince. As they walk through the bunker, Stanton tells the others that
it was Danielle’s idea and that she wanted somewhere that their people could come to during the
transition.
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At the office, Rosen visits Bill, who explains that his wife was traumatized by the nearby
explosion. Rosen says that he wants to take the fight to Stanton, but Bill interrupts when a call
comes through to him from Washington. Before he answers, he realizes that Rosen wants to run
their operation outside of the DoD, and tells him that they all need to be working together. Rosen
agrees and leaves, but then tells Cameron that they can’t count on Bill. He assures Cameron
that Bill’s involvement isn’t critical and hopes that he doesn’t get in their way.

That night, Kat and Mitchell are driving the convoy van with Mitchell inside. Scipio tosses
incendiary grenades at them, driving two of the vehicles off the street. As John and his men
open fire on Scipio atop a parking garage, Stanton’s operative Jeff Kowalka rips the van door off
and leaves with Mitchell. When Kat tries to go after him, Scipio blocks her path with another
incendiary. However, someone shoots him with a tranq dart. By the time Kat, John, and the tact
team get to the roof of the parking garage, Scipio is gone.

Jeff takes Mitchell to the bunker and a doctor removes the nullification chip. Stanton sends
the others away and takes Mitchell’s hand so he can experience the memories he stored in the
Alpha. However, he realizes that none of the memories are there and Mitchell confirms that Rosen
nullified them through drug treatment. He admits that for the first time in years, he feels like
himself.

Rosen meets Nina, Cameron, and Rachel at a warehouse where they’ve taken Scipio and
chained him with his hands on his own chest.

They remove the batteries from their cellphones so Gary can’t trace them and wake Scipio up.
When Rosen warns him that he’s going to kill millions and can still make amends, Scipio doesn’t
care, boasting that he killed his parents and that Rosen is 20 years too late to try and change his
attitude. Nina tries to push Scipio into telling them about Stanton’s plan only to discover that
the same Alpha that put blocks on Burton’s mind has done the same thing to Scipio. All she can
get him to admit is that there are hundreds of shipments like the one they intercepted. When
Nina can’t get through Scipio’s resistance, Rosen has Rachel prepare to administer psychotropic
drugs to their captive.

When Bill comes in the next morning, Kat worries about how she messed up and lost Mitchell
and Scipio. He tells her not to worry and to focus on Stanton’s assault. She tells Bill that she
hasn’t talked to Nina and Rachel, and they confirm that Cameron isn’t in his office. As they
talk, Gary comes in from the hospital and explains that the doctors chased him out for being a
nuisance. He explains that when he took the taxi over he noticed the GPS and decided to ping
the chip in Skylar’s arm that she uses to communicate with her wasp drones.

Skylar is in an apartment making a new device as her daughter Zoe looks on. While she
works, Skylar complains that she hears a buzzing noise and scratches at her left forearm. She
says that the phone must be ringing but Zoe points out that they don’t have a phone. Skylar
starts to find that odd, but is interrupted when Vince comes in with groceries. He asks if she’s
making progress with the device and admits that he could be in trouble if she doesn’t finish it,
and Skylar assures him that she’ll get it done. Vince offers to take Zoe for a walk to give Skylar
some time to concentrate. However, Vince goes to see Stanton instead. Stanton orders him to
pressure Skylar into finishing the device immediately so he can complete his project.

Nina finally asks for a break when she’s unable to get past Scipio’s block. Rachel warns the
others that Scipio’s blood pressure is reaching dangerous levels and that Nina is exhausting
herself. She wants to call in the experts but Rosen and Cameron insists that they can’t trust the
DoD since Stanton has infiltrated it. Rosen has Rachel prepare a stimulant and Nina explains
that it’s for her, not Scipio. Nina still fails and Rosen says that he has another idea.

At the office, Gary informs Bill that Skylar is ignoring him. When he tries to check the others’
phones, he discovers that they’re shut down. Kat reports to Bill that she found a tranq dart at
the parking lot and that it had Scipio’s blood on it. None of John’s team had tranq guns and Bill
starts suspecting that his teammates are up to something.

As Skylar welds a piece with a miniature blowtorch, she hears the buzzing sound again and
jerks, dropping the torch. When she picks it up, she burns her hand but realizes that it doesn’t
hurt. Skylar scans her arm and finds one of her own chips in it, and realizes that she doesn’t
have her drone wasps. Zoe suggests that her mother call back whoever is buzzing her on the
chip.

Gary gets a signal from Skylar.
Cameron brings in Megan Bates, another of Stanton’s operatives and leaves her with Scipio.
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She asks if Stanton is still at the house and Scipio assures her that she hasn’t broken, but finds
her curiosity puzzling. He admits that he missed her and says that his memories of their time
at a cabin in the woods have helped him resist the interrogation. When Megan says that the
mountains were pretty, Scipio head butts her and yells that Megan has allergies and hates the
mountains. Nina, staggered by controlling Megan, staggers out. Cameron goes over and beats
Scipio until Rosen finally stops him.

Rachel and Cameron take Nina away and Scipio taunts Rosen, asking how it feels to have
his daughter betray him. Rosen fills a syringe adrenaline and asks Scipio if he’s ever considered
how his victims felt when he burned them to death. He then tells Scipio that once he injects
the adrenaline, the Alpha’s power will activate automatically and Scipio will burn himself. Scipio
refuses to talk and Rosen gives him the injection. The Alpha burns himself and screams in pain.
Rachel and the others are in the office, and Cameron stops her when she tries to intervene. He
brusquely tells her to cover her ears if she doesn’t like it and Rachel leaves, saying that she can
smell Scipio’s flesh burning.

When Vince comes back in, Skylar starts making a device from parts in the kitchen. He tells
her that the apartment is safe but she turns the device, a flamethrower on him. He simply stands
and stares as the room flickers. Zoe screams and Skylar tells her to run, and then runs out
after her. However, Zoe vanishes and Skylar discovers that every hallway leads back to Vince’s
apartment, where he warns her that things could get much worse if she doesn’t cooperate.

In a dingy apartment, Vince monitors Skylar and Zoe, who are drugged unconscious and lying
on beds. He mutters about how things could get much worse if Skylar doesn’t cooperate.

Stanton calls Mitchell into his command center and prepares to put more of his memories
into the Alpha for posterity. When he takes Mitchell’s hand, Mitchell recites the memories out
loud, saying that he’s going to change the world and that it’s a shame that so many people have
to die.

Scipio finally tells Rosen what he wants to know, but Rosen hears the DoD pull up outside.
Rachel tells them that she called them in and Rosen says that it’s okay before leaving with
Cameron. Nina stays with Rachel as Bill and the others burst in. They secure Scipio and Megan
and Nina tells Bill that Rosen got what he needed. Bill tells Rachel and Nina to come back to the
office with them, much to Kat’s surprise. He points out that even though they lied, he still needs
them to find Stanton. Gary pulls up in a taxi and tells them that he’s tracked Skylar’s signal. They
follow the signal to the apartment and break in. When Vince tries to run, Bill knocks him out
and frees Skylar and Zoe. Skylar explains that when she refused to work for Skylar, he captured
her and forced her to work for him building a device while under Vince’s influence. Gary sees the
sketches of her work and asks what they are. Skylar, recognizing them, says that they’re the end
of the world.

Cameron and Rosen go to the address Scipio gave them and discover that Stanton has pre-
pared the bunker in preparation of a disaster.

The two men find the control center and discover a map of the U.S. with red flags in many
of the major cities. Rosen tells Cameron to take the information to Bill and the others while he
stays behind to do what he has to. Cameron gives him a gun and reluctantly leaves.

As they return to the office, Rachel tries to apologize to John about betraying him but he tells
her they’ll discuss it later.

Skylar tells the group that she made a mini-stim which hooks up to a light or a computer
screen. It will enhance an Alpha’s powers but give normal humans lethal seizures, and Stanton
has made millions of them. Cameron arrives and shows them the map, and they realize that
Rosen stayed behind to kill Stanton. Bill agrees to send a few people to the bunker but tells the
team that their primary focus has to be on finding and destroying the mini-stims.

The power & light company workers finish putting in the protectors at the substations.
Rosen finds Mitchell inside the bunker and hears him muttering about Stanton’s plans to

change the world and kill millions while watching from ”a god’s eye view.” As Rosen tries to
work out what that means, Stanton and his operatives leave the bunker. Rosen tells Mitchell to
hide for two days until he can return and then goes outside. Stanton and his team have already
left, but Jeff has stayed behind. As Rosen goes to a SUV to pursue them, Jeff opens fire with a
submachine gun. Rosen ducks into the SUV for cover and Jeff tells him that Stanton still wants
Rosen alive. Police sirens sound in the distance and Jeff leaves before they can arrive, while
Rosen realizes that one bullet hit him in the stomach.

93



Alphas Episode Guide

94



Alphas Episode Guide

God’s Eye

Season 2
Episode Number: 24
Season Episode: 13

Originally aired: Monday October 22, 2012
Writer: Bruce Miller (II)
Director: Matt Hastings
Show Stars: David Strathairn (Dr. Lee Rosen), Ryan Cartwright (Gary Bell), War-

ren Christie (Cameron Hicks), Azita Ghanizada (Rachel Pirzad), Laura
Mennell (Nina Theroux), Malik Yoba (Bill Harken)

Recurring Role: Erin Way (Kat), John Pyper-Ferguson (Stanton Parish), Kathleen
Munroe (Danielle Sophia Rosen), Mahershala Ali (Nathan Cley), Steve
Byers (John Bennett), Jane Moffat (Sandra Bell)

Guest Stars: Summer Glau (Skylar Adams), Lisa Ryder (Fiona), Jameson Kraemer
(Jeff Kowalka ”Dumpy”)

Summary: The team races to stop Stanton’s plan to activate the mini-stims across
the continent. Meanwhile, a wounded Rosen seeks revenge for his
daughter by going after the Alpha personally.

Rosen, bleeding from his gut wound,
makes his way to a nearby bus stop.
While he waits, he hallucinates Danielle
standing next to him, telling him not to
pass out. She tells him to stop the bleed-
ing and then find Stanton, and reminds
her father that he knows someone who
can help her.

At the office, word comes in to the
team that gunshots were reported near
Stanton’s armory and blood was found
at the scene. Rachel and Nina want to go
and find Rosen, but Bill says that all they

can do is put out a BOLO while they try to stop Stanton’s plan.
Rosen goes to a friend, Fiona, who uses her Alpha ability to heal his wounds after removing

the bullets. She tells him that he needs surgery but Rosen admits that if he goes to a hospital
then they’ll have to report the gunshot wounds. Fiona tells him to take it easy but Rosen tapes
his shirt close and says that there is something important that he has to do.

Nina interrogates the workers at the armory but none of them know anything about Stanton’s
plans. Bill and Cley tell her to continue the interrogation. Meanwhile, Hicks goes to see Kat in
the office. She complains that they set her up for the ambush on the convoy and accuses Hicks
of choosing her because he knew she would. An unrepentant Hicks insists that he did what he
had to and Kat goes to the elevator. Bill stops her, saying that he needs her, and she says that
the only people she cares about are the ones who betrayed her. Bill asks if he betrayed her and
asks her to stay and help him.

In the subway, two city workers try to install the grid protectors to thwart Stanton’s sabotage.
When they can’t get it to work, one of them pounds it with a hammer and the strobe of the
photostim goes off. A passing homeless man collapses, as does the two workers.

After a moment, the homeless man recovers consciousness and runs off.
The next day, Stanton goes to the park and meets with his remaining henchman, Kowalka,

who reports that his men are guarding the backup generator. As Stanton looks at the people
in the park, he says that some of them will be changed and the rest will receive a quick and
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painless death. He then tells Kowalka to bring Rosen to him and Kowalka sheepishly admits
that he shot Rosen and left him for dead. Stanton takes out a knife and threatens Kowalka, who
insists that he did it to protect Stanton. The immortal alpha tells him that it’s pointless to kill
in anger and dismisses Kowalka. As the hyper-strong Alpha leaves, Stanton sings a few lines of
”Johnny Appleseed.” Rachel calls Gary at the hospital, and he tells her that he’s been unable to
find Rosen at the city ERs and morgues. He hangs up and goes to check on his mother, who has
woken up from her stroke. However, she simply stares off into space. While Rachel goes back to
work, Cameron worries to Nina that he let Rosen go off on his own. Nina assures him that Rosen
would have gone no matter what to get revenge for Danielle’s death.

Rachel and Kat get a report on the subway incident and go to check it out. As they look
around, Kat complains to Rachel that she almost got her killed during the convoy incident.
Rachel apologizes and says that they did what they had to, but Kat tells her that she should
pick a side. They find the homeless man cowering in a corner and try to get him to explain what
happen. When he starts to talk, he emits an ultrasonic blast knocking them back.

As Rosen walks down the street, he continues talking to his hallucination of his daughter.
She tells him to remember Mitchell describing Stanton’s memories of a ”god’s eye view” and tells
her father that he has to figure it out.

As the EMTs take the homeless man away, Rachel examines the circuit box and finds the
photostim. They realize that Stanton has hidden the photostims inside of the grid protectors...
and spread them nationwide.

Skylar comes to the office to help the team and tells them that the photostim has been set
to go off at 8:18 p.m. The millions of them will activate simultaneously, causing every light that
they’re hooked up to give off the seizure flash. Cley warns that there is no way they can find all of
the photostims in the nineteen cities where Stanton has hid them, and Skylar tells him that the
government has to pull the power on the national grid. However, she warns them that New York
City’s power grid has a failsafe after 9/11 and it can’t be entirely shut down. However, Skylar
tells them that she’ll do what she can and Bill gets her what she needs.

Rosen gets to the hospital and finds Gary, and apologizes for not being there for him. Gary
knows what Rosen and the others have been doing but agrees to help Rosen find the ”god’s eye
view.” He goes through the files on Stanton and discovers that he was a member of the board of
directors of the architectural firm that built the Empire State Building. Danielle tells Rosen to
inform Gary that he won’t see him again because he’s going to die, but Rosen simply says that
it’s been an honor to make Gary’s acquaintance.

Gary suggests that he call the others but Rosen says that he has to handle it on his own and
Gary understands.

When Rosen gets outside the hospital, Danielle tells him to do what he has to so that he can
find Stanton. She prods him into realizing that Stanton’s healing is a voluntary process and that
he can inhibit it. Rosen goes back into the hospital to steal the drugs he needs to inhibit the
process and then wanders down the street. He wonders if what he’s doing is right and Danielle
reminds him that Stanton thought the same thing, but he murdered Danielle anyway. Confused,
Rosen stumbles around trying to find the Empire State Building and Danielle tells him to catch
a train from Grand Central Station.

The DoD picks up a positive on their BOLO report and sends it to Bill. Bill and Cameron
review the footage and see Rosen taking the drugs, and try to work out why he took them.

Gary talks to Sandra and explains about Rosen and how he’s going after Stanton. Sandra
comes out of her coma and tells her son to help Rosen, taking his hand. Gary is reluctant to go
but she tells him that he has to. As Gary leaves, he tells his mother that he’s glad she didn’t die.

Skylar works with Kat, Nina, and Rachel to take apart Hicks’ laptop and create the device she
needs to shut down the New York grid.

When he comes in to complain, she tells him to leave. After Hicks goes, Nina defends him to
the others and they tease her about being in love with him even though she denies it.

Rosen enters Grand Central Station and staggers through the main concourse, rambling
about how he took Danielle there as a child. He looks up at the mural of the night sky and
realizes that it’s the ”god’s view” that Mitchell told him about. Rosen looks around spots Stan-
ton seated at a shoe-shine chair. The alpha comes over, checking his watch and confirming that
there’s one hour left until detonation. As a crowd gets off the train, Stanton blends into the group
and slips away before Rosen can catch up to him.
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Cley confirms that FEMA has shut down the power grid in the other eighteen cities. Mean-
while, Skylar, Kat, and Rachel go to the roof and hook up Skylar’s device. She admits that if it
malfunctions then it could set off an explosive chain reaction.

Rosen tries to find Stanton as he heads into the lower levels of the station.
Skylar activates her device, shutting down the power in the city. Grand Central’s lights go

out and Rosen loses Stanton in the darkness. On the rooftop, Skylar and the others watch in
satisfaction... and then surprise as the power comes back up. Skylar confirms that her device is
working and realizes that Stanton has a backup generator somewhere in the city.

As the lights come back up at the station, Gary comes in and finds Rosen. Rosen tells him
that it’s too dangerous and that he needs to leave immediately, but Gary insists on making his
own choices. He points out that Rosen has helped him and that now it’s fair that he help Rosen.
Rosen reluctantly takes Gary with him to find Stanton.

Bill and Skylar confirm that there is a generator somewhere in the city providing the power,
one that isn’t hooked into the control system. Gary calls Nina and tells her that he’s with Rosen,
and Hicks realizes that Rosen stole the drugs to use on Stanton. He heads out for the station
and Nina tells him to be careful as she kisses him. Meanwhile, Rachel prepares to leave with the
others but John stops her and says that they’re relocating to the command center out of town.
She refuses to leave Rosen despite the fact that she almost died the last time she was exposed
to the photostim. When Rachel says that she’s going to do the right thing, John reminds her
that she lied about the convoy setup and wonders how he can trust the woman he loves. Rachel
realizes what he said and asks him to say it again. John does so and asks her to come with him,
but Rachel says that she can’t.

The team figures that Stanton will be at the center of things and drives to Grand Central
Station to find him. As they drive, Bill realizes that the station has a backup generator for the
trains and Kat vaguely remembers it from something she read.

Gary goes up to the upper levels to get a clear signal from the security cameras so he can find
Stanton. Meanwhile, a man approaches Rosen and gives him a cell phone. Stanton calls on it
and tells Rosen that they’ll meet once he finishes what he’s doing. He tells Rosen that the deaths
will be quick and painless and directs him to a closet where the light has been disabled so that
Rosen won’t be affected.

Bill and the others arrive at the station and Rachel uses her enhanced hearing to pinpoint
the generator’s location. Bill has Nina look for Rosen while he and the others take the elevator
down. As they descend, Rachel hears guns being cocked and tells everyone to duck. Kowalka
and his three men open fire as everyone takes cover and the elevator doors. Skylar grabs a fire
extinguisher and tells Bill to rip off the control panel. She then rigs a smoke bomb and tosses it
out, blinding Kowalka and his men. Bill and Kat provide cover fire while Rachel and Skylar head
for the generator. Kat tells Bill to throw her at their attackers and he gives her a hyper- strength
boost. She takes out two of the men and shoots the third, while Bill takes out Kowalka under
cover of the smokescreen.

Skylar and Rachel find the generator but Skylar realizes that it’s an older model. She warns
Rachel that she has difficulty manipulating older technology but goes to work.

Gary gets to the upper concourse and accesses the security cameras.
Rosen gets to one of the platform, syringe ready, and finds Stanton examining a commemora-

tive plaque. He explains that he helped build the station in 1913 and then turns to Rosen, who
tells him to shut up. Stanton points out that Rosen has a gun and dismisses it as crass, but
Rosen tells him that Danielle meant everything to him. The Alpha says that he understands and
that he killed her for the greater good and then advises Rosen to get to a safe place. As he starts
to walk away, Rosen sees Danielle and asks Stanton what he wants, and Stanton says that in a
few minutes he’ll be a mass murderer and will have served his purpose.

Skylar is forced to pull the breakers when she can’t shut down the generator because of
Stanton’s work. Meanwhile, Rachel listens and hears Stanton telling Rosen that he wants him to
lead the others after he’s gone. Danielle screams at Rosen, telling him to fire, but Rosen insists
that he’s not a murderer and that Danielle wouldn’t want him to become one. He tells Danielle
that his daughter knew there was a better way. Stanton, thinking Rosen is talking to him, says
that he couldn’t find a better way and Rosen says that the both should have looked harder
because that’s what Danielle would have wanted. As Stanton advances on Rosen, a gunshot
rings out as Hicks arrives and shoots the Alpha down.
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Bill and Kat catch up to Skylar and Rachel, and Rachel tells them what she heard. Kat helps
Skylar while Rachel takes Bill toward the gunshot.

Hicks tells Rosen to inject Stanton and let him die, but Rosen refuses. He asks Hicks what it
will make them if they kill Stanton but Hicks reminds him that Stanton killed Danielle. Rosen
agrees but says that if they let Stanton live then he’ll have to suffer that pain forever. As Nina
runs up, Hicks considers pulling the trigger... and then lowers the gun.

Skylar pulls the breakers but Kat discovers that there is no way to cut the power to the lights
in the station. No matter what they do, the photostims there will activate. Skylar cuts the power
and the lights go out in the rest of the city.

Bill and Rachel find Rosen, Hicks, and Nina standing over Stanton’s body.
As Gary scans the station’s cameras, he realizes that 8:18 has arrived. Kat and Skylar run

into the concourse and tell everyone to get out, but the photostims activate. Everyone in the
concourse has a seizure, including Skylar and Kat. Only Gary is unaffected. He goes down to the
tracks, calling for Bill, and finds everyone else lying on the platform, unconscious or dead.
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0106 (Luke)
Connor Price . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0207 (Jason Miller)
John Pyper-Ferguson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

0111 (Stanton Parish); 0201 (Stanton Parish); 0202
(Stanton Parish); 0203 (Stanton Parish); 0206
(Stanton Parish); 0207 (Stanton Parish); 0209
(Stanton Parish); 0211 (Stanton Parish); 0212
(Stanton Parish); 0213 (Stanton Parish)

Q
Richard Quesnel . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
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0106 (Detective Kellerman)

R
Noah Reid . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0205 (Adam Gordon)
Callum Keith Rennie . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0101 (Don Wilson); 0103 (Don Wilson)
Michael Reventar. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1

0106 (Alonso)
Natalia Ross . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0204 (Hot Girl (Lap Dancer))
Lisa Ryder . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0213 (Fiona)

S
Diana Salvatore . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0210 (Magda Ryan)
Jeff Seymour . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (The Ghost)
Jimi Shlag . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Detective)
Saad Siddiqui . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Government Agent)
Sarah Slywchuk. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2

0201 (Kimi Milard); 0209 (Kimi Milard)
Dylan Smith . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0201 (Asher)
Adriano Sobretodo Jr.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3

0201 (Unassuming Man); 0207 (Mimic Alpha); 0211
(Mimic Alpha)

David Sparrow .. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Chief Handell)

Brent Spiner. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0109 (Dr. Kern)

Nathaniel Stephenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0206 (Bip)

Patrick Stevenson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (Detective)

Meghan Swaby . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0203 (Clerk)

T
Elias Toufexis . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

0201 (Cornell Scipio); 0206 (Cornell Scipio); 0209
(Cornell Scipio); 0212 (Cornell Scipio)

Mike Tyrell. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0104 (Purlec)

V
Azra Valani . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Shelly)
Gianpaolo Venuta . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0208 (Dylan Renfro)
Carlos Gonzalez- Vio . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0101 (Operative)

W
Lindsay Wagner . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

0105 (Dr. Vanessa Calder)
Erin Way. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8

0201 (Kat); 0203 (Kat); 0204 (Kat); 0205 (Kat); 0207
(Kat); 0208 (Kat); 0211 (Kat); 0213 (Kat)

Skyler Wexler . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2
0206 (Zoe); 0212 (Zoe)

John White . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0105 (Sam Girardi)

Nicki Whitely . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0207 (Molly)

Marshall Williams. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .1
0105 (High School Guy)

Rod Wilson . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0204 (Nina’s Dad)

Peter Wingfield . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
0106 (James Collier)
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